
  
  
                    
                RReevv ii sseedd  
              
TTaazzeewweellll CCoouunnttyy  BBooaarrdd     
Wednesday, July 30, 2025  
Brett Grimm, Chairman of the Board 
Michael Harris, Vice-Chairman of the Board 

 
COUNTY BOARD AGENDA            3 
              
MINUTES             6 
 
LAND USE  LU-25-08 CASE NO. 25-28-A – ELM GROVE CSG 1, LLC    12 
 
LAND USE  LU-25-09 CASE NO. 25-29-S – HITTLE TWP. SOLAR, LLC    25  
      
PROPERTY  P-25-12 AMENDMENT TO THE GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE WITH P.J.   36 
     HOERR, INC. FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE JUSTICE CENTER ANNEX   
 
FINANCE   F-25-19 BUDGET TRANSFER FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT   89  
 
FINANCE   F-25-20 BUDGET TRANSFER FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT    91 
 
FINANCE   F-25-21 PURCHASE OF ADDITIONAL LAPTOPS FROM HEART TECHNOLOGIES  93 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES HR-25-13 Termination of the Carle Health Plus, Inc., Preferred Provider  99 
     Organization Agreement 

 
HUMAN RESOURCES HR-25-14 Approve Aetna Health Insurance Agreement    100 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES HR-25-15 Approve Updates to Health Insurance Summary of    109 
     Benefits and Coverage 
 
EXECUTIVE  E-25-55 BID FOR HERITAGE LAKE SUBDIVISION SEAL COAT ROAD WORK  128 

 
EXECUTIVE  E-25-59 3RD QUARTER 2025 PAYMENT TO GREATER PEORIA ECONOMIC   130 
     DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL        
 
EXECUTIVE   E-25-60 COYOTE ROAD SOLAR ROAD USE AGREEMENT    132 
 
EXECUTIVE   E-25-61 DECOMMISSIONING AGREEMENT WITH FAST AVE SOLAR, LLC  158 
 
EXECUTIVE   E-25-62 Memorandum of Agreement with the Illinois State Historic   186  
     Preservation Office Regarding the Arcade Building     
 
EXECUTIVE   E-25-63 LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR MATCHING FUNDS FOR TRI-COUNTY REGIONAL  194 
     PLANNING COMMISSION’S APPLICATION FOR USDA RURAL COMMUNITY  
     DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE GRANT    
 
 
 
 

11



      
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE   E-25-65 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENTS FOR COMPUTER ASSISTED MASS  196 
     APPRAISAL SOFTWARE (CAMA)   
     UPON APPROVAL OF IN-PLACE MEETING 
 
EXECUTIVE   E-25-69 AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT WITH ADMINISTRATOR MICHAEL 200 
     DELUHERY 
     UPON APPROVAL OF IN-PLACE MEETING 
 
     IDOT DOCUMENTATION REVIEW #82 – MOTOR FUEL TAX FUNDS  209 
 
     IDOT DOCUMENTATION REVIEW #61 – MOTOR FUEL TAX FUNDS  225 
 
     IDOT DOCUMENTATION SUPPLEMENTAL REVIEW #61 – TOWNSHIP  278 
     BRIDGE FUNDS 
 
AUGUST 2025 CALENDAR OF MEETINGS            285 

22



                   REVISED 
TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD 
James Carius Community Room 

101 S. Capitol Street 
Pekin, Illinois 61554 

 
Wednesday, July 30, 2025 - 6:00 p.m. 

 
Brett Grimm - Chairman of the Board 

Michael Harris - Vice Chairman of the Board 
 

A. Roll Call 

B. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance  

C. Communications from members of the public and county employees 
 

D. Communications from elected and appointed county officials   
 
1. Facilities Administration Overview by Mike Schone 
 

E. Approve the minutes of the June 25, 2025 County Board Proceeding 
 

F. In-Place Executive Committee Meeting 
 

G. Consent Agenda: 

                    Land Use 
 
  LU-25-08             1. Approve Case No. 25-28-A – Elm Grove CSG 1, LLC  
 
  LU-25-09             2. Approve Case No. 25-29-S – Hittle Twp. Solar, LLC 
 
                    Property  
   

               P-25-12  3. Approve an Amendment to the Guaranteed Maximum Price with P.J.  
     Hoerr, Inc. for the Construction of the Justice Center Annex 

 
  Finance 
 
 F-25-19  4. Approve Budget Transfer for Community Development 
 
 F-25-20  5. Approve Budget Transfer for Community Development 
 

    F-25-21           6. Approve the Purchase of Additional Laptops from Heart Technologies 
 

33



 
 
 
 
 
    Human Resources 
 
          HR-25-13         7. Approve Termination of the Carle Health Plus, Inc., Preferred Provider  
      Organization Agreement  
 
  HR-25-14         8. Approve Aetna Health Insurance Agreement  
 
          HR-25-15         9. Approve Updates to Health Insurance Summary of  
      Benefits and Coverage 

 
    Executive 
 

E-25-55        10. Approve bid for Heritage Lake Subdivision seal coat road work   
 

E-25-59        11. Approve 3rd quarter 2025 payment to Greater Peoria Economic  
    Development Council  
 

           E-25-60        12. Approve the Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agreement 
 

           E-25-61        13. Approve Decommissioning Agreement with Fast Ave Solar, LLC 
  

         E-25-62        14. Approve Memorandum of Agreement with the Illinois State Historic  
    Preservation Office Regarding the Arcade Building 
  

         E-25-63        15. Approve Letter of Support for Matching Funds for Tri-County Regional  
     Planning Commission’s Application for USDA Rural Community  
     Development Initiative Grant  
 
         E-25-65        16. Approve Intergovernmental Agreements for Computer Assisted Mass  
     Appraisal Software (CAMA) 
     Upon Approval of In-Place Meeting 
 
         E-25-69                17. Approve Amendment to Employment Agreement with Administrator  
     Michael Deluhery 
     Upon Approval of In-Place Meeting 

 
     H. Unfinished Business 
 
  I. New Business 
 
   A. IDOT Documentation Review #82 – Motor Fuel Tax funds 
 
   B. IDOT Documentation Review #61 – Motor Fuel Tax funds 
 

44



 
 
 
 
   C. IDOT Documentation Supplemental Review #61 – Township Bridge funds 
 
  J. Review of approved bills 
 
  K. Approve the August 2025 Calendar of Meetings  
 
  L. Recess to August 27, 2025 

55



Chairman Brett Grimm        Vice Chairman, Michael Harris, Dist. 3     
Kim D. Joesting, Dist. 1       Jay Hall, Dist. 1 
Nancy Proehl, Dist. 1      Deene Milam, Dist. 1  
Mark Goddard, Dist. 1          Joe Woodrow, Dist. 1 
Kaden Nelms, Dist. 1       Jon Hopkins, Dist. 2        
Nick Graff, Dist. 2            Maxwell Schneider, Dist. 2          
Greg Menold, Dist. 2            Cathryn Stump, Dist. 2         
Greg Sinn, Dist. 2              Eric Stahl, Dist. 2       
Eric Schmidgall, Dist. 3           John C. Ackerman       Russ Crawford, Dist. 3 
Dave Mingus, Dist. 3         County Clerk     Aaron Phillips, Dist. 3 
Tammy Rich-Stimson, Dist. 3      Greg Longfellow, Dist. 3 

TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD  
MEETING MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY JUNE 25, 2025 
6:00 PM 

James Carius Community Room, Tazewell Law & Justice Center, 
101 S. Capitol Street, Pekin, Illinois 61554 

ROLL CALL BY COUNTY CLERK 

Attendance was taken by Roll Call, and the following members of the board were 
present:  Chairman Grimm, Vice Chairman Harris, Members Crawford, Graff, Hopkins, 
Joesting, Longfellow, Menold, Milam, Mingus, Nelms, Phillips, Rich-Stimson, 
Schmidgall, Schneider, Sinn, Woodrow – 17.  Absent: Members Goddard, Hall, Proehl, 
Stahl, Stump – 5. 

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Chairman Grimm led the invocation followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Following the Pledge of Allegiance, Chairman Grimm recognized two Korean War 
Veterans that were in attendance.  

COMMUNICATIONS FROM ELECTED & APPOINTED COUNTY OFFICIALS 

Tazewell County Circuit Clerk, Lincoln Hobson, provided an overview of his office.  Mr. 
Hobson stated the Circuit Clerk’s office is the official record keeper for the courts and 
they aid and promote the judicial process.   He stated the Circuit Clerk was not an 
official of local government, but a state constitutional officer and the primary duty was to 
assist the Judges in execution of their judicial duties by preparing and maintaining court 
records, collecting fines and fees, processing paperwork and issuing all processes such 
as citations, notices, summons and subpoenas.  His office is divided into Civil, Traffic, 
Criminal and Microfilm.  Clerk Hobson indicated his office is aso the Jury Commissioner 
for Tazewell County.  He thanked his staff that were in attendance. 
DRAFT

66



COMMUNICATION FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND/OR COUNTY 
EMPLOYEES 

Tim Baer, a concerned citizen, spoke about his comments at the May Board Meeting 
and spoke about a Judge in Ireland that granted damages in reference to wind turbine 
noise. 

PRESENTATION 

Tessa Mahoney, Executive Director for Age Central, provided an overview of her 
organization.  She explained that Age Central is our Area Agency on Aging, and they 
promote independence, dignity and connection. She spoke on the various programs 
and the great volunteers that make this program a success.  

APPROVE THE MINUTES OF MAY 28,2025, COUNTY BOARD PROCEEDING 

Member Nelms moved to approve the minutes of May 28, 2025; County Board 
Proceedings as printed; seconded by Member Rich-Stimson.  Motion to approve the 
minutes as printed were approved by voice vote of 16 Yeas; 0 Nays. 

IN-PLACE TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE MEETING 

The meeting started at 6:21 PM and ended at 6:23 PM. 

IN-PLACE PROPERTY COMMITTEE MEETING 

Meeting started at 6:23 PM. 

Motion to enter Executive Session pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(5), Land Acquisition or 
Leasing, the purchase or lease of real property for the use of the public body, including 
meetings held for the purpose of discussing whether a particular parcel should be 
acquired.  The Tazewell County Property Committee entered Executive Session at 6:24 
PM. 

The Tazewell County Board returned to open session at 6:28 PM. 

Property Committee meeting ended at 6:29 PM. 

IN-PLACE HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE MEETING 

Meeting started at 6:29 PM. 

Motion to enter Executive Session pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(2), Collective 
Bargaining: collective negotiating matters between the public body and its employees or 
their representatives, or deliberations concerning salary schedules for one or more 

DRAFT

77



classes of employees.  The Tazewell County Human Resources Committee entered 
Executive Session at 6:30 PM. 

The Tazewell County Board returned to open session at 6:32 PM. 

Human Resources committee meeting ended at 6:33 PM. 

IN-PLACE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

The meeting started at 6:33 PM and ended at 6:34 PM. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Transportation:  Approve Resolution – Sale of Trucks # 7 and # 10, Resolution  
T-25-14. 

Transportation: Approve Resolution – 23-19129-00-BR-School Street. LPA Eng. 
Agreement, Resolution T-25-15.  Upon approval of In-Place Meeting. 

Land Use: Approve Case No. 25-26-A-Amendment 71, Resolution LU-25-06. 

Land Use: Approve Case No. 25-28-A – Amendment 73, Resolution LU-25-07.   

Property: Approve the acquisition of 306 Court Street, Pekin, Illinois, Resolution 
P-25-10.  Upon approval of In-Place Meeting. 

Property: Approve the sale of a drone for EMA, Resolution P-25-11. 

Finance: Approve a Budget Transfer for EMA, Resolution F-25-16.   

Finance: Approve a Budget Transfer for the Sheriff’s Office and Courts, 
Resolution F-25-17.   

Finance: Approve purchase Method of Case Management Software for the Circuit 
Clerk’s Office, Resolution F-25-18. 

Human Resources: Approve the Collective Bargaining Agreement between 
Tazewell County and the Teamsters, Chauffeurs and Helpers Local Union No. 627 
on behalf of the Administrative and Support Staff Employees Unit, Resolution HR-
25-08.  Upon approval of In-Place Meeting. 

Executive: Approve Precinct Boundaries, Resolution E-25-50. 

Executive: Approve Polling Location Changes, Resolution E-25-53. 

Executive: Approve Emergency Declaration for IVRS Grant Purchase, Resolution 
E-25-56.  Upon approval of In-Place Meeting. 

DRAFT

88



Member Crawford moved to approve the Consent Agenda items as outlined in the 
agenda packet; seconded by Member Graff.  The Consent Agenda was approved by 
voice vote of 16 Yeas; 0 Nays. 

The following items were removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion. 

Item 2 Transportation: Member Harris motioned to approve the LPA Engineering 
Agreement for School Street; seconded by Member Rich-Stimson.  Motion passed by 
voice vote of 16 Yeas; 0 Nays.  Resolution T-25-15 was passed by the County Board.  

Item 5 Property: Member Nelms motioned to approve the acquisition of 306 Court 
Street, Pekin, Illinois; seconded by Member Joesting.  Motion passed by voice vote of 
15 Yeas; 1 Nay - Crawford. Resolution P-25-10 was passed by the County board. 

Item 10 Human Resources: Member Crawford motioned to approve the Collective 
Bargaining Agreement between Tazewell County and the Teamsters on behalf of the 
Administrative and Support Staff Employees Unit; seconded by Member Schneider.  
Motion passed by voice vote of 16 Yeas; 0 Nays.  Resolution HR-25-08 was passed by 
the County board. 

Item 13. Executive: Member Schmidgall motioned to approve the Emergency 
Declaration for IVRS Grant Purchase; seconded by Member Menold.  Motion passed by 
voice vote of 16 Yeas; 0 Nays.  Resolution E-25-56 was passed by the County board. 

APPOINTMENTS/REAPPOINTMENTS 

Member Crawford moved to reappoint Jim Brecher to the Sheriff’s Merit Commission; 
seconded by Member Graff.  Resolution E-25-54 was approved by voice vote of 16 
Yeas; 0 Nays. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

It was determined the board had no unfinished business at this time. 

NEW BUSINESS 

It was determined the board had no new business at this time. 

REVIEW OF APPROVED BILLS 

Board members have been sent the approved bills. 

APPROVE JULY 2025 CALENDAR DRAFT

99



Member Hopkins moved to approve the July 2025 calendar; seconded by Member 
Nelms.  Motion to approve the July 2025 calendar was approved by voice vote of 16 
Yeas; 0 Nays. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business before the Board, Chairman Grimm announced the 
meeting adjourned.  The Tazewell County Board Meeting adjourned at 6:40 PM.  The 
next scheduled County Board meeting will be on July 30, 2025. 

 

DRAFT

1010



 
TAZEWELL COUNTY LAND USE COMMITTEE 

SUMMARY OF COMMITTEE AGENDA 
July 8, 2025 Meeting 

TO BE PRESENTED TO THE TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD ON 
July 30, 2025 

 
 
LU-25-08 
Case No. 25-28-S The petition of Elm Grove CSG 1, LLC  for a Special Use to allow  
Elm Grove CSG 1, LLC the construction of a 5 Mega Watt Commercial Solar Farm in an 

A-1 Agriculture Preservation District 
 
  ZBA recommended approval, with conditions.   
  Land Use concurred. 
 
LU-25-09 
Case No. 25-29-S The petition of Hittle Twp Solar, LLC  for a Special Use to allow  
Hittle Twp Solar, LLC the construction of a 2 Mega Watt Commercial Solar Farm in an 

A-1 Agriculture Preservation District 
 
  ZBA recommended approval, with conditions.   
  Land Use recommended denial. 
 

1111



COMMITTEE REPORT   
LU-25-08 

(ZBA Case No. 25-28-S) 
 

Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:  
  
Your Land Use Committee does hereby recommend approval of the following resolution:  
 
   RE: Approval of Special Use Petition of Elm Grove CSG 1, LLC.   
  
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------   

R  E  S  O  L  U  T  I  O N  
  

WHEREAS, the County of Tazewell has enacted Title XV, Chapter 157, Zoning (As adopted January 1, 1998) 
of the Tazewell County Code; and  
  
WHEREAS, said ordinance requires a Special Use for a Commercial Solar Energy Facility in the “A-1” 
Agriculture Preservation District; and   
  
WHEREAS, a public hearing on said Special Use was held before the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) on July 
1, 2025 in Case No. 25-28-S; and 
  
WHEREAS, the ZBA deliberated its decision on July 1, 2025 and voted to recommend APPROVAL of the 
Special Use with conditions; and  
 
WHEREAS, your Land Use Committee met on July 8, 2025 to consider the application, report of the ZBA, the 
recommendation of the Community Development Administrator and Land Use Planner; and 
 
WHEREAS, your Land Use Committee voted to recommend APPROVAL of the Special Use with conditions; 
as established by the ZBA; 
 
WHEREAS, the County Board has reviewed; the report of the ZBA, the recommendation of the Land Use 
Committee, and the recommendation of Community Development Administrator and Land Use planner; and  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board APPROVE this resolution and the petitioner’s 
request for Special Use Case. No. 25-28-S with the finding of fact as provided by the ZBA/Land Use 
Committee with conditions. 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notify Jaclynn Workman, Community Development 
Administrator of this action; 
  
 Adopted this            day of         , 20  .  
  

                          
 ATTEST:          Tazewell County Board Chairman  
 
 
                 
Tazewell County Clerk     

1212



AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE 
UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF TITLE XV, 

CHAPTER 157, ZONING CODE OF TAZEWELL COUNTY 
ON PETITION OF ELM GROVE CSG 1, LLC 

 
(Zoning Board Case No. 25-28-S) 

WHEREAS, a petition has been filed with the County Clerk of Tazewell County, Illinois, by 

Elm Grove CSG 1, LLC for a Special Use to allow the construction of a 5 Mega Watt Commercial 

Solar Farm in an A-1 Agriculture Preservation District; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on said application designated as Zoning Board Case No. 25-

28-S was held by the Tazewell County Zoning Board of Appeals on July 1, 2025, following due 

publication of notice of said hearing in accordance with law, and the said Zoning Board of Appeals 

thereafter made a report to the County Board recommending APPROVAL with the following 

conditions be established: 

1. The fence style shall be chain-link with steel post, in accordance with the height 

requirements of § 156.06 (B)(1)(f). 

2. The Facility Owner shall ensure that all vegetation growing within the perimeter of the 

Facility and all land outside of the perimeter fence identified in the agreement as a part of 

the lease is properly and appropriately maintained. Maintenance may include, but not be 

limited to, mowing, trimming, chemical control, or the use of livestock as agreed to by the 

Landowner. 

3. Emergency and non-emergency contact information shall be kept up to date with the 

Community Development Department and be posted in a conspicuous manner at the main 

entrance to the facility and also visible from the public roadway.  

4. Vegetative screening, such as a species of pine tree, shall be 3-5’ at planting as proposed in 

the application.  

5. Cover crop, such as wheat or rye, shall be established prior to construction to prevent 

sediment and erosion control issues during the construction phase. 

; and   

WHEREAS, said report of the Zoning Board of Appeals contained the following findings of 

1313



fact: 

1. The Special Use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the 

Tazewell County Zoning Ordinance for the district in which it is located.  

(POSITIVE) The Special Use conforms to all applicable regulations of the Tazewell County 

Zoning Code to be enforced by the Community Development Administrator. 

2. The Special Use will be consistent with the purposes, goals, objectives, and standards of 

the officially adopted County Comprehensive Land Use Plan and these regulations, or of 

any officially adopted Comprehensive Plan of a municipality with a 1.5 mile planning 

jurisdiction.  

(POSITIVE) The proposed special use is within 1.5 miles of the City of Pekin which has an 

adopted Comprehensive Plan from 2006. This plan identifies the subject area’s future land 

use as estate although the property is located outside of Pekin’s designated future growth 

area. The proposed special use is consistent with the following policies of the Tazewell 

County Comprehensive Plan: 

o Minimize conflict between land uses  

o Allow for supplemental uses to supplement farm income and support the 

financial viability of farms  

3. The petitioner has met the requirements of Article 25 of the Tazewell County Zoning Code.  

(POSITIVE) Per the application, the requirements of Article 25 of the Tazewell County 

Zoning Code have been met. 

4. The Site shall be so situated as to minimize adverse effects, including visual impacts on 

adjacent properties.  

(POSITIVE) The proposed solar farm is in an agricultural area south of the City of Pekin, 

roughly half a mile south of Highway 9 off of Mennonite Church Rd. The special use site 

area is in a depression which at some points is 30ft lower than the adjacent Mennonite 

Church Rd, helping to shield views of the proposed farm from the road and residences to 

the east. The applicant has proposed a 20 ft landscape buffer, consisting of evergreen 

1414



plantings, on the eastern side of the solar farm to shield views from the roadway and 

residence that is roughly 900 feet to the east of the project site. Per the reasons listed 

above, adverse visual impacts on adjacent properties should prove minimal. 

5. The establishment, maintenance or operation of the Special Use shall not be detrimental to 

or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare of the neighboring 

vicinity.  

(POSITIVE) The surrounding area is primarily agriculture land with some residential 

development to the east of the site. When operated appropriately, a solar farm is a low-

intensity use which should not create any health or safety hazards. Given this context, the 

proposed special use should not pose a significant risk to the public health, safety, morals, 

comfort, or general welfare of the neighboring vicinity.  

6. The Special Use shall not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 

immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted.  

(POSITIVE) Once operational, solar farms requires little maintenance and do not require 

full-time staff to operate. Therefore, the proposed special use should pose no threat to 

nearby property owners’ use and enjoyment of their property. 

7. The Special Use shall not substantially diminish and impair property values within the 

neighborhood.  

(POSITIVE) Given the low-intensity and non-polluting natures of the project, establishment 

of the special use should not substantially diminish or impair property value in the 

surrounding area. 

8. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other necessary facilities have been or 

are being provided.  

(POSITIVE) Per the application, all utilities and necessary facilities will be provided. 

9. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed 

as to minimize traffic congestion and hazard on the public streets.  

(POSITIVE) Construction of the solar farm will require an entrance onto Mennonite Church 

1515



Rd. The proposed solar farm will likely cause a temporary increase to traffic during 

construction but should have little to no impact on traffic afterward. Due to the small width of 

Mennonite Church Rd, the applicant should work closely with the Road Commissioner to 

design entrances that minimize traffic hazards. Based on these considerations, this finding 

is judged to be positive. 

10. The evidence establishes that granting the use, which is located one-half mile or less from a 

livestock feeding operation, will not increase the population density around the livestock 

feeding operation to such levels as would hinder the operation or expansion of such 

operation.  

Not applicable.       

11. Evidence presented establishes that granting the use, which is located more than one-half 

mile from a livestock feeding operation, will not hinder the operation or expansion of such 

operation.  

(POSITIVE) Once operational, a solar farm is a low-intensity use and will not hinder the 

operation or expansion of a livestock feeding operation within a one half mile of the subject 

property. 

12. Seventy-five percent (75%) of the site contains soils having a productivity index of less than 

125.  

(POSITIVE) The subject property contains soils with productivity index ratings ranging from 

125 to 135, with a majority of the special use site upon soils of a productivity index of 125. 

Solar projects are typically constructed in agricultural areas, but the fact remains that the 

requested special use would temporarily remove some prime agriculture land from 

production. However, when solar farms are built and maintained properly, they should not 

destroy the soil beneath, they should not negatively impact storm water infiltration, and the 

land may be reverted to farmland when the solar array is decommissioned. Therefore, this 

finding is judged to be positive. 

 

1616



13. The Special Use is consistent with the existing uses of property within the general area of 

the property in question.  

(POSITIVE) Most solar farms are best-suited for open agricultural areas, and the proposed 

array is in such an area. Moreover, the proposed special use should not disturb the 

residential properties nearby due to sufficient vegetative screening. Therefore, the proposed 

solar farm is consistent with surrounding uses of property. 

14. The property is suitable for the Special Use as proposed.  

(POSITIVE) Given the reasons stated above, the subject property is suitable for the 

requested special use, with one condition. 

which findings of fact are hereby      by the County Board as the reason for  

      the Special Use request, with conditions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF TAZEWELL 

COUNTY, ILLINOIS: 

SECTION I. The petition of Elm Grove CSG 1, LLC  for a Special Use to allow the 

construction of a 5 Mega Watt Commercial Solar Farm in an A-1 Agriculture Preservation District on 

the following described property:  

 Current Owner of Property:  Robert Orr, Trustee, 5 Rosewood Ln., Pekin, IL 61554 

Currently a Part of P.I.N. 11-11-17-300-005; an approximate 28 +/- acres utilized of 

a 70 acre parcel located in part of the NE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Sec 17, T24N, R4W of 

the 3rd P.M., Elm Grove Twp., Tazewell Co., IL; 

located in a field immediately West and across the road from 14420 and 14394 Mennonite 

Church Rd., Pekin, IL. 

SECTION II.  The Community Development Administrator of Tazewell County is hereby authorized 

and directed to issue any permit for said Special Use. 

 

 

 

1717



 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this                day of                            , 20  . 

 

Ayes    Nays    Absent   

 

       
Chairman 
Tazewell County Board 

ATTEST: 
 
          
County Clerk 
Tazewell County, Illinois  

1818



1919



2020



2121



2222



2323



2424



COMMITTEE REPORT   
LU-25-09 

(ZBA Case No. 25-29-S) 
 

Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board:  
  
Your Land Use Committee does hereby recommend approval of the following resolution:  
 
   RE: Approval of Special Use Petition of Hittle Twp. Solar, LLC.   
  
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------   

R  E  S  O  L  U  T  I  O N  
  

WHEREAS, the County of Tazewell has enacted Title XV, Chapter 157, Zoning (As adopted January 1, 1998) 
of the Tazewell County Code; and  
  
WHEREAS, said ordinance requires a Special Use for a Commercial Solar Energy Facility in the “A-1” 
Agriculture Preservation District; and   
  
WHEREAS, a public hearing on said Special Use was held before the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) on July 
1, 2025 in Case No. 25-29-S; and 
  
WHEREAS, the ZBA deliberated its decision on July 1, 2025 and voted to recommend APPROVAL of the 
Special Use with conditions; and  
 
WHEREAS, your Land Use Committee met on July 8, 2025 to consider the application, report of the ZBA, the 
recommendation of the Community Development Administrator and Land Use Planner; and 
 
WHEREAS, your Land Use Committee, upon a Roll Call vote, voted to recommend DENIAL of the Special 
Use;  Aye:  Hall & Longfellow; Nay:  Hopkins, Schmidgall, Stahl, Woodrow, Chairman Crawford; Absent: 
Goddard 
 
WHEREAS, the County Board has reviewed; the report of the ZBA, the recommendation of the Land Use 
Committee, and the recommendation of Community Development Administrator and Land Use planner; and  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board APPROVE this resolution and the petitioner’s 
request for Special Use Case. No. 25-29-S with the finding of fact as provided by the ZBA with conditions. 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notify Jaclynn Workman, Community Development 
Administrator of this action; 
  
 Adopted this            day of         , 20  .  
  

                          
 ATTEST:          Tazewell County Board Chairman  
 
 
                 
Tazewell County Clerk     

2525



AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE 
UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF TITLE XV, 

CHAPTER 157, ZONING CODE OF TAZEWELL COUNTY 
ON PETITION OF HITTLE TWP SOLAR, LLC 

 
(Zoning Board Case No. 25-29-S) 

WHEREAS, a petition has been filed with the County Clerk of Tazewell County, Illinois, by 

Hittle Twp. Solar, LLC for a Special Use to allow the construction of a 2 Mega Watt Commercial 

Solar Farm in an A-1 Agriculture Preservation District; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on said application designated as Zoning Board Case No. 25-

29-S was held by the Tazewell County Zoning Board of Appeals on July 1, 2025, following due 

publication of notice of said hearing in accordance with law, and the said Zoning Board of Appeals 

thereafter made a report to the County Board recommending APPROVAL with the following 

conditions be established: 

1. The fence style shall be chain-link with steel post, in accordance with the height 

requirements of § 156.06 (B)(1)(f). 

2. Emergency and non-emergency contact information shall be kept up to date with the 

Community Development Department and be posted in a conspicuous manner at the main 

entrance to the facility and also visible from the public roadway. 

3. The Facility Owner shall ensure that all vegetation growing within the perimeter of the 

Facility and all land outside of the perimeter fence identified in the agreement as a part of 

the lease is properly and appropriately maintained. Maintenance may include, but not be 

limited to, mowing, trimming, chemical control, or the use of livestock as agreed to by the 

Landowner. 

4. Vegetative screening, such as a species of pine tree, shall be 3-5’ at planting as proposed in 

the application and shall also be located along the Eastern edge of the property, that fronts 

along Route 136 Spur Road. 

5. Cover crop, such as wheat or rye, shall be established prior to construction to prevent 

sediment and erosion control issues during the construction phase. 

2626



; and   

WHEREAS, said report of the Zoning Board of Appeals contained the following findings of 

fact: 

1. The Special Use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the 

Tazewell County Zoning Ordinance for the district in which it is located.  

(POSITIVE) The Special Use conforms to all applicable regulations of the Tazewell 

County Zoning Code to be enforced by the Community Development Administrator. 

2. The Special Use will be consistent with the purposes, goals, objectives, and standards of 

the officially adopted County Comprehensive Land Use Plan and these regulations, or of 

any officially adopted Comprehensive Plan of a municipality with a 1.5 mile planning 

jurisdiction.  

(POSITIVE) The proposed special use is not within 1.5 miles of a municipality with an 

officially adopted Comprehensive Plan. The proposed special use is consistent with the 

following policies of the Tazewell County Comprehensive Plan: 

o Minimize conflict between land uses  

o Allow for supplemental uses to supplement farm income and support the 

financial viability of farms.  

3. The petitioner has met the requirements of Article 25 of the Tazewell County Zoning Code.  

(POSITIVE) Per the application, the requirements of Article 25 of the Tazewell County 

Zoning Code have been met. 

4. The Site shall be so situated as to minimize adverse effects, including visual impacts on 

adjacent properties.  

(POSITIVE) The proposed solar farm is in an agricultural area adjacent to the Village of 

Armington at the corner of Armington Rd & E 3rd St. The applicant has proposed a 

landscape buffer, consisting of evergreen plantings, on the western & northern sides of the 

solar farm to shield views from residences within Armington. There is no proposed 

vegetative screening along Armington Rd. Staff recommends a condition of approval that 

2727



screening be added to this eastern side of the solar farm as Armington Rd is a primary 

connector between residents of Armington to Highway 136 to the south. Per the reasons 

listed above, adverse visual impacts on adjacent properties should prove minimal. 

5. The establishment, maintenance or operation of the Special Use shall not be detrimental to 

or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare of the neighboring 

vicinity.  

(POSITIVE) The surrounding area is primarily residential to the north and west with 

agriculture land to the south and east. When operated appropriately, a solar farm is a low-

intensity use which should not create any health or safety hazards. Given this context, the 

proposed special use should not pose a significant risk to the public health, safety, morals, 

comfort, or general welfare of the neighboring vicinity. 

6. The Special Use shall not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 

immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted.  

(POSITIVE) Once operational, solar farms requires little maintenance and do not require 

full-time staff to operate. Therefore, the proposed special use should pose no threat to 

nearby property owners’ use and enjoyment of their property. 

7. The Special Use shall not substantially diminish and impair property values within the 

neighborhood.  

(POSITIVE) Given the low-intensity and non-polluting natures of the project, establishment 

of the special use should not substantially diminish or impair property value in the 

surrounding area. 

8. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other necessary facilities have been or 

are being provided.  

(POSITIVE) Per the application, all utilities and necessary facilities will be provided. 

9. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed 

as to minimize traffic congestion and hazard on the public streets.  

(POSITIVE) Construction of the solar farm will require an entrance onto Armington Rd. The 

2828



proposed solar farm will likely cause a temporary increase to traffic during construction but 

should have little to no impact on traffic afterward. Once operational, solar farms receive 

very little vehicular traffic. Based on these considerations, this finding is judged to be 

positive. 

10. The evidence establishes that granting the use, which is located one-half mile or less from a 

livestock feeding operation, will not increase the population density around the livestock 

feeding operation to such levels as would hinder the operation or expansion of such 

operation.  

Not applicable. 

11. Evidence presented establishes that granting the use, which is located more than one-half 

mile from a livestock feeding operation, will not hinder the operation or expansion of such 

operation.  

(POSITIVE) Once operational, a solar farm is a low-intensity use and will not hinder the 

operation or expansion of a livestock feeding operation within a one half mile of the subject 

property. 

12. Seventy-five percent (75%) of the site contains soils having a productivity index of less than 

125.  

(POSITIVE) The subject property contains soils with productivity index ratings ranging from 

150 to 160, with a majority of the special use site upon soils of a productivity index above 

155. Solar projects are typically constructed in agricultural areas, but the fact remains that 

the requested special use would temporarily remove some prime agriculture land from 

production. However, when solar farms are built and maintained properly, they should not 

destroy the soil beneath, they should not negatively impact storm water infiltration, and the 

land may be reverted to farmland when the solar array is decommissioned. Therefore, this 

finding is judged to be positive. 

13. The Special Use is consistent with the existing uses of property within the general area of 

the property in question.  

2929



(POSITIVE) Most solar farms are best-suited for open agricultural areas, and the proposed 

array is in such an area. Moreover, the proposed special use should not disturb the 

residential properties nearby due to sufficient vegetative screening. Therefore, the proposed 

solar farm is consistent with surrounding uses of property.  

14. The property is suitable for the Special Use as proposed.  

(POSITIVE) Given the reasons stated above, the subject property is suitable for the 

requested special use, with one condition. 

which findings of fact are hereby      by the County Board as the reason for  

      the Special Use request, with conditions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF TAZEWELL 

COUNTY, ILLINOIS: 

SECTION I. The petition of Hittle Twp. Solar, LLC  for a Special Use to allow the 

construction of a 2 Mega Watt Commercial Solar Farm in an A-1 Agriculture Preservation District on 

the following described property:  

 Current Owner of Property:  John H. Boudeman, 221 Rte. 136 Spur Rd., Armington, 

IL  61721 

 Currently a Part of P.I.N. 23-23-27-400-010; an approximate 16 +/- acres utilized of 

an 160.78 acre parcel located in part of the NW ¼ of the NE ¼ of Sec 27, T22N, 

R2W of the 3rd P.M., Hittle Twp., Tazewell Co., IL; 

located at the SW Corner of the intersection of Armington Rd. and Rte. 136 Spur Rd, 

Armington, IL. 

SECTION II.  The Community Development Administrator of Tazewell County is hereby authorized 

and directed to issue any permit for said Special Use. 

3030



 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this                day of                            , 20  . 

 

Ayes    Nays    Absent   

 

       
Chairman 
Tazewell County Board 

ATTEST: 
 
          
County Clerk 
Tazewell County, Illinois  

3131



3232



3333



3434



3535



P-25-12    
 COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 
 
Your Property Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends 
that it be adopted by the Board: 
 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 
WHEREAS, it is recommended that the guaranteed maximum price (“GMP”) amendment 
with PJ Hoerr, Inc. for the construction of the proposed justice center annex be approved; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the County Board approved entering into agreements with Wold Architects as 
the architect and P.J. Hoerr as construction manager for the proposed Justice Center Annex 
on February 28, 2024; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County Board approved a schematic design for a three-story facility on 
August 7, 2024 at an estimated cost of $44,042,739, including architect fees, allowances, 
and contingencies; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County Board approved a GMP with PJ Hoerr for the three-story facility on 
November 20, 2024 based on 95% complete design drawings with the total cost of the 
project being $43,334,323; and 
 
WHEREAS, PJ Hoerr issued bid packages for the work and received the proposals provided 
in the attached summary; and 
 
WHEREAS, while the total project cost based on the bids submitted was within the budget, 
value engineering was conducted to maintain 5% contingency, with 2.5% continency 
within the GMP approved amount, and 2.5% owner contingency; and 
 
WHEREAS, the attached listing provides the value engineering items accepted; and 
 
WHEREAS, the bid packages included five bid alternate options, including a Circuit Clerk 
Office Addition/Jury Room Expansion, which have not been included in the GMP; and 
 
WHEREAS, PJ Hoerr is recommending to proceed with the lowest bidders; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County procured the Times Building and desires to have the demolition of 
the building added to the project at a cost of $163,895. 
 
 
 
 

3636



 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approves the guaranteed maximum 
price amendment with PJ Hoerr at the amounts provided on the attached summary, with 
total project costs of $43,498,217, and authorizes the County Board Chairman or County 
Administrator to sign the necessary documents. 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office,  
the Facilities Director, Finance Office, and the Auditor of this action. 
 
PASSED THIS 30th DAY OF JULY, 2025. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Tazewell County Clerk    Tazewell County Board Chairman 
 
 

3737



DESCRIPTION OF WORK TOTAL

CONCRETE-BUILDING 2,991,000

MASONRY 2,630,400

STEEL FABRICATION 2,383,500

STEEL ERECTION 1,158,000

GENERAL TRADES 2,938,400

MILLWORK SUPPLY 835,945

MEMBRANE ROOFING 540,882

GLAZING 689,900

GYP/ACT 3,156,130

FLOORING / TILE 901,180

PAINT 375,000

PRE-ENG WOOD BUILDING 155,000

ELEVATOR 889,000

FIRE PROTECTION 429,110

PLUMBING 1,048,700

HVAC 4,485,000

ELECTRICAL 6,241,000

EARTHWORK / EXCAVATION 1,006,000

DEEP FOUNDATIONS 325,420

ASPHALT PAVING 321,985

SITE CONCRETE 369,000

LANDSCAPING 164,310

UTILITIES 400,000

GENERAL CONDITIONS 1,727,139

PRECONSTRUCTION FEE 47,500

FIRESTOPPING 130,000

OWNER STORAGE CONTAINERS 11,640

VE ITEMS -809,775

SECURITY ELECTRONICS 34,000

FIBER OPTIC RELOCATION 54,734

35,630,100

GL INSURANCE 46,319

OH&P 981,102

BUILDING PERMIT 104,000

P&P Bond 226,180

BUILDERS RISK INSURANCE 95,000

OWNER CONTINGENCY ( 2.5%) 890,386

CONSTRUCTION CONTINGENCY ( 2.5%) 890,386

ALLOWANCES

APPLIANCES 100,000

AE FEES 2,335,827

FURNITURE 1,690,022

SHERIFF'S EQUIPMENT 75,000

TESTING 145,000

COMMISIONING 125,000

TOTAL (Original Amount) 43,334,322

Times Building Demo 163,895

Revised GMP w/ Times Building 43,498,217

Tazewell County New Justice Center Annex  GMP 

3838

mattb
Snapshot

mattb
Typewritten Text
7/17/25



VE Item # Description Value
1 Detention Grade Ceilings instead of Maximum Sec Ceilings (70,000.00)$                       

2 RTU Enclosures Louvers to Corrugated (120,000.00)$                    

3 Trash Enclosure and Chiller Gates to a More Standard Gate (35,000.00)$                       

4 Edwards Cast Stone Substitution (100,000.00)$                    

6 Change bottom up roller shades to standard roller shades. (15,000.00)$                       

7 Change from magnetic glass visual display boards to standard porcelain (35,000.00)$                       

8  Replace all 2cm miterfolded quartz with flat 3cm quartz trim (54,000.00)$                       

9

Replace all 2cm miterfolded quartz with flat 3cm quartz trim/caps and delete vertical trim/chair rail 

in court rooms.  

- Paneling will be trimmed with aluminum trim per bid documents. No woodwork will be used in 

place of the quartz trim (100,000.00)$                    

10 Millwork Hardware Revision as shared with Wold (19,000.00)$                       

13

Remove Full Substrates from Solid Surface Countertops 

 - Provide Benchmark Standard Substrate, 3” Deep at front and back, full depth buildup at brackets (2,500.00)$                         

14 Remove 1 Year Maintenance for Landscaping (25,000.00)$                       

16

Data Center Cabinets 

a. Reduce number of data center cabinets to 6 

b. Reduce PDUs, MPO fiber cables, etc.. based on cabinet reduction 

c. Change cabinet type to APC AR3105B2 (25,000.00)$                       

17 Use Notifier instead of Simplex (8,000.00)$                         

18 KSA Light Fixture Alternates - See spreadsheet shared with Wold (100,000.00)$                    

21 Utilize Boiler Flue System Manufactured by Metal-Fab, Inc. (23,000.00)$                       

22 Utilize Air Curtain Manufactured by Powered Aire, Inc. (5,000.00)$                         

65 ENTEC: Delete (1) hot water flow meter, including wiring, integration and monitoring (4,900.00)$                         

66 CMI: Delete hot water flow meter installation (175.00)$                             

67 ENTEC: Delete (15) Air Flow Measuring Stations, including installation, wiring, integration & monitoring (57,000.00)$                       

73

ENTEC: Delete (80) hours of additional training to be provided quarterly over a 1 year period. This will leave 

(40) hours of training to be divided up over a one year period (11,200.00)$                       

Total Value of VE Items for Considerations (809,775.00)$                     

3939

mattb
Snapshot

mattb
Typewritten Text
7/17/25



Justice Center Annex – Bid Package Alternates 

 

The below alternates have not been included in the recommended Guaranteed Maximum Price. 

 

Alternate #1 Upgrade Porcelain Tile Material               Add $128,700   

Alternate #2 Additional Light-glass Simulated Windows in 
Lower Level 

Add $122,200   

Alternate #3 Circuit Clerk Office Addition/Jury Room Expansion 
on west side of building 

Add $978,300   

Alternate #4 Upgrade to CAT 6A Cabling Add $90,600   

Alternate #5 Alternate Building Automation System Supplier Deduct ($60,000)   

 

4040



Tazewell County New Justice Center Annex Bid Tab

Highlighted Bidders are Recommended to County for Selection

Bid Package 01

Work Package 31.07 Aggregate Piers

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

CNC Foundations 143,200$                    

Subsurface Constructors 146,700$                    

Menard 169,000$                    

Bid Package 02

Work Package 3.01 Structural Concrete & Flatwork

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

P.J. Hoerr, Inc. 2,918,000$                172,000$       

Otto Baum 3,735,550$                307,000$       

Illinois Civil Construction 3,807,345$                181,917$       

Work Package 4.01 Masonry

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

P.J. Hoerr, Inc. 2,600,400$                85,400$         

Otto Baum 3,515,905$                91,845$         

4141



Work Package 5.01 Structural & Misc. Steel Supply

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

Hanley Steel 2,295,000$                99,000$         

Wilson's Structural Steel 2,511,458$                92,682$         

Premier Fabrication 2,519,500$                83,500$         

Titan Industries 2,650,000$                88,500$         

Selvaggio Steel 2,825,950$                89,950$         

Diverstech MetalFab 3,769,264$                201,454$       

Work Package 5.02 Structural & Misc. Steel Erection

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

Van Buskirk Steel 1,117,000$                63,700$         

Work Package 6.01 General Trades

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

P.J. Hoerr, Inc. 2,918,400$                51,678$         

Work Package 6.04 Millwork Supply

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

Benchmark Cabinets & Millwork 835,945$                    4,323$            

Work Package 8.02 Glazing

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

Kelly Glass 689,900$                    15,272$         

East Moline Glass 697,330$                    17,210$         

Bacon & Van Buskirk Glass 1,138,500$                30,000$         

4242



Work Package 9.01 Drywall, Metal Framing & Acoustical

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

Allied Construction Services 3,136,130$                8,240$           100,140$       

Associated Constructors 3,498,700$                No Change 99,500$         

Associated Constructiors Combo See Combo

RG Construction 3,549,216$                2,372$           175,182$       

Work Package 9.02 Flooring & Tile

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

Central IL Commercial Flooring 881,180$                    117,833$      1,033$            

Taza Construction 1,130,514$                80,915$        No Bid

Mid-State Terrazzo & Tile 1,291,500$                248,000$      (1,772)$          

Work Package 9.06 Painting

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

Midwest Commercial Coatings 375,000$                    2,600$            

Vogue Painting 412,800$                    5,700$            

CCIMW 441,920$                    No Bid

Dragoo Painting 536,200$                    12,740$         

Associated Constructors 737,400$                    5,900$            

Associated Constructors Combo 737,400$                    5,900$            

Work Package 13.02 Pre-Engineered Wood Building

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

Wagenbach Builders 98,416$                       

Blunier Builders 149,000$                    

CAD Construction 149,800$                    

Hein Construction 198,000$                    

4343



Work Package 14.01 Elevators

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

KONE, Inc. 804,000$                    

Otis Elevator Co. 908,937$                    

TK Elevator Late Bid - Not Opened

Work Package 21.01 Fire Suppression

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

Hitchcock Company 429,110$                    12,650$         

The PIPCO Companies 543,000$                    7,250$            

F.E. Moran 648,000$                    16,000$         

Twin Lakes Fire Protection 649,530$                    20,450$         

Apex Fire Protection 652,825$                    17,105$         

Tri-City Fire Protection 698,356$                    13,339$         

Work Package 22.01 Plumbing

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

Warner Mechanical 1,048,700$                38,800$         

J.C. Dillon, Inc. 1,084,844$                69,446$         

Tobin Brothers 1,238,000$                41,000$         

G.A. Rich & Sons 1,265,050$                43,500$         

E.L. Pruitt 1,651,000$                52,000$         

Dries Plumbing Late Bid - Not Opened

4444



Work Package 23.01 HVAC

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

Commercial Mechanical, Inc. 4,499,000$                149,000$       (60,000)$        

Montefusco HVAC 4,550,000$                142,000$       (72,000)$        

Warner Mechanical 4,585,000$                150,000$       (51,450)$        

H&S Mechanical 4,863,690$                188,348$       (39,085)$        

Illinois Piping Corp. 4,947,000$                165,000$       (77,000)$        

E.L. Pruitt 4,976,446$                161,000$       (75,000)$        

E.L. Pruitt Combo See Combo

The PIPCO Companies 4,996,000$                170,000$       (51,000)$        

Johns Service & Sales 5,230,786$                156,541$       (72,450)$        

Johns Service & Sales Combo See Combo

Work Package 26.01 Electrical, Communications & Security Electronics

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

Foster Jacob, Inc. 6,241,000$                103,700$      45,000$         83,000$         

Quick Electric 6,538,000$                135,000$      96,000$         77,000$         

Zeller Electric 6,670,240$                115,901$      62,892$         99,187$         

Fleming Electric 7,080,000$                107,300$      54,600$         97,000$         

CIES 7,660,000$                140,492$      86,764$         93,783$         

Laser Electric Late Bid - Not Opened

Work Package 31.01 Earthwork & Site Demolition

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

Hein Construction 1,100,000$                No Change 65.00$            80.00$           

Hein Construction Combo See Combo

4545



Work Package 32.02 Asphalt Paving

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

Tazewell County Asphalt 321,985$                    50.00$            

UCM 381,444$                    180.40$          

Work Package Combo 32.02 Site Concrete

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

P.J. Hoerr, Inc. 369,000$                    

Hein Construction 380,000$                    

Hein Construction Combo See Combo

Otto Baum 397,350$                    

Work Package Combo 32.04 Landscaping & Irrigation

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

Prairie View Landscaping 159,310$                    (3,800)$          

Chambers & Sons Landscaping 250,382$                    (6,181)$          

Penn Landscaping 294,961$                    (3,600)$          

CJL Landscaping 335,616$                    No Change

F&W Landscaping 350,000$                    (3,850)$          

Work Package 33.01 Site Utilities

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

Hein Construction 400,000$                    

Hein Construction Combo See Combo

G.A. Rich & Sons 842,500$                    

The PIPCO Companies 1,375,000$                

4646



Work Package Combo 9.01 Drywall & 9.06 Painting

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

Lowest Individual WP Bidders 3,511,130$  102,740$       

Associated Constructors 4,198,000$  105,400$       

Work Package Combo 22.01 Plumbing & 23.01 HVAC

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

Lowest Individual WP Bidders 5,547,700$  187,800$       (60,000)$        

Johns Service & Sales Combo 6,584,460$  200,270$       (72,450)$        

E.L. Pruitt Combo 6,561,446$  213,000$       (75,000)$        

Work Package Combo 31.01 Earthwork, 32.02 Site Concrete & 33.01 Site Utilities

Bidder Base Bid Alt #1 Alt #2 Alt #3 Alt #4 Alt #5 UP #1 UP #2 UP #3

Lowest Individual WP Bidders 1,869,000$  No Change

Hein Construction Combo 1,700,000$  No Change

4747



4848



4949



5050



5151



5252



5353



5454



5555



5656



5757



5858



5959



6060



6161



6262



6363



6464



6565



6666



6767



6868



6969



7070



7171



7272



7373



7474



7575



7676



7777



7878



7979



8080



8181



8282



8383



8484



8585



8686



8787



8888



    F-25-19 

COMMITTEE REPORT 

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 

 

Your Finance Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends that it be 
adopted by the Board: 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, the County’s Finance Committee recommends to the County board to authorize the 
following budget transfer for Community Development – County Farm 

• Transfer $1000.00 from Field Repairs (100-615-5163) to Chemicals (100-615-5164) 
 
WHEREAS, the transfer of funds is necessary to reconcile the balances owed following prepayment 
of chemicals FY24. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve the transfer of funds.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVEDTHAT THE County Clerk notified the County Board Office, Community 
Development, Finance, the Treasurer, and the Auditor of this action.  
 
PASSED THIS 30TH DAY OF JULY 2025 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
             
TAZEWELL COUNTY CLERK    TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD CHAIRMAN 

8989



 
 

 

 

COUNTY OF TAZEWELL 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Jaclynn Workman, Administrator 

11 South 4th Street, Room 400, Pekin, Illinois  61554 

      Phone: (309) 477-2235 / Email: zoning@tazewell-il.gov 

 

 

 

TO:  Chairman Harris and Finance Committee 

FROM:  Jaclynn Workman, Administrator 

DATE:  June 13th , 2025 

SUBJECT: Transfer 

 

 

 A transfer is being requested from the County Farm – Field Repairs (100-615-5163) to Chemical (100-615-5164) 

in the amount of $1000.00. Chemicals are pre-paid at the beginning of the year and balance carried out 

throughout. When the account was reconciled for FY24 there was a deficit of $601.30 owed for chemicals.  

 

Invoices throughout the year show a positive balance with no payment due, however a more detailed statement 

provides actual cost related to each application. We will begin tracking the actual cost to reconcile the pre-pay 

on internally and before the close of the fiscal year.  

 

Please feel free to contact me at your convenience if you have further questions.  

 

 

 

JW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11 South Fourth Street ~ McKenzie Building ~ Suite 400 ~ Pekin, Illinois 61554 

Phone: (309) 477-2235 ~ Fax: (309) 477-2358 ~ E-Mail: jworkman@tazewell-il.gov 
 
 9090

mailto:zoning@tazewell-il.gov


          F-25-20 

 

COMMITTEE REPORT 

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 

Your Finance Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends that it be adopted by the 
Board: 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, the County’s Finance Committee recommends to the County Board to authorize the following budget 
transfer for Community Development; and 

• Transfer $20,000.00 from Consulting (100-300-5252) to Building Code Inspections (100-300-5210) 
 
WHEREAS, the transfer of funds is necessary to cover the cost related to the use of contractual inspectors to 
ensure code compliance in Tazewell County; and  
 
WHEREAS, the increased utilization of the contractual inspectors is necessary due to the vacancy of the Building 
Inspector position; and  
 
WHEREAS, these funds are available for transfer due to budgeting for a shared cost at 20% of consulting with Tri-
County Regional Planning to update the Tazewell County Comprehensive Plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, Tazewell County was not awarded the grant necessary to cover the remaining 80% of the estimated 
cost of consultation; and  
 
WHEREAS, Tazewell County will not be pursuing consultation to update the comprehensive plan FY25. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve the transfer of funds.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVEDTHAT THE County Clerk notified the County Board Office, Community Development, 
Finance, the Treasurer and the Auditor of this action.  
 
PASSED THIS  30th DAY OF July 2025 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
             
TAZEWELL COUNTY CLERK    TAZEWELL COUNTY BOARD CHAIRMAN 

9191



 
 

 

 

COUNTY OF TAZEWELL 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Jaclynn Workman, Administrator 

11 South 4th Street, Room 400, Pekin, Illinois  61554 

      Phone: (309) 477-2235 / Email: zoning@tazewell-il.gov 

 

 

TO:  Chairman Harris and Finance Committee 

FROM:  Jaclynn Workman, Administrator 

DATE:  June 13th , 2025 

SUBJECT: Transfer 

 

 

 A transfer is requested from Consulting (100-615-5163) to Building Code Inspections (100-

615-5164) in the amount of $20,000.00. There is continued dependancy on the use of 

contractual inspectors due to the vacancy of the building inspector position. The funds are 

available in the consulting line, as we had budgeted 20% (40,000.00) of the cost to consult 

with Tri County Regional Planning to update the Tazewell County Comprehensive Plan. Tri-

County on our behalf applied for an IDOT grant that would have covered the remaining 80% 

(160,000) of the estimated consulting fee. Unfortunately, Tazewell County was not awarded 

the grant and therefore does not intend to proceed with the Comprehensive Plan updates in 

FY25. 

 

Please feel free to contact me at your convenience if you have further questions.  

 

JW 

 

 

 

 

 

11 South Fourth Street ~ McKenzie Building ~ Suite 400 ~ Pekin, Illinois 61554 

Phone: (309) 477-2235 ~ Fax: (309) 477-2358 ~ E-Mail: jworkman@tazewell-il.gov 
 
 9292

mailto:zoning@tazewell-il.gov


 
 
 COMMITTEE REPORT   F-25-21 
 
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 
 
Your Finance Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends 
that it be adopted by the Board: 
 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee recommends to the County Board to approve the 
quote from Heart Technologies for the purchase of 27 additional laptops including 
required workstation equipment; and 
 
WHEREAS, Tazewell County has a fully managed IT services agreement with Heart 
Technologies; and 
 
WHEREAS, Heart Technologies manages making recommendations for equipment, 
obtaining pricing, preparing the equipment, deploying the equipment, and 
troubleshooting the equipment, making it not conducive to competitive bidding; and 
 
WHEREAS, the cost for the purchase and deployment of 27 laptops for a total of 
$58,449.06. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approves the recommendation 
and authorizes the County Board Chairman to sign an agreement with Heart 
Technologies.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office, 
Finance Office, Treasurer, and Auditor of this action. 
 
PASSED THIS 30TH DAY OF JULY, 2025. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Tazewell County Clerk    Tazewell County Board Chairman 

9393



We have prepared a quote for:

Tazewell County Government

Laptop Replacements 2025

Quote # ME013907EP Version 1

Prepared by:
Matt Eppel

Engineered by:
Brandi Johnson

9494



3105 N Main St.
East Peoria, IL 61611
www.heart.net
3094277000

Products

Description Qty

Hp - Probook 16in - Ultra 5 Processor - 16GB RAM - 512GB SSD - Windows 11
Pro - 3 Yr Warranty

27

Hp - Wireless Keyboard Combo 27

Hp - Docking Station 27

Hp - 23.8in Monitor 54

IT Networking | Communications | Security | Life Safety | Infrastructure 2/5
9595



3105 N Main St.
East Peoria, IL 61611
www.heart.net
3094277000

Laptop Replacements 2025
Prepared by: Prepared for: Quote Information:

Heart East Peoria Tazewell County Government Quote #: ME013907EP

Matt Eppel
(309) 427-7267
meppel@heart.net
3105 N Main St.
East Peoria, IL 61611

Mike Deluhery
(309) 478-5704
MDeluhery@tazewell-il.gov
11 S. 4th Street
Pekin, IL  61554

Version: 1
Delivery Date: 06/17/2025
Expiration Date: 06/30/2025

Quote Summary

Description

Laptop Replacements 2025

Total: $58,449.06

Payment Schedule

Description Payments Interval Amount

Purchase Price: 50/30/20

50% Due on Signing 1 One-Time $29,224.53

30% on Receipt of Materials 1 One-Time $17,534.72

20% on Completion 1 One-Time $11,689.81

Payment Due at Signing

Description Amount

Purchase Price: 50/30/20: 50% Due on Signing

Total of 50% Due on Signing Payment $29,224.53

Taxes, shipping, handling and other fees may apply.  We reserve the right to cancel orders arising from pricing or other errors.

Heart East Peoria Tazewell County Government

Signature:

Name:

Title:

Date:

Signature:

Name: Mike Deluhery

Title:

Date:

IT Networking | Communications | Security | Life Safety | Infrastructure 3/5
9696



3105 N Main St.
East Peoria, IL 61611
www.heart.net
3094277000

Statement of Work

Customer Responsibility 

This job will not be taxable. Customer shall provide tax-exempt certificate.   

Provide adequate space for equipment in an environment suitable for the required equipment 

Provide open access to all wiring closets, panels and work areas.  

Provide 110v power as needed to support this installation.  

Heart Technologies, Inc., Responsibility 

Labor is included to configure, install, and test the equipment itemized in this proposal. 

Installation and Configuration Labor includes:

 Install Windows 11 Professional

 Perform firmware and Windows updates to the latest stable releases

 Join to the internal Domain

 Install and configure business applications

 Connect and configure compatible peripherals (docking stations, printers, scanners, etc.) 

 Migrate data from the old computer as needed

 Deploy to end user

Installation and configuration shall be coordinated with the customer to minimize downtime and will be performed during normal business 
hours, M-F 8:00 AM - 4:30 PM (Excluding Holidays).

Material Escalation Clause: If, during the performance of this contract, the price of materials increases significantly, through no 
fault of Heart Technologies, the price of quoted material shall be adjusted accordingly. Where the delivery of the quoted material 
or product is delayed by either manufacture or distribution supplier, through no fault of Heart Technologies, as a result of the 
shortage or unavailability of specific products or materials , Heart Technologies shall not be liable for any additional costs or 
damages associated with such delay(s).
 
ALL MATERIAL PRICING INCLUDED IN THIS PROPOSAL IS ONLY VALID FOR 30 DAYS.

Customer has reviewed and acknowledged statement of work.  __________ 

IT Networking | Communications | Security | Life Safety | Infrastructure 4/5
9797



3105 N Main St.
East Peoria, IL 61611
www.heart.net
3094277000

Standard Terms and Conditions

1. This proposal is in accordance with our understanding of the requirements of the project and from verbal information which we received from the Customer, or its agent, and if 
written plans and specifications are furnished by Customer, and HEART Technologies, Inc., (from here on referred to as HEART Technologies, Inc.) interpretation of them.  HEART 
Technologies, Inc. assumes no responsibility as to the accuracy of such plans and specifications.  It is further understood and agreed that this proposal and contract does not 
include any labor or materials not specifically mentioned herein.  Any additional work not covered herein shall be billed as time and material.
2. Terms and amount of payment shall be those specified herein.  If not specified in the proposal, payment shall be 50% down at contract signing, 30% upon receipt of materials, 
and the remaining 20% due upon completion of this contract where the work is completed within the same month as the billing period.  Where work continues beyond a period 
of 30 days, or is delayed for reasons beyond the control of HEART Technologies, Inc., monthly progress payments shall be paid in an amount equal to the labor and material on a 
percentage of completion basis of the job covered by this contract.  Payment shall be made to HEART Technologies, Inc. by the 10th of the month following the date of any billing. 
 HEART Technologies, Inc. shall not be required to proceed with the installation of the work if the payments applying on same have not been made as specified in the contract.  In 
the event suit is filed by HEART Technologies, Inc. to collect any Moneys due hereunder or to enforce any other provisions of the contract, the Customer agrees to pay all cost, and 
the attorney's fees incurred.  Past Due balances shall be charged finance charges at a rate of 1.5% per month.  Customer agrees to pay these charges, if for any reason payments 
are not received by due date.
3. Alterations or additional work ordered by Customer or his agent shall constitute an addition to this proposal, and shall be charged for on a time and material basis in 
accordance with the current prices shown in a locally recognized trade pricing standard, in effect at time of billing.  If any additions to the contract are ordered, the amount to be 
paid for the same shall be determined by the Customer and HEART Technologies, Inc. at the time that they are ordered, and if they do not agree upon an amount to be paid, then 
the Customer shall pay a reasonable price therefor.  If the change requested by the Customer shall reduce the amount of labor or material, or both, that HEART Technologies, Inc. 
shall furnish to the project, then the Customer and HEART Technologies, Inc. shall agree at the time that the change is requested on the amount of credit that shall be given by 
HEART Technologies, Inc. to the Customer, and if they do not agree upon an amount of credit then the reasonable value of the labor and material shall be credited to the 
Customer.  HEART Technologies, Inc. shall receive written orders for all additional work or changes signed by an authorized person before proceeding with such additions or 
changes.  However, if such written orders are not received this shall not affect the right of HEART Technologies, Inc. to receive payment as outlined above for said labor and 
materials so furnished.  Payments for additions or changes shall be made under the same terms and conditions as are embodied in the original proposal and contract.
4. All prices quoted herein are firm upon acceptance of this proposal, and are subject to correction prior to acceptance.  All written proposals are conditioned upon acceptance 
within time limit specified on the face of this proposal.  Verbal quotations are subject to immediate acceptance and terminate the day they are made.
5. It is a condition of this proposal that all materials or devices which are supplied by HEART Technologies, Inc. for installation will be of a type that is approved for the purpose.  It 
is further stipulated that the Customer will assume the same responsibility for any material or equipment not furnished by HEART Technologies, Inc..
6. This proposal including any plans, specifications, drawings or engineering data are furnished by HEART Technologies, Inc. to Customer in trust for determining the scope of the 
work to be performed and shall remain the property of HEART Technologies, Inc..  They shall be immediately returned to HEART Technologies, Inc. in the event it is not awarded 
the contract to perform such work.  If such plans, specifications or other data are used for the purpose of obtaining other bids or in connection with the installation, the Customer 
shall pay HEART Technologies, Inc. for all expense in preparing such plans or other data on an engineering fee basis.
7. Unless otherwise provided herein, the amount of any present or future sales or other tax, Federal, State or City, which we now, or hereafter shall be required to pay, either on 
our own behalf or on behalf of the Customer, or otherwise, with respect to any labor or material covered by this proposal shall be added to the prices quoted herein and paid by 
the Customer in the same manner and with the same effect as if originally added hereto.
8. If the Customer shall enter into a sale or shall sell all or any part of the premises herein involved, the full amount remaining unpaid on this contract becomes due and payable 
within 48 hours after date of such sale or agreement of sale at the option of HEART Technologies, Inc..  Title to any of the material sold or installed hereunder by HEART 
Technologies, Inc. shall remain HEART Technologies, Inc. until all the terms hereof have been complied, with, and in the event such materials are affixed to realty, it is expressly 
understood and agreed that they shall remain personal property subject to removal by HEART Technologies, Inc. The owner, buyer and Customer hereby waive any and all claims 
for damage to said realty or buildings caused by the removal of said materials or any part thereof.
9. This proposal is contingent upon approval by the authority having jurisdiction.  Should additions or modifications be recommended by the authority having jurisdiction, or 
should the scope of protection change, this proposal will be adjusted accordingly.
10. We represent that the products listed within this quotation are free from defects in material or workmanship.  Any product or part, thereof, which proves to be defective in 
workmanship or material during a period equal to manufacturer's warranty but not to exceed twelve (12) months from the date of purchase (unless otherwise stated in the 
proposal) shall be replaced at no charge during normal working hours. 
11. Any repairs or modifications of the system as installed by the owner, owner's representative or any third party will void the warranty as stated herein.
12. HEART Technologies, Inc. maintains the capability to service your system using our factory-trained technicians from our nearest service facility on a 24-hour emergency basis.
13. The price has been determined on the basis of straight time and normal work week.  No overtime will be worked unless ordered by Customer or his representative.  In the 
event overtime is worked, the overtime premium rates plus HEART Technologies, Inc. regular mark-up for overhead and profit will be paid as an extra.
14. Upon acceptance, it is understood and agreed that this contract cannot be canceled except by mutual consent, and then only after payment to HEART Technologies, Inc. for all 
labor, material and job costs plus his regular mark-up for overhead and profit.
15. This agreement, and any issues arising in connection with it, shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Illinois.
16. This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior proposals and all previous 
negotiations and agreements, representations and warranties, written or oral.

Authorization to proceed with work or issuance of purchase orders by Customer to HEART Technologies, Inc. accepting any or all parts of this proposal shall be subject to the 
foregoing conditions.

It is the policy of HEART Technologies, Inc.  to provide equal opportunity in employment for all qualified persons and to prohibit discrimination in employment on the basis of race, 
creed, color, sex, age, national origin, religion, disability or veteran status.

IT Networking | Communications | Security | Life Safety | Infrastructure 5/5
9898



COMMITTEE REPORT HR-25-13 

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 

Your Human Resources Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and 
recommends that it be adopted by the Board: 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
R E S O L U T I O N 

WHEREAS, the Human Resources Committee recommends to the County Board to 
terminate the physician hospital organization agreement (“Agreement”) with Health Plus, 
Inc effective September 1, 2025.; and  

WHEREAS, the County entered into the Agreement with an effective June 1, 2022 and 
the amended Agreement has an expiration date of December 31, 2026; and 

WHEREAS, the Agreement provides discounts for in-network services, with the primary 
hospital system being the Carle Health network; and  

WHEREAS, members of the Insurance Review Committee and employees have 
expressed a desire to have broader in-network providers; and  

WHEREAS, Health Plus, Inc. has conveyed their willingness to accept the Agreement 
being terminated effective September 1, 2025; and 

WHEREAS, the County’s Health Insurance consultant The Wyman Group has presented 
an option that will significantly expand the County’s in-network providers, potentially 
reduce costs, and will be able to continue to work with the County’s third-party 
administrator Consociate Health. 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approves terminating the 
agreement and authorizes the County Board Chairman or County Administrator to provide 
notification to Health Plus, Inc. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office, the 
Human Resources Department, and the Auditor of this action. 

PASSED THIS 30th DAY OF JULY, 2025. 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ ________________________________ 
County Clerk  County Board Chairman 

9999



           
  Revised 
 COMMITTEE REPORT HR-25-14 
 
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 
 
Your Human Resources Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and 
recommends that it be adopted by the Board: 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 

WHEREAS, the County's Human Resources Committee recommends to the County 
Board to approve the Aetna Signature Administrators PPO Managed Care Services 
Agreement; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Aetna Network will make available to Tazewell County plan participants 
a nation-wide network of healthcare providers and facilities allowing for more care 
options; and 
 
WHEREAS, the agreement with Aetna maintains the current level of coverage and 
benefits for plan participants; and 
 
WHEREAS, the agreement is for an initial term of one year and then automatically renews 
for consecutive one-year terms; and  
 
WHEREAS, this contract is not conducive to competitive bidding due to multiple factors 
including: 
 

• The requirement that the managed services provider selected must have a 
relationship with Consociate, our current TPA (third party administrator) under 
contract.  Consociate has an ongoing relationship with Aetna making Aetna a 
uniquely workable option.   

• Under our current network, the number of providers available to our employees is 
diminishing, negatively effecting the in-network/best value care options for our 
employees.  This is a situation which needs to be addressed in a timely manner 
for the benefit of our employees; and 

 
WHEREAS, the service fee is $16.25 per employee per month.  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve the agreement. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Board authorizes the County Board Chairman 
to sign all documents relating to this agreement.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office,  
Human Resources Department, and the Auditor of this action in order that this action.  
 
 
 

100100



 
 
PASSED THIS 30th DAY OF JULY, 2025. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
County Clerk      County Board Chairman 

101101



Aetna Signature Administrators® PPO 

Managed Care Services Agreement 

   

This Aetna Signature Administrators® PPO Managed Care Services Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered 
into, between Aetna Life Insurance Company, on behalf of itself and its applicable affiliates (“Aetna”) and Tazewell 
County, a self-funded plan sponsor (“Customer”) (together, the “Parties”) as of the Effective Date shown below. 
 
TPA: Consociate Health 

EFFECTIVE DATE: August 01, 2025 

1. TERM  
 
This Agreement begins on the Effective Date, continues for an initial term of one (1) year, and then automatically 
renews for consecutive one (1) year terms.  The Agreement may be terminated by either Party, for any reason or 
no reason at all, with at least ninety (90) days advance written notice to the other Party.  Additional termination 
provisions are included in the Agreement. 

 

2. DEFINITIONS 

 

2.1. Applicable Law. All applicable Federal and states laws, regulations and governmental directives related to 
this Agreement, including, but not limited to, ERISA, ACA, HIPAA and applicable federal and state privacy 
laws and regulations. 
 

2.2. Aetna/TPA Agreement.  The Network Administration, Coordination and Oversight Agreement between 
Aetna and TPA, which enables Customer to contract directly with Aetna for the ASA Program, as further 
described in this Agreement.  

2.3. Customer/TPA Agreement. The administrative services agreement between Customer and TPA, through 
which Customer contracts with TPA to obtain third party claims administration and related services. 

2.4. ASA Program.  The Aetna Signature Administrators(s) program, which offers health care provider network, 
risk assumption, medical/case management and/or other services to Customer, as further described in this 
Agreement. 

2.5. Provider Contract Rates. The contract rates and terms negotiated by Aetna and Participating Providers with 
respect to the Participating Providers’ network participation with the ASA Program. 

2.6. Covered Services. Those health care and related services for which a Member is entitled to receive coverage 
under the Plan, and that are rendered by Participating Providers in accordance with this Agreement. 

2.7. Member. A person covered by or enrolled in the Plan.  Member includes the subscriber and any of the 
subscriber’s eligible dependents. 

2.8. Participating Provider. A health care provider that participates as an in-network provider for the ASA 
Program.  

2.9. Plan.  Customer’s self-funded health benefits plan(s). 

2.10. Services. The Services provided by Aetna to Customer under the ASA Program. 

2.11. Service Fees.  The service fees payable by Customer to Aetna in exchange for the ASA Program. 

2.12. Stop Loss Policy. The separate stop loss policy: (a) in effect between Customer and a stop loss carrier 
specifically approved by Aetna; and (b) in relation to which a portion of the financial risk for the Plan is 

102102



borne by Aetna through a reinsurance agreement between Aetna and such stop loss carrier. 

 
3. ASA PROGRAM ACCESS 

 

3.1. Customer understands that access to the ASA Program is subject to the following rules and agrees to the 
following: 
 
3.1.1. Customer/TPA Agreement. Customer will maintain, throughout the term of this Agreement, a 

Customer/TPA Agreement with TPA and will comply with the terms of that agreement. 
 
3.1.2. Utilization Management/Case Management.  Customer understands that TPA may be subject to an 

agreement with an Aetna affiliate to obtain a range of utilization management and/or case 
management services that may be provided to the Plan. Consistent with that contract, Customer 
agrees that it may not use any third party other than TPA to perform utilization management and/or 
case management services for Plan in-network claims, except as specifically agreed in advance, in 
writing, by Aetna.  Customer understands that Aetna reserves the right to perform case management 
with respect to any Member. 

 
3.1.3. Stop Loss.  Customer agrees to maintain an in-force Stop Loss Policy throughout the term of this 

Agreement. 
 
3.1.4. Claim and Clinical Policies.  Customer acknowledges that, consistent with the Aetna/TPA 

Agreement, access to the ASA Program is subject to the application of certain Aetna claim and 
clinical policies, including, but not limited to, Aetna’s Clinical Policy Bulletins (CPBs) as amended 
from time to time.  

 
3.1.5. Pharmacy Rebates. Customer acknowledges and agrees that rebates for pharmaceuticals that are 

administered and paid through the plan rather than the participant’s pharmacy benefit portion of the 
plan will be retained by Aetna as compensation for the services provided under this Agreement. 
Aetna will disclose to Customer, on an annual basis the rebates collected and attributable to your 
plan (without reduction by any portion that may be retained by Aetna).  Aetna will provide Customer 
all information concerning the rebates collected that is necessary for you to comply with any 
applicable reporting requirements.  Customer hereby grants Aetna the authority to enter into 
necessary agreements on its behalf to engage CVS Caremark for the exclusive provision of 
manufacturer rebate services for your plan.1    

 
4. SERVICE FEES AND PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS 

 

4.1. Service Fee Amounts.  
 

4.1.1. As of the Effective Date, the Service Fees are:  
  $16.25 per employee per month 
  

4.2. Service Fee Increases.  After each annual period that this Agreement is in effect, Aetna may increase the 
Service Fees by providing Customer (via TPA) with written notice of the new Service Fees, at least ninety 
(90) days prior to the start of any annual renewal period; no amendment to this Agreement shall be required 
and increases will automatically take effect upon the renewal date, unless this Agreement is terminated prior 
to the renewal date. 
 

1 CVS Caremark and its affiliates may contract with pharmaceutical companies for the provision of services, such as care management, program administration, adverse event and other data reporting, 
and fulfillment services. CVS Caremark may receive compensation for such services.  CVS Caremark and its affiliates may receive administrative fees from pharmaceutical companies of up to six percent of the 
wholesale acquisition cost of the products dispensed.  CVS Caremark affiliated pharmacies may contract with pharmaceutical companies for the purchase of products and these contracts may provide for prompt pay 
discounts and other concurrent or retrospective purchase discounts on products purchased for pharmacy dispensing inventories.  For clarity, the discounts, fees and other compensation described in this paragraph 
are independent of the manufacturer rebates. 

103103



4.3. Service Fees Upon Termination.  Upon termination, Service Fees will be charged for an additional three (3) 
months to cover twelve (12) months of runout processing.  

 
4.4. Customer Obligation to Make Payment. Funding of claims from Participating Providers, Service Fees and 

any applicable Stop Loss Policy premiums is the obligation of Customer.  Although claims processing and 
fee/premium remittance functions may be delegated by Customer to its contracted TPA, in the event that 
TPA does not forward payment to Participating Providers and/or fails to remit Service Fees and applicable 
Stop Loss Policy premiums to Aetna, in a timely manner, Aetna may demand and collect such 
payments/amounts directly from Customer.   

 

5. MEMBER ELIGIBILITY  

 

5.1. Eligibility Information. Customer agrees to supply TPA, electronically, with all industry-standard 
information regarding the eligibility of Members.  Customer agrees that Aetna will not be responsible in any 
way for any delay or error caused by: (i) Customer’s failure to furnish complete and accurate eligibility 
information to TPA; or (ii) TPA’s failure to correctly administer accurate eligibility information, in a timely 
manner.  
 

5.2. Retroactive Member Terminations. Customer understands and agrees that, while Aetna will use 
commercially reasonable efforts to cooperate with Customer in making retroactive adjustments to 
Customer’s bills for terminated Members, a maximum of three (3) month's credit for Member terminations 
will be provided. 

 

6. FUNDING OF CLAIMS  
 
6.1. Participating Provider Claims. Customer agrees to promptly fund claims for Covered Services, in accordance 

with Applicable Law, the terms of the Customer/TPA Agreement, and the Provider Contract Rates. 
 

6.2. Provider Contract Rate Application.  Customer understands and agrees that no rates other than the Provider 
Contract Rates may be applied to claims for Covered Services and that no reductions or administrative fees 
of any kind (e.g., reasonable and customary adjustments) shall be applied to or against the Provider Contract 
Rates.  Customer understands that retroactive adjustments are occasionally made to the Provider Contract 
Rates (e.g., because the federal government does not issue cost of living data in sufficient time for an 
adjustment to be made on a timely basis, or because contract negotiations were not completed by the end of 
the prior rate period).  Customer's obligation to fund amounts related to such adjustments will survive the 
termination of this Agreement.   

 
6.3. Participating Provider Contract Requirements. Customer specifically understands that certain network 

participation agreements with Participating Providers may be negotiated on a case-by- case basis and may 
include special requirements (e.g., limits on retrospective audits or precertification requirements; unique 
arbitration provisions). Customer shall cooperate fully with TPA’s administration of claims in accordance 
with the applicable Participating Provider’s network agreement, including any specially negotiated terms in 
that contract.  Customer understands that the Provider Contract Rates may include, but are not limited to, 
various methodologies, such as value based contracting terms, risk share components and/or other similar 
arrangements. Customer understands that Customer’s or TPA’s failure to comply with the terms of a 
Participating Provider agreement (including, but not limited to timely claim payment provisions) may result 
in the loss of the discount/Provider Contract Rate offered by the Participating Provider. 

 

7. PLAN INFORMATION AND BENEFIT REQUIREMENTS 

 

7.1. Plan Information.  Customer will provide or instruct TPA to provide Aetna with: (i) all Plan documents 
within (15) days of Aetna’s request; and (ii) reasonably necessary information requested by Aetna regarding 
administration of the Plan.  Customer agrees that Aetna will not be responsible in any way for any delay or 

104104



error caused by Customer's or TPA’s failure to furnish correct Plan documents or relevant information 
regarding Plan administration in a timely manner.  

7.2. Plan Design. Customer agrees that the Plan will utilize a preferred provider organization (PPO) benefit 
model, with no primary care physician referrals required, and that it will contain a minimum twenty percent 
(20%) coinsurance differential between in-network (preferred) and out-of-network (non-preferred) benefits.  
(For purposes of illustration, if the out-of-network benefits have a 70/30% coinsurance, then the in-network 
coinsurance shall be at least 90/10%). If a Plan utilizes copayments, then the differentials for in-network 
versus out-of-network benefits shall be actuarially comparable to the coinsurance differentials set forth 
above.  A minimum of 80% of the membership under the Plan must access the Aetna network.  Customer’s 
Plans utilizing Network Providers must provide that Member and Plan responsibility for all Covered 
Services shall be based on a percentage of the negotiated contract rate between Aetna and the applicable 
Participating Provider (after deductible or copayments) and not on any other basis (such as a percentage of 
usual and customary charges or a percentage of Medicare allowable amounts.) ASA may not be offered 
alongside a reference-based pricing plan option.  For purposes of clarification the term “referenced based 
pricing” includes, but is not limited to, plan coverage set at a percentage of Medicare allowable charges or 
other pricing reference point (e.g., FairHealth database).  Plans may not require member coinsurance 
amounts greater than 30% of the contract rate and Member coinsurance amounts will be based on the 
Provider Contract Rate.   

 
8. NETWORK  

 

8.1. Participating Provider Network. Aetna will make available to Customer its network of Participating 
Providers for the ASA Program.  Customer understands that Aetna has no obligation to make any specific 
health care provider(s) available to Members.  Customer acknowledges that Aetna does not provide medical 
care or treatment and that Participating Providers are solely responsible for the care and treatment they 
provide; that Participating Providers are not employees or agents of Aetna; and that Aetna is not responsible 
for clinical outcomes. 
 

8.2. Aetna Institutes of ExcellenceTM.  Customer agrees that Aetna’s network of participating facilities for 
transplant and transplant-related services (known, as of the Effective Date, as the Institutes of Excellence® 
transplant network) will be included with the Plan and utilized as the primary transplant network for the 
Plan.  
 

8.3. Aetna Gene-based, Cellular and other Innovative TherapiesTM (“GCIT” and “GCIT Network”).  Aetna’s 
network of participating facilities specifically contracted for GCIT services will be included with Plan and 
will be utilized as the primary GCIT network for the Plan.  The Plan shall require that GCIT services are 
performed at a facility within the GCIT Network and will only be covered at the Aetna GCIT network rate 
or up to 100% of average wholesale acquisition price (in situations where a GCIT facility could not be used).  

 

9. TERMINATION 

 

9.1. Customer understands and agrees that Aetna may terminate Customer’s access to the Services (and, thereby, 
this Agreement) under the following circumstances: 
 
a. If Customer fails to respond within five (5) business days of written notice by Aetna or TPA to provide 

funds for the payment of claims to Participating Providers, Aetna shall have the right to suspend Services 
until the requested funds have been provided; Aetna may terminate the Agreement immediately upon 
transmission of notice to Customer by mail, facsimile transmission or other means of communication 
(including electronic mail).  
 

b. If Customer fails to pay Service Fees within thirty (30) calendar days of written notice of unpaid Service 
Fees by Aetna or if TPA fails to forward payment to Aetna, Aetna shall have the right to suspend 
Services until the Service Fees have been paid; Aetna may terminate this Agreement immediately upon 

105105



transmission of notice to Customer by mail, facsimile transmission or other means of communication 
(including electronic mail).   

 
In the event of the termination of the Aetna/TPA Agreement, Customer/TPA Agreement or the Stop Loss 
Policy, for any reason, this Agreement shall terminate automatically.  Unless the Agreement is terminated 
by Aetna due to Customer’s breach of its provisions, Aetna will continue to perform Services for benefits 
under the Plan that were incurred prior to but not processed as of the termination date, and which were 
received by Aetna not more than twelve (12) months following the termination date, subject to Customer’s 
continued compliance with this Agreement. 

  
10. CONFIDENTIALITY 

 
Without limiting any obligations contained in the Agreement, Customer understands and agrees that Aetna’s 
data, procedures, materials, lists, systems and other non-publicly available information are confidential and 
proprietary to Aetna, and Customer agrees that it will not provide any Confidential Information to any third party 
without Aetna’s prior written consent.  Customer further agrees that it will not use the Confidential Information 
or portions thereof, for any purpose other than to perform its obligations under this Agreement. Aetna’s 
confidentiality obligations with respect to the information of Plan members (“Members”) are set forth in the 
Business Associate Agreement between Aetna and TPA. Confidential Information does not include Provider 
Contract Rates, Participating Provider agreements or Service Fees. 
 

11. AETNA NOT CLAIMS FIDUCIARY 

 

Customer agrees that, under no circumstances shall Aetna or any of its affiliates be considered the “appropriate 
named fiduciary” for purposes of reviewing denied claims under the terms of the Plan and that none of its Plan 
materials or other communications to Members shall contradict this provision. 

 
12. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS 

 

Aetna and Customer are independent contractors and not employees or agents of each other.  Customer 
understands and acknowledges that Aetna is neither the insurer nor third party administrator of the Plan and that, 
under no circumstances, is Aetna responsible for making or confirming eligibility decisions or coverage 
determinations, or for funding provider claims or other charges.  Therefore, Customer hereby agrees to indemnify 
and hold harmless Aetna and its affiliates from and against that portion of any and all claims, liabilities, causes 
of action, judgments, damages, losses, costs and expenses (including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ 
fees and costs) (collectively, “Claims”) arising directly from: (a) Customer’s breach of its obligations under this 
Agreement including, but not limited to, Customer’s failure to provide timely, accurate eligibility information 
regarding a Member to TPA and/or a Participating Provider; and/or (b) the funding, administration, processing, 
determination or denial of a claim under a Plan.  Aetna agrees to discharge its obligations under this Services 
Agreement with that level of reasonable care which a similarly situated provider of network and related services 
would exercise under similar circumstances and agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Customer from and 
against that portion of any Claims arising directly from Aetna’s failure to provide the Services in accordance with 
that standard of care. 

 
13. MISCELLANEOUS    

 
13.1. Subject to the terms of the separate Stop Loss Policy, this Agreement constitutes the entire understanding 

between the parties and supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous oral or written communications 
or proposals not expressly included herein. This Agreement may be amended only upon the mutual written 
agreement of Aetna and Customer or as required (in Aetna’s determination) by Applicable Law.  To the 
extent not preempted by Federal law, this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Connecticut.  This Agreement may not be assigned or delegated, in whole or in part, by Customer. In the 
event that any provision of this Program Agreement is deemed unenforceable, such provision shall be 
severed and the remaining provisions shall continue to apply in full force and effect. By executing this 

106106



Agreement, Customer acknowledges and agrees that it has had the opportunity to review the Agreement 
with the counsel of its choice and intends to be legally bound by the same. The waiver by either Party of a 
breach or violation of any provision of this Agreement will not operate as or be construed to be a waiver 
of any subsequent breach of this Agreement.  Other than as expressly set forth in this Agreement, no third 
persons or entities are intended to be or are third party beneficiaries of or under the Agreement, including, 
but not limited to, Members.  Headings in the Agreement are for convenience only and do not affect the 
meaning of the Agreement. 

 
13.2. Dispute Resolution. Aetna will provide an internal mechanism under which Customer can raise issues, 

concerns, controversies or claims regarding the obligations of the Parties under this Agreement.  Customer 
will exhaust Aetna’s internal mechanism before instituting any arbitration or other permitted legal 
proceeding.  The Parties agree that any discussions and negotiations held during this process will be treated 
as settlement negotiations and will be inadmissible into evidence in any court proceeding, except to prove 
the existence of a binding settlement agreement. 

 
13.3. Arbitration.  Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the breach, 

termination, or validity thereof, except for temporary, preliminary, or permanent injunctive relief or any 
other form of equitable relief, shall be settled by binding arbitration in Hartford, CT, administered by the 
American Arbitration Association ("AAA") and conducted by a sole arbitrator in accordance with the 
AAA's Commercial Arbitration Rules ("Rules"). The arbitration shall be governed by the Federal 
Arbitration Act, 9 U.S.C. §§ 1-16, to the exclusion of state laws inconsistent therewith or that would 
produce a different result, and judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered by any 
court having jurisdiction thereof. Except as may be required by law or to the extent necessary in connection 
with a judicial challenge, or enforcement of an award, neither a party nor the arbitrator may disclose the 
existence, content, record or results of an arbitration. Fourteen (14) calendar days before the hearing, the 
parties will exchange and provide to the arbitrator (a) a list of witnesses they intend to call (including any 
experts) with a short description of the anticipated direct testimony of each witness and an estimate of the 
length thereof, and (b) pre-marked copies of all exhibits they intend to use at the hearing. Depositions for 
discovery purposes shall not be permitted. The arbitrator may award only monetary relief and is not 
empowered to award damages other than compensatory damages. 

 
13.4. Insurance. Each Party agrees to maintain industry standard insurance coverage or a comparable program 

of self-insurance. 
 
13.5. Limitation of Liability.  A Party’s liability, if any, for damages to the other Party related to this Agreement, 

will be limited to the damaged Party’s actual damages. NEITHER PARTY WILL BE LIABLE TO THE 
OTHER FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER.  
This section will survive the termination of this Agreement. 

 
13.6. Notices.  Notices required to terminate or non-renew the Agreement must be sent by U.S. mail or nationally 

recognized courier, return receipt requested, to the applicable Party’s most currently updated address.  Any 
other notices required under this Agreement may be sent by letter, electronic mail or other generally 
accepted media, to the applicable Party’s last updated address. 

13.7. Use of Name.  Customer agrees that Aetna may make lawful references to Customer in informing health 
care providers as to the organizations and plans for which Services are to be provided. 

 
13.8. Compliance.  Customer agrees that it shall, throughout the term of this Agreement, operate and administer 

the Plan and perform its obligations hereunder in compliance with Applicable Law.  Aetna agrees that it 
shall, throughout the term of this Agreement, operate in material compliance with Applicable Law related 
to the performance of its obligations under this Agreement.   

 

107107



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Parties have executed this Agreement by their duly authorized officers, 
intending to be legally bound hereby. 

 

TAZEWELL COUNTY AETNA LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 

  

By:_____________________________ By:_________________________________ 

Printed Name:_____________________ Printed Name:_________________________ 

Title:____________________________ Title:________________________________ 

Date:____________________________ Date:________________________________ 

 

108108



          COMMITTEE REPORT HR-25-15 
 
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 
 
Your Human Resources Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and 
recommends that it be adopted by the Board: 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 

WHEREAS, the County's Human Resources Committee recommends to approve 
updates to the County’s Health Plan as provided in the attached Summary of Benefits 
and Coverage documents; and 
 
WHEREAS, the current Health Plan does not cover out-of-network costs when a plan 
participant resides within a 40-mile local radius, except in limited circumstances; and 
 
WHEREAS, with the approval of the Aetna program, the County will have a significantly 
expanded national list of in-network providers; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Aetna plan requires differentiation between in-network and out-of-
network; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Aetna plan will allow for removing the lack of out-of-network coverage 
within the 40-mile radius requirement and replacing it with the out-of-network coverage 
provided in the attached Summary of Benefits and Coverage, with most out-of-network 
services having a 40% coinsurance unless provided otherwise; and 
 
WHEREAS, the change will be effective September 1, 2025. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approves the recommendations 
and directs Consociate to incorporate the changes into the Health Plan. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office, the 
Human Resources Department and Consociate of this action in order that this resolution 
be fully implemented. 
 
PASSED THIS 30th DAY OF July, 2025. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
County Clerk      County Board Chairman 

109109



Summary of Benefits and Coverage: What this Plan Covers & What You Pay For Covered Services Coverage Period: 9/1/2025 – 11/30/2026 
Tazewell County, Health Benefit Plan Traditional PPO 500 Plan Coverage for: Individual, Family | Plan Type: PPO 
 

The Summary of Benefits and Coverage (SBC) document will help you choose a health plan. The SBC shows you how you and the plan would 
share the cost for covered health care services. NOTE: Information about the cost of this plan (called the premium) will be provided separately. 
This is only a summary. For more information about your coverage, or to get a copy of the complete terms of coverage, contact your Human Resources 

department. For general definitions of common terms, such as allowed amount, balance billing, coinsurance, copayment, deductible, provider, or other underlined 
terms, see the Glossary. You can view the Glossary at www.consociatehealth.com or call 1-800-798-2422 to request a copy. 

 

Important Questions Answers Why This Matters: 

What is the Calendar 
Year overall 
deductible? 

For network providers/out-of-network providers 
combined: 
$500 Individual $1,000 Family 

Generally, you must pay all of the costs from providers up to the calendar year deductible 
amount before this plan begins to pay. If you have other family members on the plan, each 
family member must meet their own individual deductible until the total amount of 
deductible expenses paid by all family members meets the overall family deductible. 

Are there services 
covered before you 
meet your 
deductible? 

Yes. Preventive care, emergency room, network 
charges where copayments apply, and 
prescription drug copayments are covered before 
you meet your deductible. 

This plan covers some items and services even if you haven’t yet met the deductible 
amount. But a copayment or coinsurance may apply. For example, this plan covers certain 
preventive services without cost-sharing and before you meet your deductible. See a list of 
covered preventive services at https://www.healthcare.gov/coverage/preventive-care-
benefits/. 

Are there other 
deductibles for 
specific services? 

No You don’t have to meet deductibles for specific services. 

What is the Calendar 
Year out-of-pocket 
limit for this plan? 

For network providers/out-of-network providers 
combined: $1,300 Individual $2,600 Family 

The out-of-pocket limit is the most you could pay in a calendar year for covered services. If 
you have other family members in this plan, they have to meet their own out-of-pocket 
limits until the overall family out-of-pocket limit has been met. 

What is not included 
in the out-of-pocket 
limit? 

Premiums, balance-billed charges, copayments, 
dental/vision, penalties for failure to obtain 
preauthorization, ineligible charges and health 
care this plan doesn’t cover. 

Even though you pay these expenses, they don’t count toward the out–of–pocket limit. 

Will you pay less if 
you use a network 
provider? 

Yes. See www.consociate.com or call  
1-800-798-2422 for a list of network providers. 
You can also see www.healthpluspeoria.com or 
call 1-309-671-8358. aetna.com/asa 
 (If you are outside of the network service area, 
please contact MultiPlan (www.multiplan.com) for 
a PHCS-Out of Area Provider.)  

This plan uses a provider network. You will pay less if you use a provider in the plan’s 
network. You will pay the most if you use an out-of-network provider, and you might 
receive a bill from a provider for the difference between the provider’s charge and what 
your plan pays (balance billing). Be aware, your network provider might use an out-of-
network provider for some services (such as lab work). Check with your provider before 
you get services. Out-of-network benefits are not available unless you are outside of 
the network area or unless the treatment is not offered at the Network facility. 

Do you need a 
referral to see a 
specialist? 

No You can see the specialist you choose without a referral. 

 
All coinsurance costs shown in this chart are after your deductible has been met, if a deductible applies. 

110110

https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#premium
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#allowed-amount
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#balance-billing
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
http://www.consociatehealth.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#cost-sharing
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/coverage/preventive-care-benefits/
https://www.healthcare.gov/coverage/preventive-care-benefits/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#premium
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#balance-billed
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
http://www.consociate.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
http://www.healthpluspeoria.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network
http://www.multiplan.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#balance-billing
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#balance-billing
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#referral
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#referral
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible


 

Out-of-network benefits are not available unless you are outside of the network area or treatment is not offered at the Network facility. 
Common Medical 

Event Services You May Need 
What You Will Pay Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important 

Information Network Provider 
(You will pay the least) 

Out-of-Network Provider 
(You will pay the most)  

The plan includes services at BJC HealthCare Center of Excellence Network (BJC COE). 
For Services at BJC COE, the deductible and out of pocket expenses will be waived. 

If you visit a health 
care provider’s office 
or clinic 

Primary care visit to treat 
an injury or illness $25 copayment 40% 20% coinsurance 

Telemedicine with Walmart Virtual Care: 
 Call 1-855-636-3669. Chiropractic Care 
covered at 20% coinsurance for Network 
Providers. Out-of-network benefits are not 
available unless you are outside of the network 
area or treatment is not offered at the Network 
facility. 

Specialist visit $25 copayment 40% 20% coinsurance 

Preventive care/screening/ 
immunization No Charge No Charge  

40%  coinsurance 

You may have to pay for services that aren’t 
preventive. Ask your provider if the services 
needed are preventive. Then check what your 
plan will pay for. 

If you have a test 

Diagnostic test (x-ray, 
blood work) 

Office: 20% coinsurance 
Outpatient: 10% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

Imaging: Preauthorization is required for 
Advanced Radiology including Nuclear 
Medicine and Nuclear Cardiology, or benefits 
could be reduced. Out-of-network benefits are 
not available unless you are outside of the 
network area or treatment is not offered at the 
Network facility. 

Imaging (CT/PET scans, 
MRIs) 

Facility: 10% coinsurance 
Physician: 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

If you need drugs to 
treat your illness or 
condition 
More information about 
prescription drug 
coverage is available at 
Smithrx.com or  
1-844-454-5201. 

Generic drugs Retail 30-day: $12 copayment 
90-day: $24 copayment 

Not Covered 

Covers up to a 30-day supply (retail);  
90-day supply (retail and mail order).  
 
Retirees and/or Retiree’s spouses eligible for 
Medicare are not covered by the Drug Program. 

Preferred brand drugs Retail 30-day: $30 copayment 
90-day: $60 copayment 

Non-preferred brand drugs Retail 30-day: $50 copayment 
90-day: $100 copayment 

Specialty drugs $50 copayment Not Covered Covers up to a 30-day supply 

If you have outpatient 
surgery 

Facility fee (e.g., 
ambulatory surgery 
center) 

10% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 
Preauthorization is required or benefits could 
be reduced. Out-of-network benefits are not 
available unless you are outside of the network 
area or treatment is not offered at the Network 
facility. Physician/surgeon fees 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

If you need immediate 
medical attention 

Emergency room care 
Facility: $300 copayment;  

After Facility copayment, other providers for emergency 
services: 10% coinsurance after In Network Deductible  

Preauthorization is required if admitted.  
Copay waived if admitted.  

Emergency medical 
transportation 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance None 
Urgent care $75 copayment $75 copayment 40% 20% None 

111111

https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
http://www.consociatehealth.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#screening
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#diagnostic-test
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#prescription-drug-coverage
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#prescription-drug-coverage
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialty-drug
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#emergency-room-care-emergency-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#emergency-medical-transportation
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#emergency-medical-transportation
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#urgent-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment


Out-of-network benefits are not available unless you are outside of the network area or treatment is not offered at the Network facility. 
Common Medical 

Event Services You May Need 
What You Will Pay Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important 

Information Network Provider 
(You will pay the least) 

Out-of-Network Provider 
(You will pay the most)  
coinsurance 

If you have a hospital 
stay 

Inpatient or Outpatient 
treatment - Facility  10% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance Preauthorization is required or benefits could 

be reduced. Out-of-network benefits are not 
available unless you are outside of the network 
area or treatment is not offered at the Network 
facility. 

Inpatient or Outpatient:  
Services, Physician 
Charges, Surgery 
Services, Hospital care 

20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

If you need behavioral 
health services, or 
substance use 
services 

Office Visit  $25 copayment 40% 20% coinsurance Out-of-network benefits are not available unless 
you are outside of the network area or 
treatment is not offered at the Network facility. Outpatient services 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

Inpatient services, 
Residential, and Partial 
Day Services 

 
10% coinsurance 
 

40% 20% coinsurance 

Preauthorization is required or benefits could 
be reduced. Out-of-network benefits are not 
available unless you are outside of the network 
area or treatment is not offered at the Network 
facility. 

If you are pregnant 

Office visits $25 copayment for initial visit 40% 20% coinsurance 
Cost sharing does not apply to certain 
preventive services. Depending on the type of 
services, coinsurance may apply. Maternity 
care may include tests and services described 
elsewhere in the SBC (i.e., ultrasound). 
Preauthorization is required for some maternity 
hospital stays. Pregnancy is covered for a 
dependent daughter. Out-of-network benefits 
are not available unless you are outside of the 
network area or treatment is not offered at the 
Network facility.  

Routine Prenatal and 
Postnatal services 

No charge, deductible does 
not apply 

No charge, deductible 
does not apply  

40% coinsurance 

Non-Routine Prenatal 
Services, Delivery, and all 
Inpatient Care 

Facility: 10% coinsurance 
All other: 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

If you need help 
recovering or have 
other special health 
needs (Out-of-network 
benefits are not available 
unless you are outside of 
the network area or 
treatment is not offered at 
the Network facility.) 

Home health care 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance None 
Rehabilitation services 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance None 
Habilitation services 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

Skilled nursing care 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance Preauthorization is required or benefits could 
be reduced. 

Durable medical 
equipment 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance None 

Hospice services 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance Preauthorization is required for inpatient 
services. 

If your child needs 
dental or eye care 

Children’s eye exam Not Covered Employee vision benefit only 
Children’s glasses Not Covered None 

112112

https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
http://www.consociatehealth.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#cost-sharing
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#home-health-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#rehabilitation-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#habilitation-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#skilled-nursing-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#durable-medical-equipment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#durable-medical-equipment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#hospice-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization


Out-of-network benefits are not available unless you are outside of the network area or treatment is not offered at the Network facility. 
Common Medical 

Event Services You May Need 
What You Will Pay Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important 

Information Network Provider 
(You will pay the least) 

Out-of-Network Provider 
(You will pay the most)  

Children’s dental check-up Not Covered Covered only if Dental coverage is elected 

Excluded Services & Other Covered Services: 
Services Your Plan Generally Does NOT Cover (Check your policy or plan document for more information and a list of any other excluded services.) 
• Acupuncture 
• Bariatric surgery 
• Cosmetic surgery 
• Dental care (Adult) 

• Glasses/Hearing Aids 
• Long-term care 
• Non-emergency care when traveling outside the U.S. 
• Non-network prescription drugs 

• Routine eye care 
• Routine foot care 
• Weight loss programs 

 

Other Covered Services (Limitations may apply to these services. This isn’t a complete list. Please see your plan document.) 
• Chiropractic care      • Infertility 

Your Rights to Continue Coverage: There are agencies that can help if you want to continue your coverage after it ends. The contact information for those 
agencies is: Consociate Health: 1-800-798-2422. You may also contact your state insurance department, the U.S. Department of Labor, Employee Benefits Security 
Administration at 1-866-444-3272 or www.dol.gov/ebsa or the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services at 1-877-267-2323 x 61565 or www.cciio.cms.gov. 
Other coverage options may be available to you, too, including buying individual insurance coverage through the Health Insurance Marketplace. For more information 
about the Marketplace, visit www.HealthCare.gov or call 1-800-318- 2596. 
 
Your Grievance and Appeals Rights: There are agencies that can help if you have a complaint against your plan for a denial of a claim. This complaint is called a 
grievance or appeal. For more information about your rights, look at the explanation of benefits you will receive for that medical claim. Your plan documents also 
provide complete information on how to submit a claim, appeal, or a grievance for any reason to your plan. For more information about your rights, this notice, or 
assistance, contact: Consociate Health: 1-800-798-2422. You can also contact the Department of Labor’s Employee Benefits Security Administration at 1-866-444-
EBSA (3272) or www.dol.gov/ebsa/healthreform. 
Does this plan provide Minimum Essential Coverage? Yes 
Minimum Essential Coverage generally includes plans, health insurance available through the Marketplace or other individual market policies, Medicare, Medicaid, 
CHIP, TRICARE, and certain other coverage. If you are eligible for certain types of Minimum Essential Coverage, you may not be eligible for the premium tax credit. 
Does this plan meet the Minimum Value Standards? Yes 
If your plan doesn’t meet the Minimum Value Standards, you may be eligible for a premium tax credit to help you pay for a plan through the Marketplace. 
 
Language Access Services: 
[Spanish (Español): Para obtener asistencia en Español, llame al 1-800-798-2422 
[Tagalog (Tagalog): Kung kailangan ninyo ang tulong sa Tagalog tumawag sa 1-800-798-2422 
[Chinese (中文): 如果需要中文的帮助, 请拨打这个号码1-800-798-2422 
[Navajo (Dine): Dinek'ehgo shika at'ohwol ninisingo, kwiijigo holne' 1-800-798-2422 

To see examples of how this plan might cover costs for a sample medical situation, see the next section. 
113113

https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
http://www.consociatehealth.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#excluded-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
http://www.dol.gov/ebsa%20or%20the%20U.S
http://www.cciio.cms.gov/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#health-insurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#marketplace
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#marketplace
http://www.healthcare.gov/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#claim
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#grievance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#appeal
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#claim
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#claim
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#appeal
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#grievance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/ebsa/laws-and-regulations/laws/affordable-care-act/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#minimum-essential-coverage
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#health-insurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#marketplace
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#minimum-essential-coverage
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#premium-tax-credits
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#minimum-value-standard
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#premium-tax-credits
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#marketplace
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan


 

PRA Disclosure Statement: According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid OMB control 
number.  The valid OMB control number for this information collection is 0938-1146. The time required to complete this information collection is estimated to average 0.08 hours per response, 
including the time to review instructions, search existing data resources, gather the data needed, and complete and review the information collection.  If you have comments concerning the accuracy 
of the time estimate(s) or suggestions for improving this form, please write to: CMS, 7500 Security Boulevard, Attn: PRA Reports Clearance Officer, Mail Stop C4-26-05, Baltimore, Maryland 
21244-1850. 

About these Coverage Examples: 

This is not a cost estimator. Treatments shown are just examples of how this plan might cover medical care. Your actual costs will be different 
depending on the actual care you receive, the prices your providers charge, and many other factors. Focus on the cost-sharing amounts 
(deductibles, copayments and coinsurance) and excluded services under the plan. Use this information to compare the portion of costs you might 
pay under different health plans. Please note these coverage examples are based on self-only coverage. 

 

 The plan’s overall deductible  $500 
 Specialist copayment $25 
 Hospital (facility) coinsurance 10% 
 Other coinsurance 20% 

This EXAMPLE event includes services like: 
Specialist office visits (prenatal care) 
Childbirth/Delivery Professional Services 
Childbirth/Delivery Facility Services 
Diagnostic tests (ultrasounds and blood work) 
Specialist visit (anesthesia) 

Total Example Cost $12,700 

In this example, Peg would pay:  
Cost Sharing 

Deductibles $500 
Copayments $48 
Coinsurance $800 

What isn’t covered 
Limits or exclusions $60 

Total Example Cost $12,700 
The total Peg would pay is $1,408 

 

 The plan’s overall deductible  $500 
 Specialist copayment $25 
 Hospital (facility) coinsurance 10% 
 Other coinsurance 20% 

This EXAMPLE event includes services like: 
Primary care physician office visits (including 
disease education) 
Diagnostic tests (blood work) 
Prescription drugs  
Durable medical equipment (glucose meter) 

Total Example Cost $7,400 

In this example, Joe would pay:  
Cost Sharing 

Deductibles $500 
Copayments $962 
Coinsurance $246 

Total Example Cost $7,400 
What isn’t covered 

Limits or exclusions $55 
The total Joe would pay is $1,763 

 

 The plan’s overall deductible  $500 
 Specialist & ER copayment $25 
 Hospital (facility) coinsurance 10% 
 Other coinsurance 20% 

This EXAMPLE event includes services like: 
Emergency room care (including medical 
supplies) 
Diagnostic test (x-ray) 
Durable medical equipment (crutches) 
Rehabilitation services (physical therapy) 

Total Example Cost $1,900 

In this example, Mia would pay:  
Cost Sharing 

Deductibles $500 

Peg is Having a Baby 
(9 months of in-network pre-natal care and a 

hospital delivery) Managing Joe’s Type 2 Diabetes 
(a year of routine in-network care of a well- 

controlled condition) Mia’s Simple Fracture 
(in-network emergency room visit and follow up 

care) 

114114

https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
http://www.consociatehealth.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#cost-sharing
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#excluded-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#diagnostic-test
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#primary-care-physician
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#diagnostic-test
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#prescription-drugs
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#durable-medical-equipment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#emergency-room-care-emergency-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#diagnostic-test
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#durable-medical-equipment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#rehabilitation-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible


Total Example Cost $1,900 
Copayments $200 
Coinsurance $146 

Total Example Cost $1,900 
What isn’t covered 

Limits or exclusions $0 

Total Example Cost $1,900 
The total Mia would pay is $846 
 

The plan would be responsible for the other costs of these EXAMPLE covered services. 

115115

https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan


Summary of Benefits and Coverage: What this Plan Covers & What You Pay For Covered Services Coverage Period: 9/1/2025 – 11/30/2026 
Tazewell County, Health Benefit Plan Mid-Level PPO 1000 Plan Coverage for: Individual, Family | Plan Type: PPO 
 

The Summary of Benefits and Coverage (SBC) document will help you choose a health plan. The SBC shows you how you and the plan would 
share the cost for covered health care services. NOTE: Information about the cost of this plan (called the premium) will be provided separately. 
This is only a summary. For more information about your coverage, or to get a copy of the complete terms of coverage, contact your Human Resources 

department. For general definitions of common terms, such as allowed amount, balance billing, coinsurance, copayment, deductible, provider, or other underlined 
terms, see the Glossary. You can view the Glossary at www.consociatehealth.com or call 1-800-798-2422 to request a copy. 

 

Important Questions Answers Why This Matters: 

What is the Calendar 
Year overall 
deductible? 

For network providers/out-of-network providers 
combined:  
$1,000 Individual $2,000 Family 

Generally, you must pay all of the costs from providers up to the calendar year deductible 
amount before this plan begins to pay. If you have other family members on the plan, each 
family member must meet their own individual deductible until the total amount of deductible 
expenses paid by all family members meets the overall family deductible. 

Are there services 
covered before you 
meet your 
deductible? 

Yes. Preventive care, benefits where 
copayments apply, and prescription drug 
copayments are covered before you meet your 
deductible. 

This plan covers some items and services even if you haven’t yet met the deductible 
amount. But a copayment or coinsurance may apply. For example, this plan covers certain 
preventive services without cost-sharing and before you meet your deductible. See a list of 
covered preventive services at https://www.healthcare.gov/coverage/preventive-care-
benefits/. 

Are there other 
deductibles for 
specific services? 

No You don’t have to meet deductibles for specific services. 

What is the Calendar 
Year out-of-pocket 
limit for this plan? 

For network providers/out-of-network providers 
combined: $2,000 Individual $4,000 Family 

The out-of-pocket limit is the most you could pay in a calendar year for covered services. If 
you have other family members in this plan, they have to meet their own out-of-pocket limits 
until the overall family out-of-pocket limit has been met. 

What is not included 
in the out-of-pocket 
limit? 

Premiums, balance-billed charges, copayments, 
penalties for failure to obtain preauthorization, 
ineligible charges and health care this plan 
doesn’t cover. 

Even though you pay these expenses, they don’t count toward the out–of–pocket limit. 

Will you pay less if 
you use a network 
provider? 

Yes. See www.consociate.com or call  
1-800-798-2422 for a list of network providers. 
You can also see www.healthpluspeoria.com or 
call 1-309-671-8358. aetna.com/asa 
 (If you are outside of the network service area, 
please contact MultiPlan (www.multiplan.com) 
for a PHCS-Out of Area Provider.) 

This plan uses a provider network. You will pay less if you use a provider in the plan’s 
network. You will pay the most if you use an out-of-network provider, and you might receive 
a bill from a provider for the difference between the provider’s charge and what your plan 
pays (balance billing). Be aware, your network provider might use an out-of-network 
provider for some services (such as lab work). Check with your provider before you get 
services. Out-of-network benefits are not available unless you are outside of the 
network area or unless the treatment is not offered at the Network facility. 

Do you need a 
referral to see a 
specialist? 

No You can see the specialist you choose without a referral. 

 
All coinsurance costs shown in this chart are after your deductible has been met, if a deductible applies. 

116116

https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#premium
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#allowed-amount
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#balance-billing
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
http://www.consociatehealth.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#cost-sharing
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/coverage/preventive-care-benefits/
https://www.healthcare.gov/coverage/preventive-care-benefits/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#premium
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#balance-billed
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
http://www.consociate.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
http://www.healthpluspeoria.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network
http://www.multiplan.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#balance-billing
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#balance-billing
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#referral
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#referral
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible


 

Out-of-network benefits are not available unless you are outside of the network area or treatment is not offered at the Network facility. 
Common Medical 

Event Services You May Need 
What You Will Pay Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important 

Information Network Provider 
(You will pay the least) 

Out-of-Network Provider 
(You will pay the most)  

The plan includes services at BJC HealthCare Center of Excellence Network (BJC COE).   
For Services at BJC COE, the deductible and out of pocket expenses will be waived. 

If you visit a health 
care provider’s office 
or clinic 

Primary care visit to treat 
an injury or illness $25 copayment 40% 20% coinsurance 

Telemedicine with Walmart Virtual Care: 
 Call 1-855-636-3669. Chiropractic Care covered 
at 20% coinsurance for Network Providers. Out-
of-network benefits are not available unless you 
are outside of the network area or treatment is 
not offered at the Network facility. 

Specialist visit $25 copayment 40% 20% coinsurance 

Preventive care/screening/ 
immunization No Charge No Charge 

You may have to pay for services that aren’t 
preventive. Ask your provider if the services 
needed are preventive. Then check what your 
plan will pay for. 

If you have a test 

Diagnostic test (x-ray, 
blood work) 

Office: 20% coinsurance 
Outpatient: 10% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

I maging: Preauthorization is required for 
Advanced Radiology including Nuclear Medicine 
and Nuclear Cardiology, or benefits could be 
reduced. Out-of-network benefits are not 
available unless you are outside of the network 
area or treatment is not offered at the Network 
facility.  

Imaging (CT/PET scans, 
MRIs) 

Office: 20% coinsurance 
Outpatient: 10% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

If you need drugs to 
treat your illness or 
condition 
More information about 
prescription drug 
coverage is available 
at SmithRx.com or  
1-844-454-5201. 

Generic drugs Retail 30-day: $12 copayment 
90-day: $24 copayment 

Not Covered 

Covers up to a 30-day supply (retail);  
90-day supply (retail and mail order).  
 
Retirees and/or Retiree’s spouses eligibile for 
Medicare are not covered byt the Drug Program. 

Preferred brand drugs Retail 30-day: $30 copayment  
90-day: $60 copayment 

Non-preferred brand drugs Retail 30-day: $50 copayment  
90-day: $100 copayment 

Specialty drugs $50 copayment Not Covered Covers up to a 30-day supply 

If you have outpatient 
surgery 

Facility fee (e.g., 
ambulatory surgery 
center) 

10% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 
Preauthorization is required or benefits could be 
reduced. Out-of-network benefits are not 
available unless you are outside of the network 
area or treatment is not offered at the Network 
facility.  Physician/surgeon fees 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

If you need immediate 
medical attention 

Emergency room care 
 Facility: $300 copayment;  

After Facility copayment, other providers for emergency 
services: 10% coinsurance after In Network Deductible  

Preauthorization is required if admitted.  
Copay waived if admitted.  

Emergency medical 
transportation 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance None 

Urgent care $75 copayment $75 copayment 40% None 

117117

https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
http://www.consociatehealth.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#screening
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#diagnostic-test
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#prescription-drug-coverage
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#prescription-drug-coverage
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialty-drug
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#emergency-room-care-emergency-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#emergency-medical-transportation
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#emergency-medical-transportation
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#urgent-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment


Out-of-network benefits are not available unless you are outside of the network area or treatment is not offered at the Network facility. 
Common Medical 

Event Services You May Need 
What You Will Pay Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important 

Information Network Provider 
(You will pay the least) 

Out-of-Network Provider 
(You will pay the most)  
coinsurance 

If you have a hospital 
stay 

Inpatient or Outpatient 
treatment - Facility  10% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance Preauthorization is required or benefits could be 

reduced. Out-of-network benefits are not 
available unless you are outside of the network 
area or treatment is not offered at the Network 
facility. 

Inpatient or Outpatient:  
Services, Physician 
Charges, Surgery 
Services, Hospital care 

20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

If you need behavioral 
health services, or 
substance use 
services 

Office Visit  $25 copayment 40% 20% coinsurance Out-of-network benefits are not available unless 
you are outside of the network area or treatment 
is not offered at the Network facility. Outpatient services Facility: 10% coinsurance 

Physician: 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

Inpatient services, 
Residential, and Partial 
Day Services 

10% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

Preauthorization is required or benefits could be 
reduced. Out-of-network benefits are not 
available unless you are outside of the network 
area or treatment is not offered at the Network 
facility.  

If you are pregnant 

Office visits $25 copayment for initial visit 40% 20% coinsurance 
Cost sharing does not apply to certain 
preventive services. Depending on the type of 
services, coinsurance may apply. Maternity care 
may include tests and services described 
elsewhere in the SBC (i.e., ultrasound). 
Preauthorization is required for some maternity 
hospital stays. Out-of-network benefits are not 
available unless you are outside of the network 
area or treatment is not offered at the Network 
facility. Pregnancy is covered for a dependent 
daughter. 

Routine Prenatal and 
Postnatal services No charge, deductible does not apply 

Non-Routine Prenatal 
Services, Delivery, and all 
Inpatient Care 

Facility: 10% coinsurance 
All other: 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

If you need help 
recovering or have 
other special health 
needs (Out-of-network 
benefits are not available 
unless you are outside of 
the network area or 
treatment is not offered at 
the Network facility.) 

Home health care 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance None 
Rehabilitation services 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance None 
Habilitation services 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 
Skilled nursing care 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance Preauthorization is required or benefits could be 

reduced. 
Durable medical 
equipment 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance None 

Hospice services 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance Preauthorization is required for inpatient 
services. 

If your child needs 
dental or eye care 

Children’s eye exam Not Covered Employee vision benefit only 
Children’s glasses Not Covered None 

118118

https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
http://www.consociatehealth.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#cost-sharing
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#home-health-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#rehabilitation-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#habilitation-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#skilled-nursing-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#durable-medical-equipment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#durable-medical-equipment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#hospice-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization


Out-of-network benefits are not available unless you are outside of the network area or treatment is not offered at the Network facility. 
Common Medical 

Event Services You May Need 
What You Will Pay Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important 

Information Network Provider 
(You will pay the least) 

Out-of-Network Provider 
(You will pay the most)  

Children’s dental check-up Not Covered Covered only if Dental coverage is elected 

Excluded Services & Other Covered Services: 
Services Your Plan Generally Does NOT Cover (Check your policy or plan document for more information and a list of any other excluded services.) 
• Acupuncture 
• Bariatric surgery 
• Cosmetic surgery 
• Dental care (Adult) 

• Hearing Aids 
• Long-term care 
• Non-emergency care when traveling outside the U.S. 

• Routine eye care 
• Routine foot care, except for diabetics 
• Weight loss programs 

 
Other Covered Services (Limitations may apply to these services. This isn’t a complete list. Please see your plan document.) 
• Chiropractic care      • Infertility  

Your Rights to Continue Coverage: There are agencies that can help if you want to continue your coverage after it ends. The contact information for those 
agencies is: Consociate Health: 1-800-798-2422. You may also contact your state insurance department, the U.S. Department of Labor, Employee Benefits Security 
Administration at 1-866-444-3272 or www.dol.gov/ebsa or the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services at 1-877-267-2323 x 61565 or www.cciio.cms.gov. 
Other coverage options may be available to you, too, including buying individual insurance coverage through the Health Insurance Marketplace. For more information 
about the Marketplace, visit www.HealthCare.gov or call 1-800-318- 2596. 
 
Your Grievance and Appeals Rights: There are agencies that can help if you have a complaint against your plan for a denial of a claim. This complaint is called a 
grievance or appeal. For more information about your rights, look at the explanation of benefits you will receive for that medical claim. Your plan documents also 
provide complete information on how to submit a claim, appeal, or a grievance for any reason to your plan. For more information about your rights, this notice, or 
assistance, contact: Consociate Health: 1-800-798-2422. You can also contact the Department of Labor’s Employee Benefits Security Administration at 1-866-444-
EBSA (3272) or www.dol.gov/ebsa/healthreform. 

Does this plan provide Minimum Essential Coverage? Yes 
Minimum Essential Coverage generally includes plans, health insurance available through the Marketplace or other individual market policies, Medicare, Medicaid, 
CHIP, TRICARE, and certain other coverage. If you are eligible for certain types of Minimum Essential Coverage, you may not be eligible for the premium tax credit. 
Does this plan meet the Minimum Value Standards? Yes 
If your plan doesn’t meet the Minimum Value Standards, you may be eligible for a premium tax credit to help you pay for a plan through the Marketplace. 
Language Access Services: 
[Spanish (Español): Para obtener asistencia en Español, llame al 1-800-798-2422 
[Tagalog (Tagalog): Kung kailangan ninyo ang tulong sa Tagalog tumawag sa 1-800-798-2422 
[Chinese (中文): 如果需要中文的帮助, 请拨打这个号码1-800-798-2422 

119119

https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
http://www.consociatehealth.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#excluded-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
http://www.dol.gov/ebsa%20or%20the%20U.S
http://www.cciio.cms.gov/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#health-insurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#marketplace
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#marketplace
http://www.healthcare.gov/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#claim
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#grievance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#appeal
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#claim
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#claim
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#appeal
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#grievance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/ebsa/laws-and-regulations/laws/affordable-care-act/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#minimum-essential-coverage
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#health-insurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#marketplace
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#minimum-essential-coverage
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#premium-tax-credits
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#minimum-value-standard
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#premium-tax-credits
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#marketplace


[Navajo (Dine): Dinek'ehgo shika at'ohwol ninisingo, kwiijigo holne' 1-800-798-2422 
 

PRA Disclosure Statement: According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid OMB control 
number.  The valid OMB control number for this information collection is 0938-1146. The time required to complete this information collection is estimated to average 0.08 hours per response, 
including the time to review instructions, search existing data resources, gather the data needed, and complete and review the information collection.  If you have comments concerning the accuracy 
of the time estimate(s) or suggestions for improving this form, please write to: CMS, 7500 Security Boulevard, Attn: PRA Reports Clearance Officer, Mail Stop C4-26-05, Baltimore, Maryland 
21244-1850. 

About these Coverage Examples: 
This is not a cost estimator. Treatments shown are just examples of how this plan might cover medical care. Your actual costs will be different 
depending on the actual care you receive, the prices your providers charge, and many other factors. Focus on the cost-sharing amounts 
(deductibles, copayments and coinsurance) and excluded services under the plan. Use this information to compare the portion of costs you might 
pay under different health plans. Please note these coverage examples are based on self-only coverage. 

 

 The plan’s overall deductible  $1,000 
 Specialist copayment $0 
 Hospital (facility) coinsurance 10% 
 Other coinsurance 20% 

This EXAMPLE event includes services like: 
Specialist office visits (prenatal care) 
Childbirth/Delivery Professional Services 
Childbirth/Delivery Facility Services 
Diagnostic tests (ultrasounds and blood work) 
Specialist visit (anesthesia) 

Total Example Cost $12,700 

In this example, Peg would pay:  
Cost Sharing 

Deductibles $1,000 
Copayments $0 
Coinsurance $1,000 

What isn’t covered 

Total Example Cost $12,700 
Limits or exclusions $0 
The total Peg would pay is $2,000 

 

 The plan’s overall deductible  $1,000 
 Specialist copayment $25 
 Hospital (facility) coinsurance 10% 
 Other coinsurance 20% 

This EXAMPLE event includes services like: 
Primary care physician office visits (including 
disease education) 
Diagnostic tests (blood work) 
Prescription drugs  
Durable medical equipment (glucose meter) 

Total Example Cost $5,600 

In this example, Joe would pay:  
Cost Sharing 

Deductibles $900 

Total Example Cost $5,600 
Copayments $500 
Coinsurance $0 

What isn’t covered 
Limits or exclusions $20 
The total Joe would pay is $1,420 

 

 The plan’s overall deductible  $1,000 
 Specialist & ER copayment $325 
 Hospital (facility) coinsurance 10% 
 Other coinsurance 20% 

This EXAMPLE event includes services like: 
Emergency room care (including medical 
supplies) 
Diagnostic test (x-ray) 
Durable medical equipment (crutches) 
Rehabilitation services (physical therapy) 

Peg is Having a Baby 
(9 months of in-network pre-natal care and a 

hospital delivery) 
Managing Joe’s Type 2 Diabetes 

(a year of routine in-network care of a well- 
controlled condition) 

Mia’s Simple Fracture 
(in-network emergency room visit and follow up 

care) 

To see examples of how this plan might cover costs for a sample medical situation, see the next section. 

120120

https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
http://www.consociatehealth.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#cost-sharing
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#excluded-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#diagnostic-test
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#primary-care-physician
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#diagnostic-test
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#prescription-drugs
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#durable-medical-equipment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#emergency-room-care-emergency-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#diagnostic-test
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#durable-medical-equipment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#rehabilitation-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan


Total Example Cost $2,800 

In this example, Mia would pay:  
Cost Sharing 

Deductibles $1,000 

Total Example Cost $2,800 
Copayments $325 
Coinsurance $200 

What isn’t covered 

Total Example Cost $2,800 
Limits or exclusions $0 
The total Mia would pay is $1,525 
 

The plan would be responsible for the other costs of these EXAMPLE covered services. 
 

121121

https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan


Summary of Benefits and Coverage: What this Plan Covers & What You Pay For Covered Services Coverage Period: 9/1/2025 – 11/30/2026 
Tazewell County, Health Benefit Plan Qualified PPO HDHP Plan Coverage for: Individual, Family | Plan Type: HDHP 
 

The Summary of Benefits and Coverage (SBC) document will help you choose a health plan. The SBC shows you how you and the plan would 
share the cost for covered health care services. NOTE: Information about the cost of this plan (called the premium) will be provided separately. 
This is only a summary. For more information about your coverage, or to get a copy of the complete terms of coverage, contact your Human Resources 

department. For general definitions of common terms, such as allowed amount, balance billing, coinsurance, copayment, deductible, provider, or other underlined 
terms, see the Glossary. You can view the Glossary at www.consociatehealth.com or call 1-800-798-2422 to request a copy. 

 

Important Questions Answers Why This Matters: 

What is the Calendar 
Year overall 
deductible? 

Effective 1/1/2024 – 12/31/2024: 
For network providers/out-of-network providers 
combined: $3,200 Individual $6,400 Family 
 

Effective 1/1/2025 – 12/31/2025 
For network providers/out-of-network providers 
combined: $3,300 Individual $6,600 Family 

Generally, you must pay all of the costs from providers up to the calendar year deductible 
amount before this plan begins to pay. If you have other family members on the plan, each 
family member must meet their own individual deductible until the total amount of deductible 
expenses paid by all family members meets the overall family deductible. 

Are there services 
covered before you 
meet your 
deductible? 

Yes. Preventive care is covered before you 
meet your deductible. 

This plan covers some items and services even if you haven’t yet met the deductible amount. 
But a copayment or coinsurance may apply. For example, this plan covers certain preventive 
services without cost-sharing and before you meet your deductible. See a list of covered 
preventive services at https://www.healthcare.gov/coverage/preventive-care-benefits/. 

Are there other 
deductibles for 
specific services? 

No You don’t have to meet deductibles for specific services. 

What is the Calendar 
Year out-of-pocket 
limit for this plan? 

For network providers/out-of-network providers 
combined: $6,000 Individual $8,000 Family 

The out-of-pocket limit is the most you could pay in a calendar year for covered services. If 
you have other family members in this plan, they have to meet their own out-of-pocket limits 
until the overall family out-of-pocket limit has been met. 

What is not included 
in the out-of-pocket 
limit? 

Premiums, balance-billed charges, penalties for 
failure to obtain preauthorization, ineligible 
charges and health care this plan doesn’t cover. 

Even though you pay these expenses, they don’t count toward the out–of–pocket limit. 

Will you pay less if 
you use a network 
provider? 

Yes. See www.consociate.com or call  
1-800-798-2422 for a list of network providers. 
You can also see www.healthpluspeoria.com or 
call 1-309-671-8358. aetna.com/asa 
 (If you are outside of the network service 
area, please contact MultiPlan 
(www.multiplan.com) for a PHCS-Out of Area 
Provider.) 

This plan uses a provider network. You will pay less if you use a provider in the plan’s 
network. You will pay the most if you use an out-of-network provider, and you might receive a 
bill from a provider for the difference between the provider’s charge and what your plan pays 
(balance billing). Be aware, your network provider might use an out-of-network provider for 
some services (such as lab work). Check with your provider before you get services. Out-of-
network benefits are not available unless you are outside of the network area or unless 
the treatment is not offered at the Network facility. 

Do you need a 
referral to see a 
specialist? 

No You can see the specialist you choose without a referral. 

 

122122

https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#premium
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#allowed-amount
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#balance-billing
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
http://www.consociatehealth.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#cost-sharing
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/coverage/preventive-care-benefits/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#premium
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#balance-billed
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-pocket-limit
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
http://www.consociate.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
http://www.healthpluspeoria.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network
http://www.multiplan.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#balance-billing
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#balance-billing
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#referral
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#referral


All coinsurance costs shown in this chart are after your deductible has been met, if a deductible applies. 
 

Out-of-network benefits are not available unless you are outside of the network area or treatment is not offered at the Network facility. 

Common Medical Event Services You May Need 
What You Will Pay Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important 

Information Network Provider 
(You will pay the least) 

Out-of-Network Provider 
(You will pay the most)  

The plan includes services at BJC HealthCare Center of Excellence Network (BJC COE).   
Services at BJC COE will be covered 100% after deductible. 

If you visit a health care 
provider’s office or 
clinic 

Primary care visit to treat 
an injury or illness 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

Telemedicine with Walmart Virtual Care: 
 Call 1-855-636-3669. Chiropractic Care covered 
at 20% coinsurance for Network Providers. Out-
of-network benefits are not available unless you 
are outside of the network area or treatment is 
not offered at the Network facility. 

Specialist visit 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

Preventive care/screening/ 
immunization No Charge No Charge 

40% coinsurance 

You may have to pay for services that aren’t 
preventive. Ask your provider if the services 
needed are preventive. Then check what your 
plan will pay for. 

If you have a test 

Diagnostic test (x-ray, blood 
work) 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

Imaging: Preauthorization is required for 
Advanced Radiology including Nuclear Medicine 
and Nuclear Cardiology, or benefits could be 
reduced. Out-of-network benefits are not 
available unless you are outside of the network 
area or treatment is not offered at the Network 
facility. 

Imaging (CT/PET scans, 
MRIs) 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

If you need drugs to 
treat your illness or 
condition 
More information about 
prescription drug 
coverage is available at 
Smithrx.com or  
1-844-454-5201. 

Generic drugs 20% coinsurance 

Not Covered 

Covers up to a 30-day supply (retail);  
90-day supply (retail and mail order).  
 
Retirees and/or Retiree’s spouses eligible for 
Medicare are not covered by the Drug Program. 

Preferred brand drugs 20% coinsurance 

Non-preferred brand drugs 20% coinsurance 

Specialty drugs 20% coinsurance Not Covered Covers up to a 30-day supply 

If you have outpatient 
surgery 

Facility fee (e.g., 
ambulatory surgery center) 20% coinsurance  40% 20% coinsurance 

Preauthorization is required or benefits could be 
reduced. Out-of-network benefits are not 
available unless you are outside of the network 
area or treatment is not offered at the Network 
facility.  Physician/surgeon fees 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

If you need immediate 
medical attention 

Emergency room care 20% coinsurance Preauthorization is required if admitted.  
Emergency medical 
transportation 20% coinsurance None  

123123

https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
http://www.consociatehealth.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#screening
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#diagnostic-test
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#prescription-drug-coverage
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#prescription-drug-coverage
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialty-drug
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#emergency-room-care-emergency-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#emergency-medical-transportation
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#emergency-medical-transportation
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance


Out-of-network benefits are not available unless you are outside of the network area or treatment is not offered at the Network facility. 

Common Medical Event Services You May Need 
What You Will Pay Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important 

Information Network Provider 
(You will pay the least) 

Out-of-Network Provider 
(You will pay the most)  

Urgent care 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance None 

If you have a hospital 
stay 

Facility fee (e.g., hospital 
room) 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance Preauthorization is required or benefits could be 

reduced. Out-of-network benefits are not 
available unless you are outside of the network 
area or treatment is not offered at the Network 
facility. 

Physician Charges, Surgery 
Services, Hospital care 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

If you need behavioral 
health services, or 
substance use services 

Office Visit  20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance Out-of-network benefits are not available unless 
you are outside of the network area or treatment 
is not offered at the Network facility. Outpatient services 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

Inpatient services, 
Residential, and Partial Day 
Services 

20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

Preauthorization is required or benefits could be 
reduced. Non-Network Hospital benefits are not 
available unless you are outside of the network 
area or treatment is not offered at the Network 
facility. 

If you are pregnant 

Office visits 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 
Cost sharing does not apply to certain 
preventive services. Depending on the type of 
services, coinsurance may apply. Maternity care 
may include tests and services described 
elsewhere in the SBC (i.e., ultrasound). 
Preauthorization is required for some maternity 
hospital stays. Pregnancy is covered for a 
dependent daughter. Out-of-network benefits 
are not available unless you are outside of the 
network area or treatment is not offered at the 
Network facility. 

Childbirth/delivery 
professional services 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

Childbirth/delivery facility 
services 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

If you need help 
recovering or have 
other special health 
needs 
(Out-of-network benefits are 
not available unless you are 
outside of the network area 
or treatment is not offered 
at the Network facility.) 

Home health care 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance None 
Rehabilitation services 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance None 
Habilitation services 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance 

Skilled nursing care 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance Preauthorization is required or benefits could be 
reduced. 

Durable medical equipment 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance None 

Hospice services 20% coinsurance 40% 20% coinsurance Preauthorization is required for inpatient 
services. 

If your child needs 
dental or eye care 

Children’s eye exam Not Covered Employee vision benefit only 
Children’s glasses Not Covered None 

124124

https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
http://www.consociatehealth.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#urgent-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#cost-sharing
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preventive-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#home-health-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#rehabilitation-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#habilitation-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#skilled-nursing-care
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#durable-medical-equipment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#hospice-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#preauthorization


Out-of-network benefits are not available unless you are outside of the network area or treatment is not offered at the Network facility. 

Common Medical Event Services You May Need 
What You Will Pay Limitations, Exceptions, & Other Important 

Information Network Provider 
(You will pay the least) 

Out-of-Network Provider 
(You will pay the most)  

Children’s dental check-up Not Covered Covered only if Dental coverage is elected 

Excluded Services & Other Covered Services: 
Services Your Plan Generally Does NOT Cover (Check your policy or plan document for more information and a list of any other excluded services.) 
• Acupuncture 
• Bariatric surgery 
• Cosmetic surgery 
• Dental care (Adult) 

• Hearing Aids 
• Long-term care 
• Non-emergency care when traveling outside the U.S. 

• Routine eye care 
• Routine foot care, except for diabetics 
• Weight loss programs 

 
Other Covered Services (Limitations may apply to these services. This isn’t a complete list. Please see your plan document.) 
• Chiropractic care      • Infertility 

Your Rights to Continue Coverage: There are agencies that can help if you want to continue your coverage after it ends. The contact information for those 
agencies is: Consociate Health: 1-800-798-2422. You may also contact your state insurance department, the U.S. Department of Labor, Employee Benefits Security 
Administration at 1-866-444-3272 or www.dol.gov/ebsa or the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services at 1-877-267-2323 x 61565 or www.cciio.cms.gov. 
Other coverage options may be available to you, too, including buying individual insurance coverage through the Health Insurance Marketplace. For more information 
about the Marketplace, visit www.HealthCare.gov or call 1-800-318- 2596. 
 
Your Grievance and Appeals Rights: There are agencies that can help if you have a complaint against your plan for a denial of a claim. This complaint is called a 
grievance or appeal. For more information about your rights, look at the explanation of benefits you will receive for that medical claim. Your plan documents also 
provide complete information on how to submit a claim, appeal, or a grievance for any reason to your plan. For more information about your rights, this notice, or 
assistance, contact: Consociate Health: 1-800-798-2422. You can also contact the Department of Labor’s Employee Benefits Security Administration at 1-866-444-
EBSA (3272) or www.dol.gov/ebsa/healthreform. 

Does this plan provide Minimum Essential Coverage? Yes 
Minimum Essential Coverage generally includes plans, health insurance available through the Marketplace or other individual market policies, Medicare, Medicaid, 
CHIP, TRICARE, and certain other coverage. If you are eligible for certain types of Minimum Essential Coverage, you may not be eligible for the premium tax credit. 
Does this plan meet the Minimum Value Standards? Yes 
If your plan doesn’t meet the Minimum Value Standards, you may be eligible for a premium tax credit to help you pay for a plan through the Marketplace. 
Language Access Services: 
[Spanish (Español): Para obtener asistencia en Español, llame al 1-800-798-2422 
[Tagalog (Tagalog): Kung kailangan ninyo ang tulong sa Tagalog tumawag sa 1-800-798-2422 
[Chinese (中文): 如果需要中文的帮助, 请拨打这个号码1-800-798-2422 

125125

https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
http://www.consociatehealth.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#out-of-network-provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#excluded-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
http://www.dol.gov/ebsa%20or%20the%20U.S
http://www.cciio.cms.gov/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#health-insurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#marketplace
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#marketplace
http://www.healthcare.gov/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#claim
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#grievance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#appeal
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#claim
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#claim
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#appeal
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#grievance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/ebsa/laws-and-regulations/laws/affordable-care-act/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#minimum-essential-coverage
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#health-insurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#marketplace
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#minimum-essential-coverage
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#premium-tax-credits
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#minimum-value-standard
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#premium-tax-credits
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#marketplace


[Navajo (Dine): Dinek'ehgo shika at'ohwol ninisingo, kwiijigo holne' 1-800-798-2422 
 

PRA Disclosure Statement: According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid OMB control 
number.  The valid OMB control number for this information collection is 0938-1146. The time required to complete this information collection is estimated to average 0.08 hours per response, 
including the time to review instructions, search existing data resources, gather the data needed, and complete and review the information collection.  If you have comments concerning the accuracy 
of the time estimate(s) or suggestions for improving this form, please write to: CMS, 7500 Security Boulevard, Attn: PRA Reports Clearance Officer, Mail Stop C4-26-05, Baltimore, Maryland 
21244-1850. 

About these Coverage Examples: 

This is not a cost estimator. Treatments shown are just examples of how this plan might cover medical care. Your actual costs will be different 
depending on the actual care you receive, the prices your providers charge, and many other factors. Focus on the cost-sharing amounts 
(deductibles, copayments and coinsurance) and excluded services under the plan. Use this information to compare the portion of costs you might 
pay under different health plans. Please note these coverage examples are based on self-only coverage. 

 

 The plan’s overall deductible  $3,300 
 Specialist coinsurance 20% 
 Hospital (facility) coinsurance 20% 
 Other coinsurance 20% 

This EXAMPLE event includes services like: 
Specialist office visits (prenatal care) 
Childbirth/Delivery Professional Services 
Childbirth/Delivery Facility Services 
Diagnostic tests (ultrasounds and blood work) 
Specialist visit (anesthesia) 

Total Example Cost $12,700 

In this example, Peg would pay:  
Cost Sharing 

Deductibles $3,300 
Copayments $0 
Coinsurance $1,880 

Total Example Cost $12,700 
What isn’t covered 

Limits or exclusions $60 
The total Peg would pay is $5,240 

 

 The plan’s overall deductible  $3,300 
 Specialist coinsurance 20% 
 Hospital (facility) coinsurance 20% 
 Other coinsurance 20% 

This EXAMPLE event includes services like: 
Primary care physician office visits (including 
disease education) 
Diagnostic tests (blood work) 
Prescription drugs  
Durable medical equipment (glucose meter) 

Total Example Cost $5,600 

In this example, Joe would pay:  
Cost Sharing 

Total Example Cost $5,600 
Deductibles $3,300 
Copayments $0 
Coinsurance $460 

What isn’t covered 
Limits or exclusions $20 
The total Joe would pay is $3,780 

 

 The plan’s overall deductible  $3,300 
 Specialist & ER coinsurance 20% 
 Hospital (facility) coinsurance 20% 
 Other coinsurance 20% 

This EXAMPLE event includes services like: 
Emergency room care (including medical 
supplies) 
Diagnostic test (x-ray) 
Durable medical equipment (crutches) 
Rehabilitation services (physical therapy) 

Peg is Having a Baby 
(9 months of in-network pre-natal care and a 

hospital delivery) 

Managing Joe’s Type 2 Diabetes 
(a year of routine in-network care of a well- 

controlled condition) 

Mia’s Simple Fracture 
(in-network emergency room visit and follow up 

care) 

To see examples of how this plan might cover costs for a sample medical situation, see the next section. 

126126

https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
http://www.consociatehealth.com/
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#provider
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#cost-sharing
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#excluded-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#diagnostic-test
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#primary-care-physician
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#diagnostic-test
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#prescription-drugs
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#durable-medical-equipment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#specialist
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#emergency-room-care-emergency-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#diagnostic-test
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#durable-medical-equipment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#rehabilitation-services
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan


Total Example Cost $2,800 

In this example, Mia would pay:  
Cost Sharing 

Deductibles $2,800 

Total Example Cost $2,800 
Copayments $0 
Coinsurance $0 

What isn’t covered 

Total Example Cost $2,800 
Limits or exclusions $0 
The total Mia would pay is $2,800 
 

The plan would be responsible for the other costs of these EXAMPLE covered services. 

127127

https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#deductible
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#copayment
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#coinsurance
https://www.healthcare.gov/sbc-glossary/#plan


      E-25-55 
 COMMITTEE REPORT      
 
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 
 
Your Executive Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends 
that it be adopted by the Board: 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

 
WHEREAS, the County's Executive Committee recommends to the County Board to approve 
the bid for the Heritage Lake Subdivision seal coat road work; and 
 
WHEREAS, one bid was submitted for review: R.A. Cullinan for $205,225.94; and  
 
WHEREAS, the County Administrator recommends to approve the bid from R.A. Cullinan 
and is authorized to move forward with the project as submitted. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve this recommendation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office, 
Highway, Treasurer, the Finance Office, and the Auditor of this action. 
 
PASSED THIS 30th DAY OF July, 2025. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Tazewell County Clerk    Tazewell County Board Chairman 
 
 

128128



129129



E-25-59  
COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 
 
Your Executive Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends 
that it be adopted by the Board: 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee recommends to the County Board to authorize the 
3rd quarterly payment for 2025 per the agreement between Tazewell County and the 
Greater Peoria Economic Development Council; and  
 
WHEREAS, Resolution E-25-16 approved an agreement with GPEDC for twelve months 
from January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025; and 
 
WHEREAS, Tazewell County agreed to pay the Greater Peoria Economic Development 
Council quarterly installments for the term of this Agreement provided that the full 
County Board approves based upon quarterly review of GPEDC performance.  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve the recommendation and 
authorize payment of the 3rd quarter investment for 2025. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office, 
Greater Peoria Economic Development Council, Finance, and the Auditor of this action. 
 
PASSED THIS 30th DAY OF JULY, 2025. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Tazewell County Clerk     Tazewell County Board Chairman 

130130



INVOICE
Greater Peoria Economic
Development Council
201 SW Adams St
Peoria, IL 616021407

csetti@greaterpeoriaedc.org
+1 (309) 495-5910
www.greaterpeoriaedc.org

;Tazewell County Treasurer
Bill to

Chairman Brett Grimm
Tazewell County
11 S. Fourth St., Suite 432
Pekin, IL 61554

Invoice details

Invoice no.: GPEDC_2025-70
Terms: Net 60
Invoice date: 07/01/2025
Due date: 08/30/2025

Description Amount

2025 GPEDC Investment - 3rd Quarter $18,750.00

Ways to pay

View and pay

Total $18,750.00

131131

mailto:csetti@greaterpeoriaedc.org
tel:3094955910
http://www.greaterpeoriaedc.org/
https://connect.intuit.com/portal/app/CommerceNetwork/view/scs-v1-a6f5e0a64f8b49648f9c049568db2ac36faa75e43f514ea4add56281440a78ccc78070f968cb45739f0f942c66a54855?locale=en_US&cta=pdfbutton


   E-25-60     

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 
Your Executive Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and 
recommends that it be adopted by the Board: 

 

RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, the County's Executive Committee recommends to the County 
Board to approve the attached Road Use Agreement for Coyote Road Solar 
LLC; and 
 
WHEREAS, Coyote Road Solar, LLC was approved by the County Board for 
Special Use on June 26th, 2024; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Coyote Road Solar, LLC is a 150MW Community Solar project 
located on multiple parcels both Malone and Groveland Township; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Tazewell County State’s Attorney authorized the negotiation of 
said agreement by Ms. Sheryl Churney of Klein, Thorpe, and Jenkins on behalf 
of Tazewell County; and 
 
WHEREAS, Dan Parr, Tazewell Highway Engineer, and Jaclynn Workman, 
Community Development Administrator have reviewed the agreement and 
have approved of the terms; and  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve this 
recommendation 
 
BET IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk Notified the County Board 
Office, Highway Department, Community Development and the Auditor of this 
action. 
 
PASSED THIS 30th DAY of July, 2025. 

 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
              
 Tazewell County Clerk    Tazewell County Board Chairman 

132132



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 1 of 25 

TAZEWELL COUNTY, ILLINOIS & COYOTE ROAD SOLAR, LLC 
Solar Farm Road Use Agreement 

This “Agreement” is entered on July 30, 2025, by and between Coyote Road Solar, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company managed by its member RWE Solar Development, 
LLC, (“Developer”), and Tazewell County, Illinois (the “Road Authority”) for the use of 
local roads as designated on the attached Exhibit A (collectively, the “Local Road”) for the 
construction of a solar farm known as the “Coyote Road Solar Farm” (the “solar farm”) 
and in consideration of the forgoing, the mutual promises contained herein, and other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows herein. 

1. The County is authorized pursuant to the Counties Code, 55 ILCS 5/5-101 et seq., 
and the Illinois Highway Code, 605 ILCS 5/5-101 et seq. (the “Highway Code”), to 
construct, administer, operate and maintain highways in the County, acting by and 
through its County Engineer (the “County Engineer”). To the maximum extent 
permitted, the Tazewell County Board appoints the County Engineer to act on its 
behalf under this Agreement. 

2. The Road Authority permits Developer access to the proposed solar farm construction 
site located in Malone Township, Tazewell County, Illinois. 

3. Developer hereby agrees to, and shall cause its contractors, subcontractors and 
suppliers, employees, agents, and designees (“Developer's Parties”) to abide by, the 
terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. Although the paragraphs in this 
Agreement refer to Developer, the parties agree that Developer is responsible for 
Developer’s Parties abiding by the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement 
and Developer shall be responsible for any breach by Developer’s Parties of the terms 
and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

4. Before construction of the solar farm begins, Developer shall retain a civil engineering 
firm to conduct an inspection of the Local Road and produce a report which shall 
document the current condition of the Local Road and shall include a series of still 
images of the road surfaces taken every 20 feet and compiled to provide a viewer a 
virtual drive of the Local Road, and if applicable and to the extent reasonably 
accessible, photographs of the interior of all bridges, box culverts, culverts, and the 
road surface above each bridge, box culvert, and culvert on the Local Road. A copy 
of the report shall be delivered to the Road Authority upon completion. 

5. In accordance with the Illinois Underground Utility Facilities Damage Prevention Act 
and the regulations promulgated thereunder. Developer shall provide JULIE with the 
necessary information to update its records as applicable. Developer shall be 
responsible for contacting the various public utility companies and locating their 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

133133



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 2 of 25 

properties before any construction shall start and Developer shall be responsible for 
reimbursing owners for any damage or injury to such properties which may be caused 
by Developer’s activities and operations as applicable. 

6. At least seven (7) calendar days before construction of the solar farm begins, 
Developer shall notify the Road Authority and shall provide written notice to the Road 
Authority identifying the name, address, and both regular and emergency contact 
information of its construction manager for communication purposes regarding this 
Agreement. Any change in contact information shall be promptly communicated to the 
Road Authority in writing. 

7. Construction of the solar farm is anticipated to begin upon mobilization, which 
according to County Ordinance §157.565 must occur within 180 days after the date of 
building permit issuance and shall be completed within two (2) years of issuance of 
the building permit. Developer shall have the right to extend the completion date for 
two (2) periods of thirty (30) calendar days (a “Construction Extension Period”) by 
delivering to the County Engineer notice thereof prior to the completion date stated in 
the paragraph or a Construction Extension Period, as the case may be, and depositing 
with the Road Authority the sum of One Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($1,000.00) for 
each Construction Extension Period, which sum shall be non-refundable. If 
construction of the solar farm extends beyond the two Construction Extension Periods, 
then Developer shall apply for a Renewal Permit from the County. 

8. Developer’s construction manager shall provide information and updates as 
necessary and as requested to the Road Authority concerning construction and use 
of the Local Road. If there is a planned road closure or limited access to the Local 
Road, Developer’s construction manager shall notify the Road Authority by email at 
least three (3) business days before the road closure or limited access event. Any 
road closure or limited access to the Local Road (including the location and length of 
time) shall be approved in advance by the Road Authority, which approval shall not 
be unreasonably withheld. If an emergency road closure is needed, the construction 
manager shall immediately notify the Road Authority. Road and intersection closures 
shall be marked and signed by Developer at its expense in accordance with the 
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices and any other applicable requirements set 
forth in State statute or regulation or other applicable local ordinance. Developer shall 
provide reasonable notice to the Road Authority, the Tazewell County Emergency 
Services and Disaster Agencies, local law enforcement agencies, affected rural mail 
providers, affected school districts and fire protection and ambulance service 
providers prior to closing the Local Road or intersections. The Road Authority may 
issue a Notice of Violation (Exhibit B) and impose a fine of $5,000.00 if Developer fails 
to comply with this section. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

134134



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 3 of 25 

9. Developer shall develop and implement a traffic control plan in compliance with the 
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices and designate work zones and 
construction activities affecting the Local Road in accordance with the Manual on 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 

10. Upon request of the Road Authority, and at least ten (10) business days before 
construction of the solar farm begins, Developer shall obtain and deliver to the Road 
Authority signs advising “No Solar Farm Construction Traffic” to be posted at various 
locations as an aid to traffic management. All such signs shall comply with the Manual 
on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 

11. Developer and its Parties shall not use local roads or road rights-of-way as storage or 
staging areas or as parking areas for vehicles and equipment. except to the extent 
required for short-term unloading, which shall be undertaken subject to IDOT traffic 
control standards, including flaggers, as may be necessary for such short-term parking 
and unloading. 

12. Vehicles driven by Developer and Developer’s Parties will abide by local, state, and 
federal speed limit guidelines and comply with the Illinois Vehicle Code, 625 ILCS 5/1-
100 et seq. and other laws applicable to vehicles. 

13. The weight limit on the Local Road during the traditional road posting period (typically, 
October to April 15th of each year) is as follows: 

 County Highway  50,000 pounds 

At all other times, the gross weight limit of all vehicles is 80,000 pounds. For any 
vehicles exceeding these limits, Developer shall obtain an overweight/oversize vehicle 
permit from the Road Authority. The permit fees are as follows: 

 Overweight vehicles: $200.00 annually per vehicle 
 Oversized vehicles:  $200.00 annually per vehicle 
 Overweight & oversized vehicles:  $400.00 annually per vehicle 

Vehicle permits during the road posting period (if applicable) will be issued as weather 
and road conditions permit. The form of the overweight/oversize vehicle permit is 
attached hereto as Exhibit C. In the event Developer fails to obtain a required vehicle 
permit or fails to comply with the provisions of a vehicle permit, the Road Authority 
may issue a notice of violation in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B (a “Notice of 
Violation”) and may impose a fine of $2,500.00 for each violation and Developer shall 
pay any fine imposed within fifteen (15) business days. A violation notice may be 
issued by the Road Authority for unauthorized use of County or township roads within 
Tazewell County. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

135135



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 4 of 25 

14. Developer shall be required to obtain an entrance permit for each point of entry to the 
solar farm project site from the Road Authority, provided the entrance is from a local 
road under the Road Authority’s jurisdiction.  

15. Utility installations within the public right-of-way will require prior written approval from 
the Road Authority.  

16. Beginning with the month the Developer starts construction on the solar farm, the 
Developer shall pay the Road Authority a monthly fee of Three Hundred Dollars 
($300.00) to compensate the Road Authority for time spent on this Project by the Road 
Authority before and after the execution of this Agreement so that the Road Authority’s 
taxpayers do not bear any financial burden as result of the construction of Project. The 
monthly fees are not refundable and shall not be prorated. 

17. The Road Authority and Developer will monitor the Local Road for any safety issues, 
damages needing immediate repairs, traffic signs needing replacement, or other 
activity requiring actions to ensure the Local Road remains safe for the motoring 
public. The Road Authority and the Developer, by its construction manager, will 
communicate with one another as to such issues. If serious or emergency repairs to 
the Local Road are required as a result of Developer’s activities, Developer shall 
cause necessary repairs to be made at its expense to the satisfaction of the Road 
Authority and to ensure safe passage of the motoring public within a reasonable time, 
and in any event within twenty-four (24) hours; unless an immediate hazard exists that 
renders a Local Road incapable of being used, in which case Developer shall take 
action as soon as reasonably possible to make the Local Road safe for the motoring 
public. If the Local Road is not safe for travel by the motoring public, the Road 
Authority may close the road upon providing reasonable notice and details of such 
hazardous conditions to Developer. The Road Authority may issue a Notice of 
Violation (Exhibit B) and impose a fine of $5,000.00 if Developer fails to remediate a 
road hazard in a timely manner. 

18. The Road Authority may issue a Notice of Violation (Exhibit B) and impose a fine of 
up to $2,500.00 if the Road Authority determines a traffic control deficiency exists as 
provided for in the attached notice or as in Article 105.03 of the IDOT Standard 
Specifications for Road and Bridge Work. Before issuing a Notice of Violation for a 
traffic control deficiency, the Road Authority shall notify and direct Developer to correct 
the deficiency within a reasonably specified time which will be ½ hour to 12 hours 
based upon the urgency of the situation and the nature of the deficiency. 

19. If Developer or Developer’s Parties use a local road under the Road Authority’s 
jurisdiction or of any other road jurisdiction which is not permitted by this Agreement, 
Developer shall be liable for the cost of repairing any damage caused by the 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

136136



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 5 of 25 

unauthorized use and shall pay a fine in the amount of $2,500.00 to the affected road 
authority, in addition to any other fines that may apply. 

20. All work on the Local Road and rights-of-way shall be performed in a good and 
workmanlike manner and shall be in accordance with IDOT Standards and the 
"Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction" (and any updates 
thereto), the "IDOT Standard Specifications") and local standard specifications. 

21. If Developer reimburses the Road Authority for road work performed by the Road 
Authority, Developer shall pay for the Road Authority’s work in accordance with Motor 
Fuel Tax Equipment Rates for the Road Authority in effect at the time the work is 
performed. Payments shall be made by Developer to the Road Authority within thirty 
(30) calendar days from the date a bill is delivered to Developer by mail or e-mail. 

22. Developer shall be financially responsible for the repair of any damage to the Local 
Road to restore the Local Road to the same or better condition as existed prior to the 
damage (the "Road Repairs"); provided, however, Developer shall not be required to 
upgrade a surface treatment (that is, improve a seal coat road to a hot mix asphalt 
road) or widen a road or shoulders (unless needed to accommodate Developer’s 
construction traffic). The scope of road damage (if any) at the time this Agreement is 
executed cannot be known; if conditions warrant following construction of the solar 
farm, the Road Repairs may require subsurface, drainage, and surface repairs 
(including an hauling in aggregate), as well as ditch and shoulder work (including 
seeding) and related engineering services. 

23. When construction of the solar farm is complete, the Road Authority, a representative 
from Developer, and civil engineers as the parties may select, shall meet and review 
the condition of the Local Road and discuss the required Road Repairs. Following the 
on-site review of the Local Road, the parties shall make a good faith effort to promptly 
and mutually agree to the needed Road Repairs, as well as the cost of the Road 
Repairs so that a lump sum amount (the “Road Repair Payment”) shall be paid by 
Developer to the Road Authority. 

a. If the parties cannot agree upon Road Repairs after a good faith attempt to resolve 
the dispute or upon written demand by either party, the parties, within twenty-one 
(21) calendar days shall select a neutral engineer for resolution of the dispute (the 
“Neutral Engineer”). The Neutral Engineer shall be an independent civil 
engineering firm which is mutually acceptable to the parties and has experience in 
rural Illinois and is licensed in the State of Illinois. The parties and the Neutral 
Engineer shall promptly agree to procedures for submitting position papers and 
information to the Neutral Engineer and for an on-site inspection (if needed) by the 
Neutral Engineer. The Neutral Engineer shall complete its review and inspection 
within thirty (30) business days of its engagement by the parties and issue its 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

137137



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 6 of 25 

written report. The determination of the Neutral Engineer shall be binding upon the 
parties. The costs for such inspection and report by the Neutral Engineer shall be 
paid by Developer. 

24. Developer shall furnish the Road Authority with evidence of liability insurance in the 
amount of at least Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000.00) (United States currency) per 
occurrence covering the activities of Developer contemplated by this Agreement. The 
insurance shall be written by a company rated by Standard & Poor’s rating group as 
B+ or better or as otherwise determined to be acceptable by the Road Authority. A 
Certificate of Insurance shall be provided to the Road Authority before construction of 
the solar farm begins. The insurance policy shall provide for a thirty (30) day “prior 
notice of changes or termination” provision in favor of the Road Authority. Should 
Developer allow such liability insurance to terminate, the Road Authority shall have 
recourse against the funds posted by Developer sufficient to cause the liability 
insurance to be reinstated. Tazewell County and its elected and appointed officials, 
agents, and employees shall be named as additional insureds on the policy. 

25. At least seven (7) calendar days before construction of the solar farm begins, 
Developer shall deliver to the Road Authority an irrevocable letter of credit in the 
amount of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) per mile of Local Road to 
be held as financial security (the “Financial Security”) by the Road Authority to ensure 
Developer’s performance of its obligations under this Agreement. The letter of credit 
shall be issued by a sound financial institution located in the United States of American 
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D. 

a. The Road Authority shall only be entitled to use the Financial Security in the event 
of a default under this Agreement by Developer. The Road Authority shall not use 
the Financial Security unless and until fourteen (14) calendar days after the receipt 
by Developer of a written notice specifying such default; if, after said fourteen (14) 
day period, (1) Developer does not cure the default OR (2) if the nature or extent 
of the obligation is such that more than fourteen (14) days are required, if 
Developer has not begun diligently pursuing actions to remedy the default. 

b. Within thirty (30) days of the Road Authority’s receipt of the Road Repair Payment, 
the Road Authority shall return the Financial Security to Developer or provide 
consent or authorization for the release or termination of the Financial Security. 

26. Developer shall indemnify, defend, and hold the Road Authority harmless for any and 
all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, or causes of actions brought against 
Tazewell County and/or its officers, employees, agents, representatives, and 
permitted assignees of any of the foregoing for any judgments, liabilities, obligations, 
fines, penalties, or expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenditures 
pertaining to third party personal injury or property damage (“Losses”), including but 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

138138



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 7 of 25 

not limited to claims related to any damage caused by increased runoff or change in 
drainage patterns caused by Developer’s construction of the solar farm (including, but 
not limited to, the construction of access roads, laydown yards, and substations) but 
only to the extent that such Losses arise directly from the acts of Developer or 
Developer’s Parties. 

27. Developer agrees to reimburse the Road Authority for all reasonable attorneys' fees 
and costs associated with the negotiation, drafting, and execution of this Agreement, 
and for the ongoing review of compliance with the Agreement in the ordinary course. 

28. Developer shall reimburse the Road Authority for all reasonable direct costs incurred 
in connection with any and all the road issues relating to Developer’s use of the Local 
Road. If any action at law or in equity is brought by the Road Authority to enforce this 
Agreement and the Road Authority prevails in such litigation, the Road Authority shall 
be entitled to receive from Developer reasonable attorneys' fees and costs incurred, 
in addition to any other relief to which the Road Authority may be entitled. 

29. This Agreement shall terminate upon the release and return of the Financial Security 
to Developer. 

30. In the event Developer desires use of Local Roads for the development of another 
new or separate solar energy project, another road agreement with the Road Authority 
shall be required. 

31. All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and addressed as 
follows: 

If to the Road Authority: 

Tazewell County Highway Department 
ATTN:  County Engineer 
21308 IL Route 9 
Tremont, IL  61568 
Telephone: 309-925-5532 
Facsimile: 309-925-5533 
Email: DParr@tazewell-il.gov 

With copies to: 

Tazewell County State’s Attorney 
Tazewell County Courthouse 
342 Court Street, Suite 6 
Pekin, IL  61554-3298 
Telephone: 309-477-2205 
Email:  mholly@tazewell-il.gov 

and 

Sheryl Churney 
Klein, Thorpe & Jenkins, Ltd. 
7 Northpoint Drive 
Streator, IL  61364 
Telephone: 815-672-3116 
Email:  shchurney@ktjlaw.com 

and 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

139139



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 8 of 25 

Tazewell County Community Development 
Attn: Jaclynn Workman 
11 S 4th St. Room 400 
Pekin, IL 61554 
Telephone: (309)477-2235 
Email:  jworkman@tazewell-il.gov

If to Developer: 

Coyote Road Solar, LLC 
Attn: Eli Varol – Solar Development 
353 N. Clark Street, 30th Floor 
Chicago, IL 60654 
Telephone: 312-923-9463 
Email: eli.varol@rwe.com 

With a copy to: 

RWE Clean Energy Development, LLC 
1401 E 6th St., Suite 400 
Austin, TX 78702 
Attn: Legal Department, General Counsel 
Telephone: (501) 368-8911 
Email: ann.smith@rwe.com 

Unless otherwise provided, a notice shall be deemed to be received by a party (1) on 
the date of personal service; (2) five (5) calendar days after being sent by registered 
or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or (3) on the next business 
day if sent by overnight delivery service (e.g. Federal Express) with all fees prepaid. 
Notice may be sent to a provided e-mail address, however, notice sent via e-mail shall 
be followed by notice delivered by method described in subsections (1) - (3), unless 
such additional notice is waived in writing by the party receiving the notice. If notice is 
effected by e-mail, notice shall be deemed received on the date the receiving party 
provides written notification to the other party that a delivery of notice by supplemental 
means is not required. Either party may change the designated contact by providing 
notice to the other party of the new contact information in accordance with this 
paragraph. 

32. Whenever the consent or approval of any party hereto is required in this Agreement 
such consent or approval shall be in writing and shall not be unreasonably withheld or 
delayed, and, in all matters contained herein, the parties shall have an implied 
obligation of reasonableness, except as may be expressly set forth otherwise. 

33. The failure of a party to exercise any right under this Agreement shall not, unless 
otherwise provided or agreed to in writing, be deemed a waiver thereof; nor shall a 
waiver by a party of any provisions hereof be deemed a waiver of any future 
compliance therewith, and such provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

34. This Agreement (including Exhibits) shall constitute the complete and entire 
agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. No prior 
statement or agreement, oral or written, shall vary or modify the written terms hereof. 
Except as set forth in this Agreement, this Agreement may be amended only by a 
written agreement signed by the parties. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

140140



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 9 of 25 

35. In the event that any clause, provision, or remedy in this Agreement shall, for any 
reason, be deemed invalid or unenforceable, the remaining clauses and provisions 
shall not be affected, impaired or invalidated and shall remain in full force and effect. 

36. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the respective 
successors and assigns of the parties. 

37. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of 
the State of Illinois, without regard to the conflict of laws provisions in such state. Any 
disputes arising under this Agreement between the Parties shall be decided by a court 
of competent jurisdiction in the Tenth Judicial Circuit, Tazewell County, Illinois. 

38. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same agreement. 
Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page to this Agreement by e-mail 
shall be as effective as delivery of a manually signed counterpart to this Agreement. 
Electronic signatures complying with the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act, 815 
ILCS 333/1 et seq., as amended from time to time, or other applicable law, will be 
deemed original signatures for purposes of this Agreement. 

39. No provisions of this Agreement shall in any way inure to the benefit of any person or 
third party so as to constitute any such person or third party as a third-party beneficiary 
under this Agreement, or of any one or more of the terms of this Agreement or 
otherwise give rise to any cause of action in any person not a Party hereto. 

40. A Memorandum of this Agreement (substantially in the form of Exhibit E hereto) shall 
be recorded with the Tazewell County Recorder of Deeds by Developer at its expense 
within thirty (30) calendar days after the execution of this Agreement and a copy of 
the recorded Memorandum shall be delivered to the Road Authority within sixty (60) 
calendar days after the execution of this Agreement. Upon termination of this 
Agreement and release of the Financial Security in accordance with Section 25, the 
parties shall cooperate in executing and recording a release or termination of the 
Memorandum of Agreement, in a form mutually acceptable to both parties. 

41. In the event of any ambiguity in the terms of this Agreement that the parties are unable 
to resolve and a dispute concerning such an ambiguity is subject to resolution by a 
judicial or alternative dispute resolution proceeding, then the ambiguity, if an ambiguity 
is found to exist, shall be interpreted and resolved in the light most favorable to the 
Road Authority. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

141141



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 10 of 25 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each party hereto has caused its duly authorized 
representative to sign this Agreement on its behalf as of the date first set forth above. 

Coyote Road Solar, LLC  Tazewell County, Illinois 

By:  By:  
Name: Joon Park  Brett Grimm, 
Title: Vice President County Board Chairman 

Attest: 

By:  
John C. Ackerman 
County Clerk 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

142142



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 11 of 25 

Exhibit A: Map of Local Road for Haul Route 

(attached)

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

143143



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 12 of 25 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

144144



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 13 of 25 

Exhibit B: Notice of Violation Form 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION 

Deliver to: 

Coyote Road Solar, LLC 
ATTN: Central Solar Development 
353 N. Clark Street, 30th Floor 
Chicago, IL 60654 
Phone: (312) 923-9463 
Email: eli.varol@rwe.com 

Method of Delivery 
(Select all that apply) 
 Email 
 Overnight Delivery 
 Personal Delivery to  

construction manager at site 

Date: _______________________, 202___ 

Notice is hereby given to Developer that a violation of the Road Use Agreement entered into by 
the Road Authority and Developer has occurred. 

Select: Type of Violation: Fine: Notes: 
Road closure exceeds approved 
time

$1,000 (each 
30 minutes)

Failure to obtain or comply with 
OW/OS vehicle permit $2,500 

Use of unpermitted road $2,500
Failure to remediate road hazard $5,000
Failure to notify of road closure 
or limited access event $5,000
Traffic Control Deficiency Up to $2,500

Location: 

Date/time:  

Worker(s) or Contractor(s) involved:  

Additional Notes:  

Signature:  

Print Name:  

Title:  

Fine must be paid within 21 days’ of receipt of this Notice and be delivered to: 
Address: Tazewell County Highway Dept., 21308 Illinois Route 9, Tremont, IL 61568

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

145145



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 14 of 25 

Exhibit C: Overweight/Oversize Vehicle Permit Application 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

146146



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 15 of 25 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

147147



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 16 of 25 

Exhibit D: Form of Letter of Credit 

FORM OF IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT FORM 

BENEFICIARY 
Tazewell County, Illinois 
ATTN:  County Engineer 
21308 IL RT 9 
Tremont, IL 61568 
Phone:  309-925-5532 

APPLICANT 
INSERT NAME 
INSERT ADDRESS 
INSERT CITY STATE ZIP 

MONTH DAY, YEAR 

Irrevocable Letter of Credit No.     
Stated Amount: USD  
Effective Date: ________________ 
Expiration Date: ________________ 
Issuer:  ________________________ 

STREET ADDRESS 
CITY, STATE   ZIP 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

We hereby issue this letter of credit at the request of and on behalf of Tazewell County, Illinois. 
We irrevocably authorize Beneficiary to draw on us from time to time amounts, which, when 
aggregated with prior draws, do not exceed the Stated Amount (as shown above). The Stated 
Amount may be increased or reduced from time to time as forth in this Letter of Credit. We shall 
make funds available to you against presentation of a dated and appropriately completed draw 
request in the form of Attachment 1 hereto manually signed by the Beneficiary. This Letter of 
Credit is effective immediately. 

Each draw request and all communications with respect to this Letter of Credit shall (i) be in 
writing and addressed to INSERT ADDRESS INFORMATION, (ii) refer to this Letter of Credit, 
and (iii) be delivered by certified mail or by overnight delivery service. Drawings may be presented 
by telecopy (“fax”) to fax number [to be inserted] under telephone pre-advice to [number to be 
inserted], provided that such fax presentation is received on or before the Expiration Date on this 
instrument in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Letter of Credit, it being understood 
that any such fax presentation shall be considered the sole operative instrument of drawing.  In the 
event of presentation by fax, the original documents should not also be presented. 

If a draw request is presented in strict compliance with the terms of this Letter of Credit by 11:00 
A.M. Eastern Time on any Business Day, payment will be made not later than 6:00 P.M. Eastern 
Time on the following Business Day and if a draw request is so presented to us after 11:00 A.M. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

148148



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 17 of 25 

Eastern Time on any Business Day, payment will be made on the second succeeding Business Day 
not later than 6:00 P.M. Eastern Time.  Payment under this Letter of Credit shall be made in 
immediately available funds by wire transfer to such account as may be designated by a 
Beneficiary in the applicable draw request. 

As used in this Letter of Credit, “Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday, 
national or state holiday or other day on which commercial banks are authorized or required to 
close under the laws of the State of New York and a day on which payments can be effected on 
the fedwire system. 

It is a condition of this Letter of Credit that the Expiration Date shall be automatically extended 
without amendment for one (1) year from the Expiration Date hereof and for successive one (1) 
year periods thereafter unless at least thirty (30) days prior to any such Expiration Date we send 
notice to you by certified mail or hand delivered courier, at the address stated above, that we elect 
not to extend this Letter of Credit for any additional period. 

In the event that a draw request fails to comply with the terms of this Letter of Credit, we shall 
promptly notify the Beneficiary in writing, specifying with particularity the reasons therefore. 
Such notice shall be delivered in person or sent by overnight delivery or sent by email to the 
Beneficiary and to Sheryl Churney, Klein, Thorpe & Jenkins, Ltd., 7 Northpoint Drive, Streator, 
Illinois  61364, 815-672-0738 (facsimile), shchurney@ktjlaw.com. Our failure to so notify any 
party other than the named beneficiary hereof shall not invalidate such notice of non-compliance. 
Upon being notified that a draw request was not effected in compliance with this Letter of Credit, 
the Beneficiary may attempt to correct such non-complying draw request in accordance with the 
terms of this Letter of Credit.  

All issuing bank charges are for the account of the Applicant. 

This Letter of Credit sets forth in full the terms of our undertaking and this undertaking shall not 
in any way be modified, amended, limited or amplified by reference to any other document, 
instrument or agreement, whether or not referred to herein. 

This Letter of Credit contemplates and allows for multiple draws. Each draw shall reduce the 
amount available for subsequent draws under this Letter of Credit. The Stated Amount may be 
increased or reduced by subsequent amendments hereto. No amendment reducing the available 
amount of this Letter of Credit shall be effective without the written concurrence of the 
Beneficiary. 

We hereby agree with you that documents presented under and in conformity with the terms and 
conditions of this Letter of Credit will be duly honored on presentation if presented on or before 
the expiration date of this Letter of Credit. 

This Letter of Credit is governed by the provisions of the Uniforms Customs and Practice for 
Documentary Credits (2007 Revision), International Chamber of Commerce Publication No. 600 
(“UCP600”) and matters not addressed by UCP600 shall be governed and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Illinois. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

149149



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 18 of 25 

We irrevocably agree with you that any legal action or proceeding with respect to this Letter of 
Credit shall be brought in the Circuit Court of the Tenth Judicial Circuit, Tazewell County, Illinois. 

BANK NAME 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

150150



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 19 of 25 

Attachment 1 

DRAW REQUEST 

BANK NAME 
STREET ADDRESS 
CITY, STATE   ZIP 

Copy to: 
__________________ 
INSERT NAME 
INSERT ADDRESS 
INSERT CITY, STATE, ZIP 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

The undersigned, on behalf of Tazewell County, Illinois (the “Beneficiary” hereunder), hereby 
requests a draw in the amount of $ ________________ (“this Draw”) against the Irrevocable Letter 
of Credit _____ dated ________________, 202__, (the “Letter of Credit”), issued by BANK 
NAME in favor of the Beneficiary.  Any capitalized term used but not defined herein shall have 
the meaning given to such term in the Letter of Credit. 

In connection with this Draw, the Beneficiary hereby certifies, represents and warrants that: 

A)  This Draw is authorized by the Road Use Agreement dated [INSERT DATE, 202___] 
entered into by and between Coyote Road Solar, LLC  (“Developer”) and Tazewell 
County, Illinois (the “Road Agreement”). 

B) The Beneficiary has determined that there has been a default under the Road Agreement 
and that by reason thereof the Beneficiary is entitled to the amount demanded. [alternative 
basis: The Beneficiary has received notice from the Bank of its intention not to extend the 
Letter of Credit beyond the current expiration date and Developer has failed, prior to the 
close of business on [ _] [insert date which is not more than thirty (30) days before the 
present expiration date], to deliver to Beneficiary a replacement Letter of Credit satisfying 
the requirements of the Agreement]. 

C) The Beneficiary has given written notice of such default to Developer in accordance with 
the terms of the Road Agreement and Developer has failed to cure the default within 
fourteen (14) calendar days after the mailing of the written notice. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

151151



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 20 of 25 

D) This Draw request, when aggregated with all prior draws under the Letter of Credit, does 
not exceed the Stated Amount. 

E) You are directed to make payment of this Draw to 
________________________________________________________. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed and delivered this request on this 
_____ day of ______________, 202__. 

Tazewell County, Illinois 
as Beneficiary 

By _____________________________ 
Name ___________________________ 
Title:  County Engineer OR  

County Board Chair 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

152152



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 21 of 25 

Exhibit E: Memorandum of Agreement 

MEMORANDUM 

OF AGREEMENT

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Agreement was entered into by and between 
Tazewell County, Illinois and Coyote Road Solar, LLC (the “Developer”) concerning use 
of local roads and road rights-of-way under the jurisdiction of Tazewell County and 
affecting real estate in the following sections of Malone, Hopedale, Boynton, and Delavan 
Townships:   

Malone Township: Sections 11, 12, 13, 14, 24, 25 

Hopedale Township: Sections 29, 32 

Boynton Township: Sections 4, 5, 6 

Delavan Township: Sections 1, 2, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 30 

The Agreement imposed obligations upon the Developer related to use of local roads and 
road rights-of-way under the jurisdiction of the Road Authority for the construction of the 
Developer’s solar farm located on the parcel identified: 

Legal Description: See Attached Exhibit A 

PIN: See Attached Exhibit A 

Commonly known as: Delavan and Malone Township, Tazewell County, IL 

Coyote Road Solar, LLC 

By:  

Print Name: ___________________ 

Title: 

Date: _____________, 2025 

Subscribed to and sworn before me 
on   , 202__ 

Notary Public 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

153153



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 22 of 25 

THIS DOCUMENT PREPARED BY:  AND RETURN TO: 

Coyote Road Solar, LLC  Sheryl Churney 
ATTN: Ann Smith  
Legal Real Estate  Klein, Thorpe & Jenkins, Ltd. 
353 N. Clark Street, 30th Floor  7 Northpoint Drive 
Chicago, IL 60654  Streator, IL  61354 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

154154



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 23 of 25 

Exhibit A 

Legal Description and PINs of Solar Project 

Legal Description PIN 

The South Half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 19, Township 22 
North, Range 4 West of the Third Principal Meridian, in Tazewell 
County, Illinois.

21-21-19-300-003 

The North Half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 19, Township 22 
North, Range 4 West of the Third Principal Meridian 

21-21-19-300-002 

The Southeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 24, Township 
22, Range 5 West of the Third Principal Meridian, Tazewell County, 
Illinois.

20-20-24-400-002 

The Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 24, Township 
22 North, Range 5 West of the Third Principal Meridian, Tazewell 
County, Illinois.

20-20-24-400-001 

The South Half of the Southeast Quarter of Section 30, Township 22 
North, Range 4 West of the Third Principal Meridian, Tazewell County, 
Illinois. PIN: 21-21-30-400-004.

21-21-30-400-004 

The North half of the North half of the Southeast Quarter and 5 acres in 
even width off the East side of the North half of the North half of the 
Southwest Quarter of Section 24, Township 22, North, Range 5 West of 
the Third Principal Meridian, Tazewell County, Illinois, containing 45 
acres, more or less, subject; however, to an easement for ingress and 
egress 25 feet in width off of the North side of the North half of the North 
half of the Southeast Quarter and 5 acres in even width off the East side 
of the North half of the North half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 
24, Township 22 North, Range 5 West of the Third Principal Meridian, 
Tazewell County, Illinois.

20-20-24-400-003 

The Northeast Quarter of Section 30, Township 22 North, Range 4 West 
of the Third Principal Meridian, Tazewell County, Illinois.  

21-21-30-200-001 

The West Half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 25, Township 22 
North, Range 5 West of the Third Principal Meridian, Tazewell County, 
Illinois.

20-20-26-300-001 

The East Half of the Southeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 22 North. 
Range 5 West of the Third Principal Meridian, Tazewell County, Illinois 
EXCEPT that part described as follows: Beginning at the Southwest 
Corner of the East Half of the Southeast Quarter of Section 26; thence 
North 661 feet; thence East 212 feet; thence South 222 feet; thence West 
198 feet; thence South 439 feet; thence West 14 feet to the point of 
beginning, all situated in Tazewell County, Illinois.

20-20-26-400-002 

The South Half  (S ½) of the Northeast Quarter (N ¼) of Section Twenty-
five (25), Township Twenty-two (22) North Range Five (5) west of the  

20-20-25-200-007 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

155155



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 24 of 25 

Legal Description PIN 

Third Principal Meridian, EXCEPT a strip of land one (1) rod off the 
south side thereof, and subject to easement rights heretofore granted. 
LESS AND EXCEPT: 
Dedicated right of way as described instrument dated March 1960, 
granted by John Betzelberger, in favor of the County of Tazewell, State 
of Illinois, recorded on June 2, 1960 in Volume 626, Page 593 (ROW), 
Official Public Records, Tazewell County, Illinois. 
AND LESS AND EXCEPT: 
Beginning at a point five hundred (500) feet North of the Southeast 
Corner of the Southeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 25, 
Township 22 North, Range 5  West of the Third Principal Meridian, 
Tazewell County, Illinois, thence running West 260 feet, thence North 
100 Fee, thence East 260 Feet and thence South  100 feet to the place of 
beginning, excepting that part conveyed for highway use and subject to 
any easements of record, and all being situated in the County of Tazewell, 
in the State of Illinois. 
And being the same real estate conveyed to Robert Logan Betzelberger 
and Luellen Marie Betzelberger, husband and wife, by Logan E. 
Betzelberger and M. Josephine Betzelberger, his wife,  by Deed dated 
August 12, 1971, recorded September 10, 1971 in  Volume 878, Page 10 
(D), Official Public Records, Tazewell County, Illinois. 
AND ALSO, LESS AND EXCEPT: 
A part of the Northeast Quarter (NE1/4) of Section 25, Township 22 
North, Range 5 West of the Third Principal Meridian, Malone Township, 
Tazewell County, Illinois, more particularly described as follows: 
Commencing at the Southeast Corner of said Northeast Quarter; thence 
North 01°-19'-22" West 16.50 feet along the East Line of said Northeast 
Quarter to the North Line of the South one rod of said Northeast Quarter 
and the point of beginning. From said point of beginning, thence South 
88°-26'-05" West 2610.62 feet along said North Line to the West Line of 
said Northeast Quarter; thence 01°-29’-14" West 1015.64' feet along said 
West Line; thence North 88°-30'-46" East 353.70 feet; thence South 01°-
29'-14" East 633.78 feet; thence South 88°-30'-46" West 303.70 feet to a 
point 50 feet normally distant East of said West Line; thence South 01°-
29'-14" East 296.73 feet along a line parallel with said West Line to a 
point of curvature; thence Southeast 70.75 feet along the arc of a curve 
concave to the Northeast with a radius of 45.00 feet and the 63.68 foot 
chord of said arc bears South 46°-31'35" East to a point of Tangency 
being 40 feet normally distant North of said North Line; thence North 
88°-26'¬05" East 2515.67 feet along a line parallel with said North Line 
to said East Line; thence South 01°-19'-22" East 40.00 feet along said 
East Line to the point of beginning and containing 7.95 acres, more or 
less, and all being situated in the County of Tazewell, in the State of 
Illinois.

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

156156



Tazewell Co. – Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agr. Page 25 of 25 

Legal Description PIN 

And being the same real estate conveyed to Rail Splitter Wind  Farm, 
LLC, by Robert Logan Betzelberger and Linda Lee Betzelberger as 
Trustees of the Loan E. Betzelberger Trust, established in the Last Will 
and Testament of Loan E. Betzelberger,  by Deed dated June 13, 2008, 
recorded June 24, 2008 as Instrument No. 200800013881 (D), Official 
Public Records, Tazewell County, Illinois.
The North Half (N ½) of the North East Quarter (NE ¼) of Section 
Twenty-Five (25), Township Twenty- North, Range Five (5) West of the 
Third Principal Meridian, subject to easement rights heretofore granted 
for Electric High Line purposes.

20-20-25-200-001 

The East Half of the Northeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 22 North 
Range 5 West of the Third Principal Meridian, AND The South Half of 
the Southwest Quarter of Section 24, Township 22 North, Range 5 West 
of the Third Principal Meridian AND The Northwest Quarter of Section 
25, Township 22 North, Range 5 West of the Principal Meridian, AND A 
Strip of land one rod wide off the North side of the North Half of the 
Southeast Quarter of Section 25, and a strip of land one rod wide off of 
the South side of the Northeast Quarter of Section 25, all in Township 22 
North, Range 5 West of the Third Principal Meridian, being situated in 
Tazewell County, Illinois. 

20-20-25-100-008 

The North Half of the Southeast Quarter of Section 30, Township 22 
North, Range 4 West of the Third Principal Meridian, Tazewell County, 
Illinois. 

21-21-30-400-003 

The North Half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 24, Township 22 
North, Range 5 West of the Third Principal Meridian, Tazewell County, 
Illinois, Except 5 acres in even width off of the East side of the North 
Half of the North Half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 24, Township 
22 North, Range 5 West of the Third Principal Meridian, Tazewell 
County, Illinois, together with an easement for ingress and egress 25 feet 
in width off the North side of the North Half of the North Half of the 
Southeast Quarter and 5 acres in even width off the East side of the North 
Half of the North Half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 24, Township 
22 North, Range 5 West of the Third Principal Meridian, and all being 
situated in the County of Tazewell, in the State of Illinois. 

20-20-24-300-001 

The South Half of the North Half of the Southeast Quarter of Section 24, 
Township 22 North, Range 5 West of the Third Principal Meridian, 
Tazewell County, Illinois.  

20-20-24-400-004 

The North Half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 30, Township 22 
North, Range 4 West of the Third Principal Meridian, in Tazewell 
County, Illinois. 

21-21-30-300-010 

Docusign Envelope ID: 0629E482-F41D-4B8C-A8C1-17178919BF24

157157



                                  E-25-61 

COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 

Your Executive Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends that it be 
adopted by the Board: 

              

RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, the County’s Executive Committee recommends to the County Board to approve the 
attached Decommissioning Agreement for Fast Ave Solar, LLC; and 

WHEREAS, the 4.99 MW solar farm was approved by the Zoning Board of Appeals for Special Use on 
July 24th, 2024 to be located on approximately 37.67 acres located 33885 Fast Ave and  in Mackinaw 
Township; and 

WHEREAS, the plan is in accordance with the Illinois Department of Agriculture’s – Agricultural 
Impact Mitigation Agreement, in accordance with 20 IL-CS 5/5-222, and Chapters 156 and 157 of 
the Tazewell County Code. 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve this recommendation 

BET IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk Notified the County Board Office, Community 
Development and the Auditor of this action.  

PASSSED THIS 30th DAY of July, 2025. 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

             
Tazewell County Clerk      Tazewell County Board Chairman  

158158



  

 

 

 

DECOMMISSIONING AND SITE RECLAMATION PLAN  

FAST AVE SOLAR LLC 
TAZEWELL COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
 

 
Prepared for:  

Dimension Energy, LLC 

3050 Peachtree Rd, 4th Floor  

Atlanta, GA 30305 

 

Prepared By: 

 

 Kimley-Horn & Associates, Inc. 

570 Lake Cook Rd, Suite 200 

Deerfield, IL 60015 

Contact: Ryan Solum, P.E.  

 

Prepared on: June 18, 2025

159159



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 1 

Background 1 

2.0 PROJECT COMPONENTS 2 

Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Equipment 2 
Internal Power Collection System 2 
Earthwork 2 
Roads 2 
Fencing 2 

3.0 PROJECT DECOMMISSION AND RECYLCING 2 

Decommission Preparation 3 
Permits and Approvals 3 
PV Equipment Removal and Recycling 3 
Internal Power Collection System 3 
Roads 3 
Fencing 4 
Landscaping 4 
Site Restoration 4 

4.0 FUTURE LAND USE 4 

5.0 PROJECT DECOMMISSION COSTS AND FINANCIAL ASSURANCE 5 

 

 

Exhibits  

A. Opinion of Probable Construction Cost with Salvage 
B. SFLP Rev 1 (dated 01/17/2025) 
C. Executed Agricultural Impact Mitigation Agreement (AIMA)  

160160



This page intentionally left blank 
  

161161



1.0 INTRODUCTION 

Background 
Fast Ave Solar LLC, a wholly owned entity of Dimension Energy, LLC (collectively, the “Applicant” or 
“Fast Ave” or “Dimension”), hereby submits this Decommissioning and Site Reclamation Plan 
(“Decommissioning Plan” or “Plan”) for compliance with the Agricultural Impact Mitigation Agreement 
and Tazewell County Solar Energy Systems Ordinance Section 156.06 to construct, operate, and 
maintain the Fast Ave Solar LLC solar project, a proposed 4.99 MWac Solar Energy System (Project) 
on approximately 37.67 acres within PIN 13-13-14-400-004 in Tazewell County, Illinois. As shown in 
Exhibit B: SFLP Rev 1, the Project’s site layout meets the required minimum road right-of-way 
setbacks and property line setbacks according to Solar Energy Systems Ordinance of Tazewell County. 

The Project will be sited on a parcel that is approximately 37.67 acres. In existing conditions, the site 
is a relatively flat agricultural field. 

This Decommissioning Plan (Plan) is developed in compliance with Agricultural Impact Mitigation 
Agreement (AIMA) and Solar Energy Systems Ordinance of Tazewell County. 

This Plan covers and addresses the following elements outlined in the conditions of the AIMA and 
Solar Energy Systems of Tazewell County:  

• Removal of Above Ground and Below Ground Infrastructure; 

• Repair of compaction and rutting; 

• Prevention of soil erosion; 

• Access roads; 

• Weed/vegetation control; 

• Decommissioning plans and financial assurance of commercial solar energy facilities. 

 
In addition, per Executed Agricultural Impact Mitigation Agreement (AIMA), the Project must be fully 
decommissioned within twelve (12) months of the end of the Project’s useful life in accordance with 
the decommissioning plan. 

162162



 2.0 PROJECT COMPONENTS 
The Project Components that are subject to decommission include the equipment summarized below. 
The decommission activities associated with these components are discussed in Section 3.0 of this 
Plan. 

Solar Photovoltaic (PV) Equipment 
The project will use Solar Photovoltaic (PV) modules mounted on single axis tracker racking with 
steel pile foundations.  

Internal Power Collection System 
The PV-generated DC power will be collected from each of the multiple rows of PV modules through 
one or more combiner boxes and conveyed to inverters. The inverters will convert the DC power to 
AC power, which will be interconnected into the existing power line running along the north side of 
the project boundary. 

Transformers and PV combining switchgear will be mounted on concrete foundations.  

Earthwork  
It is anticipated that the site will require minimal grading for the Project. Site grading and drainage will 
be conducted in accordance with Final Civil Construction plans.  

Roads 
Permanent access to the Project will be off Fast Avenue. The site access will be constructed in 
accordance with Tazewell County requirements and the Final Civil Construction Plans. Per request 
of the Tazewell County Highway Engineer and the Mackinaw Township Road Commissioner, the 
project will also include a temporary construction access driveway from County Hwy 17 (Lilly Road). 
This temporary access will be removed once construction is complete. The on-site site access road 
is anticipated to be gravel. Both driveways will require a culvert and will be designed during Final 
Engineering. 

Fencing 
The Project site will be surrounded by a seven-foot fence. Entry gates will be provided near the site 
access of Fast Avenue. 

3.0 PROJECT DECOMMISSION AND RECYCLING 
Decommission includes removal of above-ground and below-ground structures. Only minor grading 
is anticipated during construction; and therefore, will require limited or no grading following 
decommission. Temporary erosion and sedimentation control Best Management Practices should be 
implemented during the decommission phase of the Project. Work hours on site will be typical 9 am 
– 5 pm or as otherwise required by the County.  

163163



Decommission Preparation 
Prior to commencement of the decommission process, the contractor will assess existing site 
conditions and prepare the site for demolition. Demolition debris shall be placed in temporary onsite 
storage area(s) pending final transportation and disposal and/or recycling according to the 
procedures listed below. 

Permits and Approvals 
It is anticipated that an NPDES Permit from the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) and 
a SWPPP will be required. The proposed development area of the site does not contain waters of the 
United States or Threatened or Endangered species; thus, no federal approvals are expected. 
Appropriate applications for permits from the state and/or local authorities having jurisdiction (AHJs) 
shall be submitted and approved prior to decommission activities.  

PV Equipment Removal and Recycling 
During decommissioning, Project components shall be removed from the site and recycled or 
disposed of at an appropriately licensed disposal facility. Above ground portions of the PV module 
supports shall be removed. Below ground portions of the PV module supports shall be removed 
entirely where practical, but to a depth of five feet at a minimum. Those supports that are more firmly 
anchored (e.g., such as embedded in bedrock) may be cut off at least five feet below ground or to the 
depth of bedrock, and the remaining support left in place. This depth will avoid impact of underground 
equipment on future farming or other construction activities. The demolition debris and removed 
equipment may be cut or dismantled into pieces that can be safely lifted or carried with the onsite 
equipment being used. The debris and equipment shall be processed for transportation and delivery 
to an appropriately licensed disposal facility or recycling center. Modules shall be recycled in 
accordance with the solar module manufacturer’s (or equivalent) recycling program. No hazardous 
materials or waste will be used during operation of the solar facility, and disposal of hazardous 
material or waste will not be required during decommission. 

Internal Power Collection System 
The cables, inverters, and transformers shall be dismantled. The concrete foundations shall be 
broken up, removed and recycled. If ground-screw foundations are used, they shall be removed and 
recycled. According to the AIMA, underground cables that are buried to a depth greater than five feet 
are not required to be removed; however, for this estimate, they will be counted as removed. 
Overhead conductors shall be removed from the poles, and the poles and pole foundations shall be 
removed. Aluminum from the conductors shall be recycled or removed from the site to an 
appropriately licensed disposal facility. 

Roads 
Gravel from the on-site access road shall be removed and recycled. Once the gravel is removed, the 
soil below the access road shall be scarified a depth of 18-inches and blended as noted in the Site 
Restoration section below.  

164164



Fencing 
Project site perimeter fence shall be removed at the end of the decommission project. Since the 
project site is not currently fenced, this includes removal of all posts, footings, fencing material, gates, 
etc. to return the site to pre-project condition. 

Landscaping 
Unless requested in writing to remain in place by the landowner, all vegetative landscaping and 
screening installed as part of the Project will be removed. Any weed control equipment used during 
the project, including weed-control fabrics or other ground covers shall be removed.  Landscape areas 
will be restored as noted in the Site Restoration section below.  

Site Restoration 
Once removal of all project equipment and landscaping is complete, all areas of the project site that 
are unvegetated or where vegetation was disturbed/removed as part of decommissioning shall be 
restored by the applicant. Restoration shall consist of applying additional topsoil, seed, and necessary 
fertilizer to ensure that adequate vegetation is established throughout the project site. Areas that 
exhibit compaction and/or rutting shall be scarified a depth of 18-inches prior to placement of topsoil 
and seed. The existence of drainage tile lines or underground utilities may necessitate less 
scarification depth. The applicant is responsible for promptly repairing damage to drain tiles and other 
drainage systems that result from decommissioning of the commercial solar energy facility. 

4.0 FUTURE LAND USE 
Per the requirements of the Illinois Department of Agriculture (IDOA), an Agricultural Impact 
Mitigation Agreement (AIMA) must be signed by the Facility owner and filed with the County Board 
prior to the Commencement of Construction. The IDOA prepared the AIMA to help preserve the 
integrity of any Agricultural Land that is impacted by the Construction and Decommission of a Solar 
Energy System. Per the AIMA, all solar panels shall be removed from the property and the land 
must be restored to its pre-existing condition for agricultural use at the end of the project life cycle. 
This Decommissioning Plan is consistent with the AIMA requirements to return the land to its pre-
project conditions as an agricultural field. Refer to Executed Agricultural Impact Mitigation 
Agreement (AIMA) for the AIMA. 

5.0 PROJECT DECOMMISSION COSTS AND FINANCIAL ASSURANCE 
The following provisions are incorporated into this Decommissioning Plan by reference to Tazewell 
County Solar Energy Systems Ordinance Section 156.06 Subsection 12: 

• Prior to issuance of the County building permit, the facility owner shall have the approval of 
the Decommissioning Plan to include the end of life cost estimate of decommissioning. The 
cost estimate shall be phased over the life of the project and increases at the inflation rate of 
the higher of either 2.5% or the average inflation rate of CPI-U of the three prior calendar 

165165



years, at the time of approval. The base estimate should not be more than 12 months old at 
the time of consideration. 

• Decommissioning of a Facility shall include the removal/disposition of all solar related 
equipment/facilities. 

• All bond issuers must maintain an A+ rating by AM Best for viability and consideration of the 
County Board. Said revaluation must be performed by a certified third-party Professional 
Engineer licensed in the State of Illinois and provided for review by the County. Should the 
County find reason to disagree with the revaluation, the County shall retain the services of an 
additional State of Illinois Licensed Professional Engineer, at the cost of the Facility Owner. 

• Any areas of decommissioning not specifically addressed herein or conflicting with the 
Department of Agriculture’s Agricultural Impact Mitigation Agreement shall adhere to the 
“Agreement” filed with the State of Illinois. 

• The construction method and techniques for the Facility and other similar facilities. 
• A comprehensive detailed description of how the Facility Owner plans to pay for the 

Deconstruction of the Facility. 

6.0 PROJECT DECOMMISSION COSTS AND FINANCIAL ASSURANCE 
The AIMA and Solar Energy Systems Ordinance of Tazewell County requires the Owner and/or 
Operator to provide a present-day decommission cost estimate and provide the County with Financial 
Assurance to cover the estimated costs of Decommission of the Facility. Financial Assurance to cover 
the estimated costs of end of life of decommissioning of the Commercial Solar Energy Facility shall 
be at ten percent (10%) of the cost estimate submitted and approved by the County on or before the 
first anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date of the Facility. Financial assurance shall be 
provided in the form of a surety or like bond and on or before the sixth anniversary, the Financial 
Assurance shall increase to fifty percent (50%) of the end of life decommissioning cost included in 
the approved Plan. Following the tenth anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date, and every five 
years thereafter, the County may re-evaluate the Plan and associated cost estimate. On or before 
the eleventh anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date, and every five years thereafter, the 
Financial Assurance shall be increased to one hundred percent (100%) of the end of life 
decommissioning cost, based upon the most recently re-evaluated version of the Plan. Additional 
detail can be found in the Standard Solar AIMA and Solar Energy Systems Ordinance of Tazewell 
County. See Exhibit A: Opinion of Probable Construction Cost with Salvage. Industry standard 
prices in 2025 for removal costs were determined using RS Means cost data. Removal cost includes 
materials, contractor installation/demolition, mobilization and demobilization, overhead and profit, and 
performance bonding.  

 

 

 

 

 

166166



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Opinion of Probable Construction Cost With Salvage 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

167167



Fast Avenue, LLC
Tazewell County, IL
Decommissioning Estimate Pro Forma w/ Salvage
The Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment, or over the Contractor's methods of determining prices or
over competitive bidding or market conditions. Opinions of probable costs provided herein are based on the information known to
Engineer at this time and represent only the Engineer's judgment as a design professional familiar with the construction industry. The
Engineer cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids, or actual construction costs will not vary from its opinions of probable
costs. LS = Lump Sum, HR = Hours, EA = Each, LF = Linear Feet.

Item Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Salvage Total Price (incl.
markups) Total Price

Mobilization 1 LS $ - $ 19,840.00 $ (19,840.00)

Temporary Facilities 1 LS $ - $ 2,380.00 $ (2,380.00)

Safety 1 LS $ - $ 1,610.00 $ (1,610.00)

Legal Expenses 1 LS $ - $ 430.00 $ (430.00)

General Liability Insurance 1 LS $ - $ 1,730.00 $ (1,730.00)

Contractor's G&A 1 LS $ - $ 3,260.00 $ (3,260.00)

SWPPP, Erosion Control
Measures (Disturbed Area) 26 AC $670.00 $ - $ 17,420.00 $ (17,420.00)

Seeding 2 AC $2,818.33 $ - $ 5,636.66 $ (5,636.66)

Tilling 6" topsoil/scarifying
access road and rough
grading existing soil

1 AC $27,651.44 $ - $ 27,651.44 $ (27,651.44)

Remove and Recycle
Chainlink Fence 4,664 LF $14.97 $ 2,350.66 $ 69,805.55 $ (67,454.89)

Remove Power Pole 7 EA $856.04 $ - $ 5,992.28 $ (5,992.28)

Remove and Recycle AC
Cables 875 LF $13.05 $ 148.31 $ 11,416.12 $ (11,267.81)

Remove and Recycle DC
Cables 151,042 LF $0.52 $ 25,601.58 $ 78,635.07 $ (53,033.49)

Backfill AC and DC
trenches 52,451 LF $0.87 $ - $ 45,866.34 $ (45,866.34)

Remove and Recycle
Inverters/Transformers 2 EA $4,551.50 $ 10,800.00 $ 9,103.00 $ 1,697.00

Remove and Recycle
Photovoltaic Modules 12,582 EA $3.31 $ 38,769.74 $ 41,646.42 $ (2,876.68)

Remove and Recycle Piles 2,495 EA $10.55 $ 25,149.60 $ 26,322.25 $ (1,172.65)

Remove and Recycle
Support Assemblies 385,037 LB $0.11 $ 34,653.36 $ 43,297.47 $ (8,644.10)

Contaminated Soils
Testing 1 LS $ - $ 4,000.00 $ (4,000.00)

Reclamation Monitoring
and Maintenance 1 LS $ - $ 10,000.00 $ (10,000.00)

Subtotal: $ 137,473.25 $ 426,042.60 $ (288,569.35)
40-Year Inflation (2.5%/year) ($486,257.77)

Total: ($774,827.12)
Notes:
1.  Quantites were recorded on 6/11/2025.
2. Labor productivity and unit rates were derived from RSMeans Online (Heavy Construction, 2025 data).
3. Labor, material, and equipment rates are based on the RSMeans City Cost Index (CCI) for Peoria, IL.
4. Material salvage values were based off of current US salvage exchange rates.
6. Equipment rental rates determined from RSMeans and/or local rental facilities.
7. Photovoltaic Module material salvage rate is based on straight-line depreciation of modules (-0.5% per year).
8. For PV Module Removal/Recycle labor and equipment costs are computed at present values, while salvage value is computed at depreciated
values.9. Material salvage values were determined using the most prevalent salvageable metal in each component. Copper Wire @$0.17/LF (AC and DC
Cables) and Steel @0.5/LF of fence, @$0.63/pile, and @$0.09/LB.
10. Inverter resale value is dependent on the assumption that all inverters will be decommissioned and resold half way through their useful life
(every 5 years).

168168



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 

SFLP Rev 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

169169



POINT OF INTERCONNECTION

NEW UTILITY POLE #1 (UTILITY DISCONNECT)

NEW UTILITY POLE #2 (UTILITY RECLOSER)

NEW UTILITY POLE #3 (UTILITY METER /PCC)

CUSTOMER POLE #1 (CUSTOMER DISCONNECT)

CUSTOMER POLE #3 (CUSTOMER METER)

ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT PAD

PROPERTY LINE (TYP.)

CUSTOMER POLE #2 (CUSTOMER RECLOSER)

WETLAND (TYP.)

PROPERTY LINE SETBACK (TYP.)

INFILTRATION BASIN (TYP.)

UGE

UGE UGE UGE UGE UGE UGE UGE

UGE
UGE

UGE
UGE

UGE
UGE

UGE
UGE

UGE
UGE

UGE
UGE

UGE

UGE
UGE

UGE

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION
ACCESS ROAD

A

2

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G 
O

R 
BI

LL
 O

F 
M

AT
ER

IA
L 

IS
 C

O
N

FI
D

EN
TI

AL
 A

N
D

 M
AY

 N
O

T 
BE

 L
O

AN
ED

, R
EP

RO
D

UC
ED

 O
R 

CO
PI

ED
, E

IT
H

ER
 W

H
O

LL
Y 

O
R 

IN
 P

AR
T,

 O
R 

M
AD

E 
PU

BL
IC

 IN
 A

N
Y 

M
AN

N
ER

 W
IT

H
O

UT
 T

H
E 

W
RI

TT
EN

 C
O

N
SE

N
T 

O
F 

PV
IN

SI
GH

T 
IN

C.

I

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

I

EPC CONTRACTOR:

REV DESCRIPTIONDATE

PROJECT :

FAST AVE

LOCATION :

MACKINAW TOWNSHIP, IL 61755,
USA
TITLE :

PROJECT NO.:

DRAWING NO.:

-----

1 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

21 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

APDCKDDSNDRN

N

S

W E

NENW

SW SE

5717 LEGACY DR, SUITE 250,
PLANO, TEXAS 75024

DATE: SHEET NO.:

PAPER SIZE:SCALE:

01.17.2025

ARCH-D

INITIAL DESIGN
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

3050 PEACHTREE RD, 4TH FL, ATLANTA
GA 30305, USA

R0 INITIAL DESIGN01.17.25 HSRRGASK

0 70' 140'

SCALE IN FEET

PLANT SUMMARY

PLANT CAPACITY

GCR

PITCH

PV MODULE RATING

PV MODULE MAKE

PV MODULE DIMENSION (LxWxD)

7.49MWdc/4.99MWac

44%

17.76 FEET

595 Wp

JA SOLAR

MODULES PER 4 STRING TABLE

TOTAL NO. OF 4 STRING TABLES

2382±2MMx1134±2MMx30±1MM

84

RACKING TYPE 1P

35.1°C (ASHRAE n=MEAN)

-22.5°C (ASHRAE n=MEAN)

LATITUDE & LONGITUDE 40.5370°, -89.2917°

BLOCK/MVT SIZE TBD

PV MODULE MODEL NO. JAM66D45 LB 590-615

INVERTER RATING 150KVA

INVERTER MAKE SMA

INVERTER MODEL SMA SHP150-US-20- PEAK3 (150 kW)

TOTAL NO. OF PV MODULES

MAXIMUM TEMP.

MINIMUM TEMP.

TOTAL NO. OF MVT 2

PROPERTY BOUNDARY

4 STRING TRACKER (1Px108M)

PROPOSED SITE ACCESS GATE

DC/AC RATIO

EXISTING OVERHEAD UTILITY LINE

108 (1Px108)

MODULES PER STRING 27

NOTES:

1. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN FEET OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.

2. PV TABLE LOCATIONS ARE TENTATIVE ONLY. FINAL LAYOUT  SHALL BE

UPDATED DURING DETAIL ENGINEERING STAGE BASED ON SITE SURVEY

REPORT AND APPLICABLE SHADOW ANALYSIS.

3. PITCH CONSIDERED IS AT 5.41 METERS (17.76 FEET).

4. ALL ROADS ARE MAINTAINED AT 20FT WIDE.

5. OFFSET OF 20' HAVE BEEN MAINTAINED FROM FENCE TO PV TABLE.

6. THE PLANT IS PLANNED TO BE CONNECTED AT NEAREST  UTILITY POINT OF

INTERCONNECTION.

7. INSTALLATION SHALL COMPLY ALL RELEVANT STANDARDS AND THE  STATE

ADOPTED NEC.

8. THE UGE  CABLE ROUTING AND LENGTH IS TENTATIVE ONLY, AND COULD

BE UPDATED DURING DETAILED ENGINEERING.

12582

1.50

OFFSETS

LEGEND

TOTAL NO. OF INVERTER 34

FENCE LINE

EXISTING WETLANDS

PROPOSED ACCESS ROAD

PROPOSED MVT

UGE

OHW

EXISTING OHW LINE 50 FEET

OFFSET

PROPERTY BOUNDARY SETBACK

3 STRING TRACKER (1Px81M)

2 STRING TRACKER (1Px54M)

TOTAL NO. OF 3 STRING TABLES 16

TOTAL NO. OF 2 STRING TABLES 41

MODULES PER 3 STRING TABLE 81 (1Px81)

MODULES PER 2 STRING TABLE 54 (1Px54)

PROPOSED INFILTRATION BASIN

EXISTING DRAIN TILE

EXISTING TREE LINE

EXISTING BUILDING

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND LINE

EX-WOOD CHIP LINE

EXISTING ROAD

ACCESS AND UTILITY EASEMENTS

PROPOSED OVERHEAD LINE

PROPERTY LINE 50 FEET

PROPOSED LAYDOWN AREA

AS-NOTED

ED-01

EXISTING RESIDENTIAL BLDG. 150 FEET

01OF02

SOLAR FIELD LAYOUT PLAN

EXISTING WETLAND 30 FEET

170170



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 

Executed Agricultural Impact Mitigation Agreement (AIMA) 

 

 

 

171171



172172



173173



174174



175175



176176



177177



178178



179179



180180



181181



182182



183183



184184



185185



          E-25-62 
COMMITTEE REPORT  

 
Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 
 
Your Executive Committee has considered the following Resolution and recommends it 
be Adopted by the Board: 
 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  

 
RESOLUTION 

 
WHEREAS, the County’s Executive Committee recommends to the County Board to 
approve a Memorandum of Agreement with the Illinois State Historic Preservation Officer 
regarding the Arcade Building previously located at 15 S Capital, Pekin; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Arcade building was demolished in preparation of the new Justice Center 
Annex; and 
 
WHEREAS, as part of the building permit review process for the Justice Center Annex, 
the Illinois State Historic Preservation Officer has determined a need to document 
historical information about the Arcade Building; and 
 
WHEREAS, the requirements would include preparing a professional report on the history 
of the property. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approve this recommendation. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office, 
Facilities Director, and Finance Office of this action. 
 
PASSED THIS 30th DAY OF JULY, 2025. 
 
ATTEST: 
 

________________________________  ________________________________ 
Tazewell County Clerk    Tazewell County Board Chairman 
 

186186



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT AMONG 
TAZEWELL COUNTY, THE ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY, 

AND THE 
ILLINOIS STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER 

REGARDING DEMOLITION OF 11-19 S. CAPITOL AND DEVELOPMENT OF A 
NEW COUNTY JUSTICE CENTER IN PEKIN, ILLINOIS 

(SHPO LOG #010051225) 
 
 

WHEREAS, Tazewell County (County) has demolished 11-19 S. Capitol (Building) to develop 
a new County Justice Center (Project); and 
 
WHEREAS, the project requires a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
permit, a Water Pollution Control permit, and a Public Water Supply permit from the Illinois 
Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA), thereby making the project an Undertaking subject to 
review under the Illinois State Agency Historic Resources Preservation Act (20 ILCS 3420) and 
its implementing rules (17 IAC 4180) (Act); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Owner has consulted with the Illinois State Historic Preservation Office 
(SHPO), a Division of the Illinois Department of Natural Resources (IDNR), pursuant to the Act; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the SHPO currently resides within IDNR (Office), and the Director of IDNR is the 
duly designated State Historic Preservation Officer (Officer); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Officer has determined that no historic archaeological properties will be 
affected by the undertaking; and 
 
WHEREAS, on June 11, 2025, the Officer determined that the Building is eligible to be listed 
on the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Officer has determined that the Undertaking will have an adverse effect on the 
Building that is eligible for the NRHP; and 
 
WHEREAS, a notice was published in the Peoria Journal Star, posted on the County website, 
and emailed to registered media outlets regarding a February 25, 2023, Special County Board 
Meeting to discuss the demolition of the Building and with thirteen comments received; and 
 
WHEREAS, a notice was posted on the County website and emailed to registered media outlets 
of a June 28, 2023, In-Place Property Committee Meeting where the Project was discussed and 
with no comments received; and 
 
WHEREAS, a notice was posted on the County website and sent to registered media outlets of a 
June 28, 2023, Regular County Board Meeting where the Project was discussed and with one 
comment received; and 
 

187187



WHEREAS, the County has notified the Tazewell County Genealogical and Historical Society 
of the adverse effect determination, and on July 13, 2025 the Tazewell County Genealogical and 
Historical Society chose not to participate in the consultation to resolve the adverse effect; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the County, IEPA, and the Officer agree that the Undertaking shall be 
implemented in accordance with the following stipulations in this Memorandum of Agreement 
(Agreement) in order to mitigate the adverse effects of this Undertaking to the NRHP-eligible 
properties. 
 
STIPULATIONS 
 
I. MITIGATION  

A. The County shall retain a historical contractor(s) of its choice (Contractor) 
who meets the Secretary of the Interior’s Qualifications (36 CFR Part 61, 
https://www.nps.gov/history/local-law/arch_stnds_9.htm) to complete a 
narrative and photographic history (Recordation) according to the measures 
described below.  

1. The County will ensure that the mitigation is completed by the Contractor, as 
stipulated in I. Mitigation. 

2. The recordation must follow the guidelines established by the Officer, according 
to the specifications herein.  

3. The Contractor must consult with the Officer prior to the initiation of the work to 
ensure that expectations are understood. 

4. The Officer may approve alterations to the format and/or requirements of the 
Recordation, depending on the circumstances of the project. 

5. Upon execution of this Agreement, the Contractor shall begin work on the 
Recordation and the Project may commence. 

6. The County shall ensure the Recordation includes a professional-quality narrative 
detailing the architectural and historical significance of the Building with historic 
photographs representing the Building in the Period of Significance through the 
present time. 

7. The Contractor shall prepare and email a 95% draft of the Recordation in .pdf 
format to the Officer for review and comment. 

8. When the Officer accepts the 95% draft submission, in writing, the Contractor 
shall incorporate into the recordation any comments that the Officer provides and 
complete the final documentation. 

9. Upon completion of the final version of the Recordation, the County and/or 
Contractor shall submit the following to the Officer:  
a. One archival clamshell of sufficient size to encapsulate the Recordation. 
b. One copy of the Recordation, on archival materials, for deposit in the 

Abraham Lincoln Presidential Library and Museum. 
c. One digital record (download, link, flash drive, CD, or DVD) with the 

188188

http://www.nps.gov/history/local-law/arch_stnds_9.htm)


complete Recordation for posting on the SHPO website. 
 

II. DURATION 
 

This Agreement shall be effective for two years or until such time as all of its terms are 
satisfied or it is amended or terminated and replaced. Prior to such time, the Owner may 
consult with the other signatories to reconsider the terms of the Agreement and amend it 
in accordance with Stipulation VI AMENDMENTS below.  The Owner shall notify the 
signatories as to the course of action it will pursue. 

 
III. POST-REVIEW ENCOUNTERS  
 

If potential historic properties are encountered or unanticipated effects on historic 
properties found, the Owner shall consult with the Officer immediately and make 
reasonable efforts to avoid, minimize, or mitigate adverse effects to such properties. In 
the event of an unanticipated encounter of human remains or burials, the Owner 
understands and agrees that it must immediately stop work within the area of encounter, 
consult with the Officer, and comply with the Human Remains Protection Act (20 ILCS 
3440) and its implementing rules (17 IAC 4170) as administered by IDNR, which 
provides that no human remains shall be disturbed without a permit issued by IDNR.  
 

IV. MONITORING AND REPORTING 
 

Each year following the execution of this Agreement until it expires or is terminated, 
Owner shall provide all parties to this Agreement a summary report detailing work 
undertaken pursuant to its terms. Such report shall include any scheduling changes 
proposed, any problems encountered, and any disputes and objections received in 
Owner’s efforts to carry out the terms of this Agreement. 

 
V. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 

Should any signatory to this Agreement object at any time to any actions proposed or the 
manner in which the terms of this Agreement are implemented, the Owner shall consult 
with the signatories to resolve the objection. If the signatories cannot agree regarding a 
dispute, the signatories shall utilize the procedures provided in 20 ILCS 3420/4e.   
 
A. The Owner’s responsibility to carry out all other actions subject to the terms of 

this Agreement that are not the subject of the dispute remain unchanged. 
 

VI. AMENDMENTS 
 

This Agreement may be amended when such an amendment is agreed to in writing by all 
signatories. The amendment will be effective on the date a copy is signed by all of the 
signatories. 

 
VII. TERMINATION 

189189



 
If any signatory to this Agreement determines that its terms become impossible to carry 
out, that party shall immediately consult with the other signatories to attempt to develop 
an amendment per Stipulations V and VI above. If within thirty (30) days an amendment 
cannot be reached, any signatory may terminate the Agreement upon written notification 
to the other signatories. 
 
 

VIII. COUNTERPARTS; FACSIMILE OR .PDF SIGNATURES 
 

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be considered an 
original and together shall be one and the same Agreement.  A facsimile or .pdf copy of 
this Agreement and any signatures thereon will be considered for all purposes as an 
original. 

 
 
EXECUTION of this Agreement by signatories, and the implementation of its terms evidence 
that the signatories have afforded the Officer an opportunity to comment on the effects of the 
Undertaking in compliance with the Act. 
 
[Signature Pages to follow]  

190190



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT AMONG 
TAZEWELL COUNTY, THE ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY, 

AND THE 
ILLINOIS STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER 

REGARDING DEMOLITION OF 11-19 S. CAPITOL AND DEVELOPMENT OF A 
NEW COUNTY JUSTICE CENTER IN PEKIN, ILLINOIS 

(SHPO LOG #010051225) 
   
 
 
 

 
SIGNATORY 
 
TAZEWELL COUNTY 
 
 
By:   Date:   

Brett Grimm 
Tazewell County Board Chairman 

 
  
 
  

191191



  
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT AMONG 

TAZEWELL COUNTY, THE ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY, 
AND THE 

ILLINOIS STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER 
REGARDING DEMOLITION OF 11-19 S. CAPITOL AND DEVELOPMENT OF A 

NEW COUNTY JUSTICE CENTER IN PEKIN, ILLINOIS 
(SHPO LOG #010051225) 

 
 
 

 
SIGNATORY 
 
ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY (IEPA) 
 
 
Signature:   Date:   
 
Name:     
 
Title:     
 
 
  

192192



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT AMONG 
TAZEWELL COUNTY, THE ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY, 

AND THE 
ILLINOIS STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER 

REGARDING DEMOLITION OF 11-19 S. CAPITOL AND DEVELOPMENT OF A 
NEW COUNTY JUSTICE CENTER IN PEKIN, ILLINOIS 

(SHPO LOG #010051225) 
  
 
 

 
SIGNATORY 
 
ILLINOIS DEPUTY STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER (OFFICER) 
 
 
By:   Date:   

Carey L. Mayer, AIA 
Deputy State Historic Preservation Officer  
Illinois Department of Natural Resources 

 
 
 
  
 
 

193193



       E-25-63       
  COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 
 
Your Executive Committees have considered the following RESOLUTION and 
recommends that it be adopted by the Board: 
 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 
WHEREAS, the County’s Executive Committee recommends to the County Board to approve 
providing a $50,000 match commitment for Tri-County Regional Planning Commission’s 
application for USDA Rural Community Development Initiative Grant; and 
 
WHEREAS, housing development shapes economic opportunities, as lack of housing can 
create barriers to workforce attraction and retention while limiting overall economic 
development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the USDA grant will support the creation of a regional housing hub that would 
provide technical support and planning for rural housing development strategies in 
Tazewell County; and 
 
WHEREAS, funding only becomes available every three years, and applications are due on 
August 12, 2025; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County has been receiving energy transition grant funding from the State of 
Illinois for the last two years, and continues to remain eligible with the scheduled closing of 
the Powerton Station in 2028; and  
 
WHEREAS, the grant application for the energy transition grant has been submitted for the 
current grant cycle, and a notice of award is expected in the coming months; and 
 
WHEREAS, the creation of a regional housing hub would support the purpose of the energy 
transition grant’s purpose to promote economic development and could be submitted as a 
grant use. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board authorize the Chairman to sign a 
Letter of Commitment for a $50,000 grant match.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office, 
Finance Office, and the Auditor of this action. 
 
PASSED THIS 30th DAY OF JULY, 2025. 
 

194194



ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Tazewell County Clerk    Tazewell County Board Chairman 

195195



      E-25-65 
 COMMITTEE REPORT      
 
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 
 
Your Executive Committee has considered the following RESOLUTION and recommends 
that it be adopted by the Board: 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 
 WHEREAS, the County's Executive Committee recommends to the County Board to 
approve Adopting and Authorizing Intergovernmental Agreements for Computer Assisted 
Mass Appraisal Software (CAMA); and  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article VII, Section 10 of the Illinois Constitution of 1970 and 
5 ILCS 220/1, et seq. the Parties can enter into agreements which provide for joint 
cooperation by and among the Parties; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to 35 ILCS 200/9-30, township assessors may spend funds for 
the preparation, establishment and maintenance of a detailed property record system 
which would provide information useful to assessment officials; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Tazewell County has entered into a contract with DEVNET to provide an 
integrated property tax system; and 
 
 WHEREAS, DEVNET has contracted with Tazewell County to allow any interested 
Township to access and use the property tax system for an agreed upon cost pursuant to 
the Tazewell County contract; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Tazewell County wishes to enter into this IGA with any interested 
township situated within the County to assist in the automation of property records and the 
provisions of tools necessary to calculate property assessments in a manner in which the 
County and the Township deem appropriate and cost-effective. 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the County Board of Tazewell County that the 
Intergovernmental Agreement for Computer Assisted mass Appraisal Software (CAMA) that 
is attached hereto be approved and adopted and that the Tazewell County Board Chairman 
is authorized to enter into this Intergovernmental Agreement with any interested 
Township. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Office 
and Supervisor of Assessments of this action.  
 
PASSED THIS 30th DAY OF July, 2025. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Tazewell County Clerk    Tazewell County Board Chairman 

196196



197197



198198



199199



 COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Mr. Chairman and Members of the Tazewell County Board: 
 
Your Executive Committees have considered the following RESOLUTION and 
recommends that it be adopted by the Board: 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
     RESOLUTION 
 
WHEREAS, the County’s Executive Committee recommends to the County Board that  
the revised Employment Agreement between Tazewell County and Michael Deluhery as 
County Administrator be approved; and 
 
WHEREAS, the agreement changes the amount of time for written notice of termination 
by the County Administrator from forty-five (45) days to thirty (30) days. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the County Board approves the recommendation 
and authorizes the County Board Chairman to sign the agreement. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County Clerk notifies the County Board Chairman, 
State’s Attorney, and the Payroll Division of this action. 
 
PASSED THIS 30TH DAY OF JULY, 2025. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Tazewell County Clerk    Tazewell County Board Chairman 

 
E-25-69 

200200



   

REVISED AGREEMENT 
 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT made this 31st day of July, 2024, by and  

between the COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, ILLINOIS, a body politic and corporate, 

hereinafter called the “Employer”, and Michael Deluhery, in his employment as County 

Administrator for Tazewell County, hereinafter called the “Employee” . 

 
RECITALS 

 
 WHEREAS, the Employer has an existing employee contract with the 

Employee which had a starting effective of May 16, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the Employer is entering into a revised employment contract with 

Employee on July 31, 2024; and, 

 WHEREAS, the effective dates of said contract are to be July 31, 2024 through 

November 30, 2025; and, 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises hereinafter exchanged,   

and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby 

acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 (1) Period of Employment.      This Agreement shall be in full force and 

effect until November 30, 2025, unless it is terminated earlier pursuant to the 

provisions of paragraph (8), (16) or (18) of this Agreement. 

 (2) Employee Duties.      During the period of employment herein 

described, Employee shall perform the duties of County Administrator as set forth by 

law, including but not limited to the laws of the State of Illinois, all rules and ordinances 

of the County Board, the County Administrator’s job description, and such other duties 

as the Tazewell County Board or County Board Chairman may lawfully assign to 

Employee.  In so doing, Employee shall comply with all such laws. 

 (3) Hours of Work.      The parties realize that the position of County 

Administrator requires the person holding such position to work many weekends, 

evenings, and other irregular hours.  It is understood and agreed that Employee shall 

work whatever hours may be necessary in order for him to fulfill the requirements of 

201201



 2 

the position of County Administrator, but in any event not less than forty (40) hours per 

week. 

 (4) Employees’ Salary.      The Employee shall receive an annual salary of 

$154,548.00 for the period commencing July 31, 2024, and said salary shall be paid in 

bi-weekly installments.  A performance evaluation will be conducted by the Executive 

Committee and the County Board Chairman. Effective December 1, 2024, the 

Employee shall receive an annual salary of $160,729.  Future evaluations and pay 

increases shall become effective the first of December of each year, consistent with 

other County employees.  After December 1, 2024, the Employee will be given an 

annual increase comparable to the increase approved by the County Board for other 

non-union employees with a yearly minimum increase of two percent.  Evaluations are 

based on the period August 1 through July 31, of each year. 

 (5) Performance Evaluation.       The Executive Committee and the County 

Board Chairman shall review and evaluate the performance of the Employee at least 

once annually in advance of the adoption of the annual operating budget. Employee 

shall be given an opportunity to discuss the evaluation with the Executive Committee 

and County Board Chairman.  Said review and evaluation shall be submitted for 

County Board approval in accordance with specific criteria developed by the County 

Board.  Said criteria may be added to or deleted from as the County Board may 

determine as they see fit.  Further, the County Board shall provide the Employee with 

a summary written statement of the findings of the Executive Committee and the 

County Board Chairman. 

 (6) Vacation Pay.      A maximum of one hundred (120) hours, or fifteen (15) 

days of vacation leave may be carried forward from one calendar year. Any vacation 

leave scheduled which exceeds five (5) consecutive work days must be first approved 

by the County Board Chairman.  Upon implementation of the Employment Agreement, 

employee will accrue, effective upon employment date, per pay period at an hourly 

rate, equal to four (4) weeks vacation. All vacation leave earned prior to the effective 

date of this Agreement shall remain intact.  Any vacation leave accrued under the 

terms hereof and remaining unused, at the termination of this Agreement will be paid 

202202



 3 

in cash to Employee at such time in an amount equal to the number of hours of such 

unused vacation leave multiplied by the Employee’s then current hourly rate of pay.   

 (7) Sick Leave.       Employee shall receive the same sick leave benefits 

provided under the Tazewell County Personnel Policy, and all benefits earned prior to 

the effective date of this Agreement shall remain intact.   

 (8) Disability Termination.      Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement 

to the contrary, the Employer is hereby given the option to terminate this Agreement in 

the event Employee shall, during the term hereof, become permanently disabled as 

the term permanently disabled is hereinafter fixed and defined.  Such option shall be 

exercised by the Employer giving notice to Employee by registered mail, addressed to 

him in care of the Employee at his current residence, or at such other address as 

Employee shall designate in writing.  On the giving of such notice, this Agreement 

shall cease on the last day of the month in which the notice is so mailed, with the 

same force and effect as if such last day of the month were  originally herein set forth 

as the termination date hereof. 

 For the purpose of this Agreement, Employee shall be deemed to have become 

permanently disabled, if, during any year of the term hereof, because of ill health, 

physical or mental disability, or for other causes beyond his control he shall have been 

continuously unable or unwilling or shall have failed to perform his duties for a total 

period of sixty (60) days, irrespective of whether or not such days are consecutive, 

beyond the sick leave time and vacation time accrued.  For the purpose hereof, the 

term “any year of the term hereof” is defined to mean any twelve (12) calendar months 

period commencing December 1 and terminating November 30, during the terms of 

this Agreement.  If Employee becomes permanently disabled then the Employer shall 

have no obligation to Employee for the severance payment as described in paragraph 

16. 

 (9) Automobile.       Employee shall provide his own automobile.  Employee 

is solely responsible for all costs and expenses associated with such automobile, 

including but not limited to purchase, maintenance, insurance, license, registration, 

fines and fees.  The Employer will pay a monthly car allowance of $300.00. 

203203



 4 

 (10) Other Business Expense.      Upon prior approval of the County Board 

Chairman, the Employer shall reimburse Employee for other Employee business 

expenses, such as, but not limited to, the following: air travel, taxi, auto rental, lodging, 

meals, professional memberships (including ICMA, ILCMA, IACA, GFOA, IGFOA, and 

NACO) and subscriptions to the publications and registration fees for training 

programs or conferences offered by organizations, or as provided in the County 

Personnel Policy.  Such reimbursement is limited to the amount budgeted by the 

County Board in the administrator Expenses line item. 

 The Employer will provide Employee with a laptop computer and cell phone, or 

a mobile phone reimbursement per the Employer’s policy at the Employee’s discretion, 

to be used in performing his duties for Employer according to the same policies 

applicable to other County Employees.   

 (11) Group Medical Insurance Benefits.      The Employer shall offer 

employee health, hospitalization, dental, and optical coverage in accordance with the 

County Personnel Policy.  The employer will make dependent coverage available in 

accordance with the Personnel Policy. The Employer waives any waiting period for 

enrollment. 

 (12)  Tuition Reimbursement.      Employer shall pay tuition costs for the 

Employee to enroll in courses required to obtain a master's degree in public 

administration (MPA) in Northern Illinois University's (NIU) Master of Public 

Administration program. Employee shall receive reimbursement for tuition costs 

following the completion of each academic course term. Employer shall pay 

reimbursements only for those courses in which Employee receives academic credit 

and until Employee obtains the MPA from NIU. 

(13) Other Benefits.       There are 457(b) investment options available.   

(14) Outside Activities.       The ICMA code of conduct is to be strictly 

adhered to including political neutrality.  Employee shall not engage in any activity for 

which he receives compensation without prior approval of the County Board Chairman.  

Employee agrees that he shall not engage in any outside activity which may create an 

actual or perceived conflict of interest.  Employee also agrees to arrange the outside 

204204



 5 

activity so as not to intrude upon Employee’s ability to devote his full-time and 

attention to Employer’s affairs.  Employee shall sign a statement of no conflict of 

interest and file a copy with the County Clerk when engaging in outside activities for 

compensation.  All work shall be conducted during evenings and weekends unless the 

Employee is authorized to use personal or vacation time by the County Board 

Chairman. 

 (15) Holidays.       Employee shall receive the same paid holidays as are 

afforded to other County Employees. 

 (16) Termination by the Employer.       Employer may terminate this 

Agreement at any time by a two-thirds vote of the County Board in favor of termination.  

It is understood and agreed by the parties that Employee shall be an employee “at will” 

and may be dismissed without cause.  The termination of Employee is so specified in 

the Title 1, Chapter 3 of the Tazewell County Code, Sec. 5. 

 (17) Severance Pay.      In the event the Employer terminates this Agreement 

and Employee’s employment under paragraph (16), the Employer agrees to pay 

Employee twenty weeks severance pay in a single lump sum payment.  Said Payment 

shall be calculated by dividing the Employee’s then current annual salary.  Any 

amounts required to be deducted such as Federal Income Tax, FICA, State Income 

Tax, and IMRF shall be subtracted from the lump sum payment. Employee shall also 

be compensated for unused vacation leave in accordance with paragraph (6).  

Employee agrees to accept these payments as liquidated damages in full satisfaction 

of any rights, compensation, or other benefits Employee may have under the terms of 

this Agreement or otherwise. For a period of four months following the date of 

termination, the Employer shall pay one hundred percent (100%) of the premium costs 

to continue group medical insurance benefits for the Employee and dependents as 

provided in paragraph (11).  

 In the event Employee is terminated after being formally charged in a court of 

competent jurisdiction with any criminal violation committed in his official capacity or 

evidencing dishonesty and the Employer finds that Employee more likely than not 

205205



 6 

committed such offense then the Employer shall have no obligation to Employee for 

the severance payment described in this paragraph. 

 In the event Employee is terminated after being found guilty by a court of 

competent jurisdiction of any criminal violation committed in his official capacity or 

evidencing dishonesty, or admits to committing any unlawful act involving personal 

gain to him, the Employer shall have no obligation to Employee for the severance 

payment described in this paragraph. 

 In the event the Employee fails to comply with paragraph (14) of this 

Agreement, the Employer may choose to terminate this Agreement and shall have no 

obligation to Employee for the severance payment as described in this paragraph. 

 In the event the Employer decides not to renew or extend this Agreement, the 

Employer shall have no obligation to pay Employee severance pay as described in this 

section. 

 (18) Termination by Employee.      Employee may terminate this Agreement 

at any time by giving thirty (30) forty-five (45) days written notice to the County Board 

Chairman and County Board members and acceptance by the County Board of such 

termination. 

(19) Eligibility for Benefits Afforded Other County Employees.
 Except for the benefit categories indicated in previous paragraphs of this 

Agreement, Employee shall receive the same employment benefits as are provided to 

other County Employees.   

(20) Renewal.      The Employer and Employee may meet to discuss the 

renewal of this Agreement at any time during its term. 

 (21) Amendments.      All amendments of this Agreement are invalid and 

ineffective unless reduced to writing and signed by all parties. 

 (22) Indemnification. Unless otherwise prohibited by applicable law,  

Employer shall defend, save harmless, and indemnify Employee against any tort, 

professional liability claim or demand or other legal action, whether groundless or 

otherwise, arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of  

206206



 7 

Employee's duties as County Administrator or resulting from the exercise of judgment 

or discretion in connection with the performance of official duties or responsibilities, 

unless the act or omission involved willful, wanton, or intentional conduct. Legal 

representation, provided by Employer for Employee, shall extend until a final 

determination of the legal action is made, including any appeals brought by either 

party. Employer shall indemnify employee against any and all losses, damages, 

judgments, interest, settlements, fines, court costs, and other reasonable costs and 

expenses of legal proceedings including attorney fees, and any other liabilities 

incurred by, imposed upon, or suffered by such Employee in connection with or 

resulting from any claim, action, suit, or proceeding, actual or threatened, arising out of 

or in connection with the performance of his duties, provided such claim or claims 

does not arise out of a claim for intentional conduct and shall not include punitive 

damages. Any settlement of any claim must be made with prior approval of Employer 

in order for indemnification, as proved in this Section, to be available. Employee 

recognizes that Employer shall have the right to compromise or settle any claim or 

suit; unless, said compromise or settlement is of a personal nature to Employee. 

Further, Employer agrees to pay all reasonable litigation expenses of Employee 

throughout the pendency of any litigation to which the Employee is a party, witness or 

advisor to the Employer. Such expense payments shall continue beyond Employee's 

service to the Employer as long as litigation is pending. Further, Employer agrees to 

pay Employee only reasonable travel expenses when Employee serves as a party or 

witness of Employer regarding pending litigation. Failure of Employee to immediately 

notify Employer of any claim, or legitimate threat, of legal consequence known to 

Employee, where the potential claim is against either Employee or Employer, may 

preclude Employee or the claimant from any future monetary payment by the 

Employer due to the claim and Employee may not bind Employer for settlement of any 

such claims where notice to Employer was concealed. The parties acknowledge that 

this indemnification provision does not extend to any contract dispute between 

Employer and Employee. 

207207



 8 

(23) This Agreement.      This Agreement shall be binding upon each of the 

parties and their respective successors, assigns, and heirs as the case may be.  

Employee shall not assign any of the personal services to be rendered by the 

employee under this Agreement.  Any such assignment shall constitute employee’s 

written notice of resignation. 

 

 

 

Adopted this 30th day of July, 2025. 

 

ATTEST: 

 

                    

Tazewell County Clerk    Tazewell County Board Chairman 

 

 

ACCEPTED BY: 

 

____________________________ 

Employee 

208208



 
 
 
July 14, 2025 
 
 
 
Mr. John Ackerman, County Clerk 
County of Tazewell 
11 South 4th Street, 2nd Floor, Suite 203 
Pekin, Illinois 61554 
 
Dear Mr. Ackerman: 
 
Enclosed is a copy of the “Documentation” Review #82 covering the receipt and 
disbursement of Motor Fuel Tax funds by Tazewell County for the period beginning 
January 1, 2024, and ending December 31, 2024.   
 
PLEASE REFER TO THE REVIEWER’S COMMENTS PAGE FOR SPECIFIC 
COMMENTS IN REGARD TO THIS DOCUMENTATION REVIEW. 
 
This report should be presented to the County Board at the first regular meeting 
after the receipt of this letter and then filed as a permanent record in your office. 
 
This report is a compliance review conducted by Local Roads and Streets.  An 
audit will be performed at a later date by an auditor from the Bureau of 
Investigations and Compliance.   
 
If you have any questions, please contact Michael Hudelson at (309) 671-3696. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Kensil A. Garnett, P.E. 
Region Three Engineer 
 
MEH/DB/lmh 
 
O:\LRS\GEN\WINWORD\BLRS\STAFF\Debbie B\Documentation Review 
 
Attachment(s) 
 
cc: Tazewell County Engineer 
 Tazewell County Treasurer 
 File 

209209



210210



211211



212212



213213



214214



215215



216216



217217



218218



219219



220220



221221



222222



223223



224224



 
 
 
July 14, 2025 
 
 
 
Mr. John Ackerman, County Clerk 
County of Tazewell 
11 South 4th Street, 2nd Floor, Suite 203 
Pekin, Illinois 61554 
 
Dear Mr. Ackerman: 
 
Enclosed is a copy of the “Documentation” Review #61 covering the receipt and 
disbursement of Motor Fuel Tax funds by Tazewell County Road Districts for the 
period beginning January 1, 2024, and ending December 31, 2024.   
 
PLEASE REFER TO THE REVIEWER’S COMMENTS PAGE FOR SPECIFIC 
COMMENTS IN REGARD TO THIS DOCUMENTATION REVIEW. 
 
This report should be presented to the County Board at the first regular meeting 
after the receipt of this letter and then filed as a permanent record in your office. 
 
This report is a compliance review conducted by Local Roads and Streets.  An 
audit will be performed at a later date by an auditor from the Bureau of 
Investigations and Compliance.   
 
If you have any questions, please contact Michael Hudelson at (309) 671-3696. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Kensil A. Garnett, P.E. 
Region Three Engineer 
 
MEH/DB/lmh 
 
O:\LRS\GEN\WINWORD\BLRS\STAFF\Debbie B\Documentation Review 
 
Attachment(s) 
 
cc: Tazewell County Engineer 
 Tazewell County Treasurer 
 File 

225225



226226



227227



228228



229229



230230



231231



232232



233233



234234



235235



236236



237237



238238



239239



240240



241241



242242



243243



244244



245245



246246



247247



248248



249249



250250



251251



252252



253253



254254



255255



256256



257257



258258



259259



260260



261261



262262



263263



264264



265265



266266



267267



268268



269269



270270



271271



272272



273273



274274



275275



276276



277277



 
 
 
July 14, 2025 
 
 
 
Mr. John Ackerman, County Clerk 
County of Tazewell 
11 South 4th Street, 2nd Floor, Suite 203 
Pekin, Illinois 61554 
 
Dear Mr. Ackerman: 
 
Enclosed is a copy of the “Documentation” Review Supplemental #61 covering the 
receipt and disbursement of Township Bridge funds by Tazewell County Road 
Districts for the period beginning January 1, 2024, and ending December 31, 2024.   
 
PLEASE REFER TO THE REVIEWER’S COMMENTS PAGE FOR SPECIFIC 
COMMENTS IN REGARD TO THIS DOCUMENTATION REVIEW. 
 
This report should be presented to the County Board at the first regular meeting 
after the receipt of this letter and then filed as a permanent record in your office. 
 
This report is a compliance review conducted by Local Roads and Streets.  An 
audit will be performed at a later date by an auditor from the Bureau of 
Investigations and Compliance.   
 
If you have any questions, please contact Michael Hudelson at (309) 671-3696. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Kensil A. Garnett, P.E. 
Region Three Engineer 
 
MEH/DB/lmh 
 
O:\LRS\GEN\WINWORD\BLRS\STAFF\Debbie B\Documentation Review 
 
Attachment(s) 
 
cc: Tazewell County Engineer 
 Tazewell County Treasurer 
 File 

278278



279279



280280



281281



282282



283283



284284



 Tazewell County Board 
Calendar of Meetings  

 August 2025 
 

     
   

Zoning Board of Appeals  Tuesday, August 5  Crawford, Hopkins, Stahl, Hall, Goddard,  
 Duane Lessen, Chair   5:30pm – Justice Center Woodrow, Schmidgall, Longfellow 
      Conference Room  

 
Land Use    Tuesday, August 12  Hopkins, Stahl, Hall, Goddard, Woodrow,     

 Russ Crawford, Chair   5:00pm – McKenzie Building Schmidgall, Longfellow 
      Jury Room 
 
 Health Services   Thursday, August 14  Sinn, Hopkins, Longfellow, Goddard,   
 Jay Hall, Chair    5:30 pm – Health   Stump, Rich-Stimson, Schmidgall 
      Department - Tremont 
 
 Insurance Review   No August meeting   Graff, Hopkins, Mingus   
 Tammy Rich-Stimson, Chair 
   

Transportation   Tuesday, August 19  Proehl, Graff, Milam, Rich-Stimson,     
 Greg Menold, Chair   1:30pm – Highway   Nelms, Woodrow 
      Department - Tremont 
 
 Property    Tuesday, August 19  Hopkins, Mingus, Proehl, Harris, Stahl,     
 Max Schneider , Chair   3:30pm – Justice Center Schmidgall, Joesting, Phillips 
      Conference Room 
 
 Finance    Tuesday, August 19  Schneider, Woodrow, Milam, Mingus,    
 Mike Harris, Chair   following Property – Justice Proehl, Crawford, Stahl, Joesting,  
        Center Conference Room Schmidgall, Phillips 
 
 Human Resources   Tuesday, August 19  Woodrow, Milam, Schmidgall, Joesting,  
 Mike Harris, Chair   following Finance – Justice Crawford, Mingus, Proehl, Stahl, Phillips 
      Center Conference Room 
 

Risk Management   Wednesday, August 20 Harris, Crawford, Hall, Joesting, Menold,    
 Brett Grimm, Chair   4:00pm – McKenzie Building  Mingus, Proehl, Sinn, Schneider, Stahl 
      Jury Room 
 

Executive    Wednesday, August 20 Harris, Crawford, Hall, Joesting, Menold,        
Brett Grimm, Chair   following Risk Management Mingus, Proehl, Sinn, Schneider, Stahl  

 
Board of Health   Monday, August 25  Hall   

      6:30pm – Health  
Department - Tremont   

 
County Board    Wednesday, August 27 All County Board Members   

      6:00 pm – Justice Center 
      Conference Room 
 

285285


	Land Use - County Board Items.pdf
	Land Use Summary of Action
	Special Use Recommendation Class A Cases
	Special Use Ordinance - Class A
	Special Use Recommendation Class A Cases
	Special Use Ordinance - Class A

	07-23-25-Executive-Agenda packet.pdf
	E-25-55 Heritage Lake Subdivision road work.pdf
	HLS SSA - 2025 Seal Coat.pdf
	DOC060425-06042025071151


	E-25-61 - Fast Ave Solar Decom Resolution.pdf
	Decommissioing Plan with Cost Estimate.pdf
	Fast Ave_Decommissioning Plan_2025.0618 (005)
	Fast Ave_Cost Estimate_2025.0714
	Fast Ave_Decommissioning Plan_2025.0618 (005)


	MOA DRAFT 010051225_7-21-2025.pdf
	I. MITIGATION


	Tazewell Co #82 2024.pdf
	Tazewell Co #82 2024 (002).pdf

	Tazewell Co RD #61 2024.pdf
	Tazewell Co RD #61 2024.pdf

	Tazewell Co RD Township Bridge Supplemental #61 2024.pdf
	Tazewell Co TBP #61 2024 (002).pdf

	07-30-25 CoBo Agenda .pdf
	D. Communications from elected and appointed county officials
	1. Facilities Administration Overview by Mike Schone
	E-25-60        12. Approve the Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agreement
	E-25-61        13. Approve Decommissioning Agreement with Fast Ave Solar, LLC
	c.
	E-25-62        14. Approve Memorandum of Agreement with the Illinois State Historic
	d.    Preservation Office Regarding the Arcade Building
	e.
	E-25-63        15. Approve Letter of Support for Matching Funds for Tri-County Regional
	Planning Commission’s Application for USDA Rural Community
	Development Initiative Grant
	E-25-65        16. Approve Intergovernmental Agreements for Computer Assisted Mass
	Appraisal Software (CAMA)
	Upon Approval of In-Place Meeting

	07-30-25 CoBo Agenda  - Revised.pdf
	D. Communications from elected and appointed county officials
	1. Facilities Administration Overview by Mike Schone
	E-25-60        12. Approve the Coyote Road Solar Road Use Agreement
	E-25-61        13. Approve Decommissioning Agreement with Fast Ave Solar, LLC
	c.
	E-25-62        14. Approve Memorandum of Agreement with the Illinois State Historic
	d.    Preservation Office Regarding the Arcade Building
	e.
	E-25-63        15. Approve Letter of Support for Matching Funds for Tri-County Regional
	Planning Commission’s Application for USDA Rural Community
	Development Initiative Grant
	E-25-65        16. Approve Intergovernmental Agreements for Computer Assisted Mass
	Appraisal Software (CAMA)
	Upon Approval of In-Place Meeting
	E-25-69                17. Approve Amendment to Employment Agreement with Administrator
	Michael Deluhery
	Upon Approval of In-Place Meeting




